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» WYNDHAM

Wyndham is proud to have joined with three other prominent hotel companies to form a worldwide alliance.
This relationship is based on a shared philosophy of providing guests with unique, personalized guest services.
The Global Hotel Alliance (GHA) includes Kempinski Hotels & Resorts, Pan Pacific Hotels and Resorts, Rydges
Hotels & Resorts and ¥yncham Hotels & Resorts. GHA has united 235 upscale and luxury hotels and resorts,
comprising over 63,000 guest rooms on five continents, in a shared marketing partnership. Together, these
hotel chains answer the demand to provide guests a wider range of accommodations across the globe.

The Wyndham Web site offers a convenient way for people to:

¢ Find the best available rates * Make online reservations
* Research guest room availability * Get information on Wyndham properties worldwide

Wyndham'’s Web site is easy to navigate, so customers can easily access special offers, hotel programs,
meeting and wedding services, and destination guides. Wyndham continues to enhance and expand
e-commerce marketing strategies to maximize the revenue potential of wyndham.com. With compelling
programs and promotions, the Company has successfully driven traffic to the site as the preferential
channel for making reservations. In 2004, wyndham.com booked approximately $100 million in revenue.
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Wyndham is focused on growing the brand and maximizing brand equity to build loyalty across its
key target markets. The Wyndham brand consists of four product segments: Wyndham Hotels & Resorts,
Wyndham Luxury Resorts, Summerfield Suites by Wyndham and Viva Wyndham Resorts.

Wyndham International continues to enhance its award-winning programs and services that have
successfully differentiated the Wyndham brand from its competitors.

Jlymcam FyRecuosY

This breakthrough guest recognition program enables Wyndham to personalize the hotel experience

to the individual preferences of guests. Created with the input of travelers, Wyndham ByRequest rewards
guests quickly with meaningful perks during their stay. Beyond typical loyalty programs, Wyndham

ByRequest defines a service philosophy that is unique to the Wyndham brand.
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Now celebrating its 10th year, the Women on Their Way program remains the hospitality industry’s only
branded program dedicated entirely to female business travelers. Wyndham pioneered this special
program to support women business travelers. This important segment has emerged from a niche market

to a formidable force.

Diversity

Reaching out to emerging and decidedly profitable markets — such as the African American, Hispanic,
Asian, Women, and Gay and Lesbian communities —will continue to be a key revenue strategy for
Wyndham. The Company has developed targeted marketing and sales initiatives that not only resonate ;
with these travelers’ needs, but also with Wyndham’s employees. Wyndham has a recognized commit-
ment to diversity, which has proven to be a competitive advantage with these key markets.
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EXPLANATORY NOTE: The purpose of this Amendment No. 4 on Form 10-K/A is to amend our Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004, which was filed on March 15, 2005, as
amended by Amendment No. 1 on Form 10-K/A, which was filed on April 8, 2005, as amended by Amendment
No. 2 on Form 10-K/A, which was filed on April 29, 2005, and as amended by Amendment No. 3, which was
filed on May 17, 2005. This Amendment is being filed to correct an inadvertent omission in the Report of
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Consolidated Financial Statements, included in Part 11,

Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, on page F-2 of Amendment No. 3 on Form 10-K/A.

This amended Annual Report on Form 10-K/A has not been updated except as required to reflect the effects
of the foregoing correction. In order to preserve the nature and character of the disclosures set forth in such items
as originally filed, no attempt has been made in this amendment to modify or update the disclosures in the
original Annual Report on Form 10-K except for the foregoing correction. As a result, this amended Annual
Report on Form 10-K/A contains forward-looking information which has not been updated for events subsequent
to the date of the original filing, and all information contained in this amended Annual Report on Form 10-K/A
and the original Annual Report on Form 10-K is subject to updating and supplementing as provided in the
periodic reports that the Company has filed and/or will file with the SEC after the original filing date of the
Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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PART1
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Overview

In this Annual Report on Form 10-K, Wyndham International, Inc. together with its subsidiaries will be
referred to as “we,” “us,” “Wyndham” or the “Company.” We own, lease, manage and franchise hotels primarily
in the upper upscale and luxury segments of the hotel and resorts industry in the United States, Canada, Mexico,
the Caribbean and Europe. At December 31, 2004, our portfolio consisted of 156 hotels and resorts with over
42,500 guest rooms. We are a Delaware corporation and our principal executive office is located at 1950
Stemmons Freeway, Suite 6001, Dallas, Texas 75207.

Forward-Looking Statements

Certain statements in this annual report constitute “forward-looking statements” as that term is defined
under §21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the Private Securities Litigation Reform
Act of 1995. We have based these forward-looking statements on our current expectations and projections about
future events. Statements that are predictive in nature, that depend upon or refer to future events or conditions, or
that include words such as “expects,” “anticipates,” “intends,” “plans,” “believes,” “‘estimates,” “thinks” and
similar expressions, are forward-looking statements. These statements involve known and unknown risks,
uncertainties and other factors that may cause our actual results and performance to be materially different from
any future results or performance expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements. These factors
include, among other things, those matters discussed under the caption “Risk Factors,” as well as the following:

LIS LI

* the impact of general economic conditions in the United States;

* industry conditions, including competition;

* business strategies and intended results;

* our ability to effect sales of our assets on terms and conditions favorable to us;
* our ability to integrate acquisitions into our operations and management;

* our ability to integrate management and franchise relationships;

* risks associated with the hotel industry and real estate markets in general;

» the impact of terrorist activity or war, threats of terrorist activity or war and responses to terrorist
activity on the economy in general and the travel and hotel industries in particular;

+ travelers’ fears of exposure to contagious diseases;

* capital expenditure requirements;

* legislative or regulatory requirements; and

* access to capital markets.

Although we believe that these statements are based upon reasonable assumptions, we can give no assurance
that our goals will be achieved. Given these uncertainties, prospective investors are cautioned not to place undue

reliance on these forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are made as of the date of this

annual report. We assume no obligation to update or revise them or provide reasons why actual results may
differ.

General Description of Our Business

We classify our business into two groups: (1) proprietary branded hotels and (2) non-proprietary branded
hotels. Our proprietary branded hotels are Wyndham Hotels & Resorts®, Wyndham Luxury Resorts®, Wyndham
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Garden Hotels® and Summerfield Suites by Wyndham™ consisting of 137 owned, leased, managed or franchised
hotels with over 37,400 guest rooms as of December 31, 2004, Wyndham Hotels & Resorts® is our principal
proprietary branded group of assets. Through both our Wyndham Hotels & Resorts® brand and our Wyndham
Garden Hotels® brand, we offer upper upscale, full-service accommodations to business and leisure travelers.
Through our Wyndham Luxury Resorts brand, we offer luxury resort accommodations, such as the Boulders and
Carmel Valley Ranch. Through our Summerfield Suites by Wyndham™ brand, we offer upper upscale, all-suite
accommodations to business and leisure travelers.

Our primary growth strategy for our proprietary branded hotels has been to expand through new
management and franchise contracts, rebrand our convertible non-proprietary hotels to the Wyndham flag,
operate efficiently through revenue generation and cost containment programs and build the brand through
innovative programs.

Our non-proprietary branded hotels consist of 19 owned or managed hotels with over 5,100 guest rooms as
of December 31, 2004. These hotels are operated under franchise or brand affiliations with nationally recognized
hotel companies, including Hilton®, Hyatt®, Radisson®, Holiday Inn®, Doubletree® and Marriott®, We manage
all but five of these hotels. Our non-proprietary branded hotels are operated primarily by Performance Hospitality
Management (“PHM”), one of our management divisions. In addition to our owned assets, PHM manages four
non-proprietary branded hotels for third parties.

Our strategy for our non-proprietary hotels has been to selectively dispose of these hotels through asset sales
and exchanges to create a source of capital for us to (1) repay debt and (2) continue expanding the Wyndham
proprietary brand. Upon completion of this strategy in the first quarter of 2005, since June of 1999, Wyndham
will have sold approximately 185 non-strategic properties for gross proceeds of over $2.7 billion. The net
proceeds from the asset sales have been used to reduce debt and overall Company leverage.

Please see “Results of Reporting Segments” under Item 7 of this Form 10-K and Note 15 of the Notes to our
consolidated financial statements for additional information about our business segments.

Recent Developments

On December 22, 2004, Wyndham formed a joint venture with Lehman Brothers Real Estate Partners
(“LBREP”) to expand and develop Summerfield Suites by Wyndham™, Wyndham's upscale, extended-stay
brand. The transaction included the sale of six Summerfield Suites by Wyndham™ and the sale of an equity
interest in the entity that owns our Summerfield brand to LBREP.

On December 30, 2004, we entered into an agreement to sell 25 non-strategic hotels to a partnership
comprised of a private investment fund managed by Goldman Sachs and affiliates of Highgate Holdings. The
purchase price of the transaction is $366 million. The net cash proceeds from the sale will be used to pay down
debt. As part of the agreement, the 15 Wyndham-branded assets included in the sale will remain in the brand’s
portfolio pursuant to new franchise agreements. Impairments totaling $333.5 million were recorded on these 25
properties during 2004. Upon the close of the transaction in 2005, a gain of approximately $33.9 million will be
recorded on the remainder of the assets in the portfolio. The sale is expected to close in the first quarter of 2005.
We also entered into an agreement to sell an additional property in a separate transaction. These transactions will
complete our planned disposition program, which began in June 1999.

On January 28, 2005, Mercury Special Situations Fund LP and Equity Resource Dover Fund LP issued a

tender offer to purchase all outstanding shares of our series A preferred stock at a price of $30 per share. The
offer was amended on February 28, 2005 to extend the expiration date to March 14, 2005.

On or about February 28, 2005, we entered into a stipulation of settlement with regard to the legal
proceeding entitled Johnson v. Patriot American Hospitality, Inc., et al., and discussed under “Item 3. Legal
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Proceedings” on page 17. Pursuant to the stipulation of settlement, we shall issue 11 million shares of Wyndham
common stock to the proposed settlement class. We also have agreed to contribute a maximum amount of $1
million to the settlement class, only in the event that the trading price of Wyndham common stock falls below a
certain threshold for a defined period of time. Furthermore, we have agreed to allow the settlement class to
participate in a rights offering under certain limited circumstances. The stipulation of settlement is subject to
Court approval. An accrual of $11.2 million was recorded as of December 31, 2004 related to the settlement.

On March 10, 2005, we completed the sale of the Wyndham Riverfront in New Orleans. All net proceeds
were used to pay down debt.

On March 11, 2005, we announced we have arranged to refinance our corporate credit facility and the
majority of our outstanding mortgage debt. We will refinance approximately $1.65 billion of our outstanding
debt. The refinancing, which is expected to close early in the second quarter 2005, provides an extension of
corporate debt maturity to 2011. Additionally, the debt pre-funds up to $100 million of capital to invest in our
owned properties.

Our History

Patriot American Hospitality, Inc. (“Patriot”) was formed on April 17, 1995 as a self-administered real
estate investment trust (“REIT™) to acquire equity interests in hotel properties. On October 2, 1995, Patriot
completed an initial public offering of its common stock and commenced its operations.

On July 1, 1997, Patriot merged into California Jockey Club (“Cal Jockey™). As part of this merger, Cal
Jockey and Bay Meadows Operating Company (“Bay Meadows”) entered into a paired share arrangement under
which both of their common stocks were paired and traded together. Also, Cal Jockey changed its name to
Patriot, and Bay Meadows changed its name to “Patriot American Hospitality Operating Company.”

In January 1998, Wyndham Hotel Corporation merged into Patriot and, as part of that merger, Patriot
American Hospitality Operating Company changed its name to “Wyndham International, Inc.” We will refer to
Wyndham International, Inc. as it existed before June 30, 1999 as “old Wyndham.”

During 1998, Patriot and old Wyndham grew primarily by acquiring hotels and other related businesses.
They financed these acquisitions with funds drawn on their revolving credit facilities and capital raised by
issuing paired shares and by having their two operating partnerships issue limited partnership interests.

On June 30, 1999, we restructured our organization. As part of this restructuring:

» Patriot became a wholly-owned subsidiary of ours;

+ we and Patriot terminated the paired share arrangement;

» each outstanding paired share was converted into one share of our class A common stock; and

* Patriot terminated its status as a REIT effective January 1, 1999 and became a taxable corporation as of
that date.

Also on June 30, 1999, we completed a $1 billion series B preferred stock equity investment, closed a new
credit facility (comprised of a senior credit facility and an increasing rate loan facility), which has since been
amended and restated, and closed on additional mortgage debt. Holders of our series B preferred stock are
entitled to a quarterly dividend on a cumulative basis at a rate of 9.75% per year of which a portion is payable in
additional shares of our series B preferred stock. Our series B preferred stock is convertible, at the holders’
option, into shares of our class B common stock. Also in 1999, we completed a rights offering of our series A
preferred stock, which, except for voting rights, has substantially similar terms to our series B preferred stock.
We used the proceeds of our series A preferred stock offering to redeem some of our series B preferred stock.
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Qur credit facility prohibits us from paying the cash portion of the preferred stock dividend until expiration
or further amendment of our credit facility. Under the terms of our preferred stock, if cash dividends are in
arrears and unpaid for a period of 60 days or more, an additional amount of dividends accrue at a rate per annum
of 2.0% of the stated amount of each share of preferred stock then outstanding from the last payment date on
which cash dividends were to be paid in full until all cash dividends in arrears have been paid in full. Such
additional dividends are cumulative and payable in additional shares of preferred stock. As of December 31,
2004, we had issued additional stock dividends of 936,073 shares of series A and series B preferred stock with a
value of $93.6 million because cash dividends totaling $102.3 million on the preferred stock had been in arrears
and unpaid for a period of more than 60 days.

Over the past several years we have sold, and we currently intend to sell, our non-strategic, non-convertible
assets. These are properties that did not fit our proprietary brand profile because of the quality of the assets or the
fact that they were encumbered by long-term licensing agreements with non-Wyndham brands. By disposing of
these assets, we will be able to focus solely on being a branded operating company, as well as reducing our debt
with the majority of the net proceeds from these asset sales. On December 30, 2004, we entered into a definitive
agreement to sell the 25 remaining non-strategic properties in our planned disposition program. We also entered
into an agreement to sell an additional property in a separate transaction. Since implementing this plan in June of
1999, we have sold approximately 185 non-strategic properties with gross proceeds of over $2.7 billion.

In 2002, we sold the following assets:

» seven hotels and an investment in a restaurant venture in separate transactions for aggregate net cash
proceeds of approximately $60.1 million after we repaid approximately $65.7 million of debt. Also, we
used $38.7 million of the net cash proceeds from the sales of the assets to pay down a portion of our
senior credit facility and increasing rate loans facility; and

« thirteen hotels in a single transaction for net cash proceeds of approximately $202.5 million, after we
repaid approximately $224.1 million of debt and placed $36.1 million in escrow under the terms of our
senior credit facility for application by us in the future to make payments on existing mortgage
indebtedness. Also, we used $127.6 million of the net cash proceeds from the sale of the assets to pay
down a portion of our senior credit facility and increasing rate loans facility. As of December 31, 2004,
all of the $36.1 million placed in escrow has been applied in payment of existing mortgage
indebtedness.

In 2003, we sold or terminated leases for the following assets:

» eighteen hotels, two parcels of undeveloped land and a golf venture were sold in separate transactions
for aggregate net cash proceeds of approximately $107.4 million, after the repayment of mortgage debt
of approximately $114.9 million. Also, we used $68.3 million of the net cash proceeds to pay down a
portion of the senior credit facility and increasing rate loans facility, and we retained the rest of the net
cash proceeds in accordance with the terms of the senior credit facilities; and

» Hospitality Properties Trust (“HPT”) terminated leases on 27 hotel properties (15 Summerfield Suites
by Wyndham™ and 12 Wyndham Hotels and Wyndham Garden Hotels) operated by two of our
subsidiaries. HPT subsequently rebranded the hotel properties to third-party brands.

In 2004, we sold or terminated leases for the following assets:

* investments in 39 hotels and certain undeveloped land were sold in separate transactions for net cash
proceeds of $308.7 million after payment of $313.2 million of mortgage debt. We used $297.4 million
of the net cash proceeds to pay down a portion of the senior credit facility and increasing rate loan
facility, and retained the rest of the net cash proceeds in accordance with the terms of the senior credit
facilities.




* the leases on six Summerfield Suites by Wyndham™ properties were terminated and the properties were
converted to long-term franchises on April 1, 2004. Approximately $22 million, which represented the
leases’ remaining book value, was considered impaired and written-off as of December 31, 2003.

On December 22, 2004, we formed a joint venture with LBREP to expand and develop Summerfield Suites
by Wyndham™, Wyndham’s upscale, extended-stay brand. The transaction included the sale of six Summerfield
Suites by Wyndham™ and the sale of an equity interest in the entity that owns our Summerfield brand to LBREP.

On December 30, 2004, we entered into an agreement to sell 25 non-strategic hotels to a partnership
comprised of a private investment fund managed by Goldman Sachs and affiliates of Highgate Holdings. The
purchase price of the transaction is $366 million. As part of the agreement, the 15 Wyndham-branded assets
included in the sale will remain in the brand’s portfolio pursuant to new franchise agreements. Impairments
totaling $333.5 million were recorded on certain of these 25 properties during 2004. Upon the close of the
transaction in 2005, a gain of approximately $33.9 million will be recorded on the remainder of the assets in the
portfolio. The sale is expected to close in the first quarter of 2005. We also entered into an agreement to sell an
additional property in a separate transaction. These transactions will complete our planned disposition program,
which began in June 1999.

On January 3, 2005, we completed the sale of the Doubletree Glenview to Lone Star Funds. The property
has been converted to a Wyndham hotel and will be operated by us under a long-term management agreement.

On March 10, 2005, we completed the sale of the Wyndham Riverfront in New Orleans. All net proceeds
were used to pay down debt.

Our Business Strengths

*  Strong Brand Name. Our proprietary brands all have at least a 20-year history and our Wyndham brand
is highly recognized in our industry. Our Wyndham brand, including Summerfield Suites by
Wyndham™, serves to identify high quality assets with a consistent and high level of customer service
and reliability.

*  Geographically Diverse Portfolio. To help mitigate the effects of regional downturns in the hotel
industry, we have assembled a geographically diverse portfolio of hotels and resorts.

*  Personalized Guest Experience. Through our innovative brand-enhancing program, Wyndham
ByRequest®, we are able to provide each ByRequest member a personalized stay experience. Based on
the member’s personal ByRequest profile, we arrange their guest room amenities before check-in. In
addition, Wyndham ByRequest® allows us to customize on-going communications with members and
tailor future travel benefits to our members’ ByRequest profile. At December 31, 2004, the program had
over 2.1 million members.

Our Business Strategy

We have been building our brand by growing our management and franchise business and implementing
innovative programs. Additionally, we have created brand operating efficiencies with revenue generation and
cost containment programs.

* Dispose of non-strategic assets. Over the past several years we have sold, and we currently intend to
sell, our non-strategic, non-convertible assets. These are properties that do not fit our proprietary brand
profile because of the quality of the assets or the fact that they were encumbered by long-term licensing
agreements with non-Wyndham brands. By disposing of these assets, we will be able to focus solely on
being a branded operating company, as well as reduce our debt with the majority of the net proceeds
from these asset sales. On December 30, 2004, we entered into a definitive agreement to sell the 25
remaining non-strategic properties in our planned disposition program. We also entered into an
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agreement to sell an additional property in a separate transaction. These transactions will successfully
complete our planned disposition program. Since implementing this plan in June of 1999, we have sold
approximately 185 non-strategic properties with gross proceeds of over $2.7 billion.

*  Grow our management and franchise business. We have and will continue to focus our growth efforts in
the area of new management and franchise contracts. This growth will enable us to expand our brand
distribution and increase our revenues through the fee income associated with these contracts. At
December 31, 2004, we had 42 management contracts, 48 franchise agreements and six hotels under a
strategic alliance. We are aggressively pursuing new management and franchise opportunities and will
continue to geographically target major metropolitan areas and resort destinations. We have extensive
experience in the lodging industry and we believe our industry knowledge, relationships and access to
market information provide us a competitive edge with respect to identifying, evaluating and signing
new hotel assets to the Wyndham brand.

*  Build the Wyndham brand. We continue to support and implement programs to differentiate the
Wyndham brand from our competitors.

+  Wyndham ByRequest®. Our innovative guest recognition program allows our guests to personalize
their stay at any of our branded properties. We customize on-going communication and future travel
benefits to our members’ profiles, which we believe builds loyalty to the Wyndham brand. We will
apply this successful model to other areas of the Company’s business to provide customers with an
even more personalized and meaningful hotel experience.

¢ Golden Door. Owned by Wyndham, the world’s premier spa brand will continue to expand at select
Wyndham resort properties. Additionally, we plan to launch a secondary spa brand, tied to the
Golden Door name, as well as expand our exclusive Golden Door Skin Care product line in high-
end retail outlets.

o Summerfield Suites by Wyndham™. The RevPAR leader in the extended-stay hotel segment,
Summerfield Suites by Wyndham is expected to grow substantially in the next 10 years, thereby
expanding Wyndham’s fee-based income.

*  Women On Their Way. Wyndham was the first hotel brand to dedicate an entire program to the
emerging female business travel market. Wyndham has focused on women business travelers as a
business opportunity since 1995 through its Women On Their Way initiative. The program has
facilitated proprietary relationships with leading women business organizations and through these
driven revenues for the brand. In celebration of the program’s 10th anniversary, Wyndham will
launch various promotions throughout 2005 to reinforce the Company’s long-standing commitment.

* Technology. Wyndham will continue to make advancements in its technology, whether through the
addition of Wi-Fi in every Wyndham guestroom; cutting-edge casino technology in its Puerto Rican
resorts; or continued enhancements to wyndham.com, making it easier to book a reservation while
offering more personalized features.

*  Operate efficiently. From a revenue generation standpoint, we have continued to streamline our sales
and booking efforts. All of our branded assets are under one global distribution code “WY”. This has
enabled our central reservations office to efficiently cross-sell our properties and, thus, achieve a greater
maximization of revenues. We have continued our cost containment programs. The programs include,
among other things, a permanent reduction in our workforce at both our corporate office and our
properties; and the renegotiation of service agreements and trade contracts.

Our Proprietary Brands

We market all of our proprietary products under the Wyndham brand umbrella, which includes four-star,
upper upscale hotels that offer full-service accommodations to business and leisure travelers, and a five-star
luxury resort brand. With hotels in major urban, suburban and resort markets, our Wyndham brand offers
products geared to the specific needs of travelers based on their location, facilities and travel purpose.
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Wyndham Hotels & Resorts®. This brand includes our principal proprietary brand of hotels and resorts. Qur
hotel brand features upper upscale, full-service hotels that contain an average of 300 hote} rooms, generally
between 15,000 and 315,000 square feet of meeting space and a full range of guest services and amenities for
business and leisure travelers as well as conferences and conventions. These hotels, which are located primarily
in the central business districts and dominant suburbs of major metropolitan markets, target business groups,
meetings and individual business and leisure travelers. These hotels offer elegantly appointed facilities and high
levels of quality guest service.

Our distinctive, full-service Wyndham resorts contain an average of 470 rooms and a full range of guest
services for leisure travelers and business groups. We are the largest owner/operator of resorts in the Caribbean
and Florida.

Wyndham Luxury Resorts®. This brand includes five-star, luxury hotel properties featuring between 60 and
200 rooms, numercus fine dining options and other luxury and recreational amenities. These luxury resorts
distinguish themselves by focusing on incorporating the local environment into every aspect of the property,
from decor to cuisine to recreation. Qur luxury resort collection includes the Golden Door®, one of the world’s
preeminent destination spas based in Escondido, California. Our luxury resorts are also located in Arizona,
California, Massachusetts and Mexico.

Wyndham Garden Hotels®. This brand includes hotels that are located principally near major airports and
suburban business districts and serve individual business travelers and small business groups. These full-service
hotels feature between 140 and 230 guest rooms, and include up to 6,500 square feet of meeting space. Their
amenities and services generally include a three-meal restaurant, signature Wyndham Garden® libraries, laundry
and room service.

Summerfield Suites by Wyndham™. This brand offers guests one of the highest quality lodging experiences
in the upper upscale, all-suites segment. Each suite contains a fully equipped kitchen, a spacious living room and
a private bedroom. Many of the suites feature two bedroom, two bath units. Each hotel also has a swimming
pool, exercise room and other amenities to serve business and leisure travelers. Each hotel features 90 to 200
suites in either interior or exterior corridor design.

Our Non-Proprietary Brands

Among our non-proprietary branded hotels, we own and/or operate 19 hotels aggregating over 5,100 rooms
under franchise or brand affiliations with nationally recognized hotel companies, including Hilton®, Hyatt®,
Radisson®, Holiday Inn®, Doubletree® and Marriott®. The majority of our non-proprietary branded hotels are
full-service hotels that operate in the upscale and upper upscale segments of the hotel industry. Our full-service
hotels generally offer a range of conference facilities and banquet space, food and beverage accommodations,
gift shops and recreational areas, including swimming pools. These hotels target both business and leisure
travelers, including meetings, groups and individuals.

Certain Risk Factors

An investment in our class A common stock is subject to the significant risks inherent in our business.
Readers should consider carefully the risks and uncertainties described below and the other information included
in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The occurrence of any of the events described below could affect our
business or cause our actual results to differ materially from those expressed in any forward-looking statements
made by us.

General Business Risks

We may fail to compete effectively and lose business. The profitability of our hotels is subject to general
economic conditions, competition, the desirability of particular locations, the relationship between supply of and
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demand for hotel rooms, and other factors. We generally operate in markets that contain numerous competitors
and our continued success will depend, in large part, upon our ability to compete in areas such as access,
location, quality of accommodations, amenities, specialized services, cost containment and, to a lesser extent, the
quality and scope of food and beverage services and facilities. Our operational and growth prospects also depend
on the strength and desirability of our brands and our ability to maintain positive relations with our employees.

Changes in supply and demand, and other conditions, in our industry may adversely affect our revenues and
profits. Our revenues and profitability may be adversely affected by (1) supply additions, (2) international,
national and regional economic conditions, (3) changes in travel patterns, (4) taxes and government regulations
that influence or determine wages, prices, interest rates, construction procedures and costs and (5) the availability
of capital to allow us and potential hotel owners to fund investments. In particular, over-building in one or more
sectors of our industry and/or in one or more geographic regions could lead to excess supply compared to
demand and a decrease in hotel occupancy and/or room rates.

A sluggish economy may adversely impact our financial results and growth. A sluggish economy, lack of
consumer confidence in the stock market and other national and world events, including acts of terrorism and/or
war, have created a significant amount of uncertainty about future prospects of national and world economies.
The overall long-term effect on us and the lodging industry is also uncertain. In the face of such uncertainty, we
developed and implemented a contingency plan focused particularly on cost management. We cannot predict
either the severity or duration of such economic declines, but weaker hotel performance will, in turn, have an
adverse impact on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We may be subject to risks related to internal control over financial reporting. Because of its inherent
limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Industry Risks

Our business is subject to operating risks common to the hotel industry. Our primary business is owning and
managing hotels. This business is subject to operating risks common to the hotel industry, including:

* competition for guests from other hotels, a number of which may have greater marketing and financial
resources and experience than us and our hotel management companies;

* increases in operating costs due to inflation and other factors, which may not be offset by increased
room rates;

* dependence on business and commercial travelers and tourism, which may fluctuate and be seasonal;
* increases in energy costs and other travel expenses, which may deter travelers; and

* adverse effects of general and local economic conditions.

These factors could adversely affect our ability to generate revenues, our financial condition and results of
operations.

We may be unable to obtain or transfer necessary operating licenses in hotel acquisitions. When we acquire
hotels or hotel operating companies, we may be unable to transfer certain operating licenses or obtain new
licenses in a timely manner, such as food and beverage licenses. Although hotels can sell alcoholic beverages
under interim licenses or licenses obtained before we acquire them, there can be no assurance that these licenses
will remain in effect until we (or the hotel management companies) obtain new licenses. If a hotel fails to have a
food and beverage license or other operating licenses, this failure would adversely affect the hotel’s ability to
generate revenues and could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.
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Consumers could develop brand loyalties to Internet based hotel reservation systems rather than to our
lodging brands. A percentage of our hotel rooms are booked through Internet travel intermediaries such as
Expedia.com, Hotel.com, Travelocity.com, Hotwire.com, Priceline.com and Orbitz.com. If this percentage
increases, these intermediaries may be able to obtain higher commissions, reduced room rates or other significant
contract concessions from us. Moreover, some of these Internet travel intermediaries are attempting to
commoditize hotel rooms by increasing the importance of price and general indicators of quality at the expense
of brand identification. These agencies hope that consumers will eventually develop brand loyalties to their
reservation systems rather than to lodging brands. If this occurs, it could adversely affect our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

Unexpected hotel renovation costs and capital expenditures could adversely affect our business. In general,
hotels have an ongoing need for renovations and other capital improvements, particularly in older structures,
including periodically replacing or refurbishing furniture, fixtures and equipment. Under the terms of our leases
with third parties and mortgages on owned hotels, we must establish a reserve to pay for certain capital
expenditures and for periodically replacing or refurbishing furniture, fixtures and equipment. If capital
expenditures exceed our expectations, this excess would have an adverse effect on our available cash. In addition,
we may acquire hotels that require significant renovation. When we renovate hotels, we incur risks, including the
risk of environmental problems, construction cost overruns and delays, uncertainties as to market demand after
we renovate, market demand deterioration after we begin renovating, and unanticipated competition emerging
from other hotels.

We face significant competition for hotel acquisition opportunities. We may be competing for hotel
acquisition opportunities with entities that have substantially greater financial resources. These entities may
generally be able to accept more risk than we can prudently manage, including risks of a hotel operator’s
creditworthiness or a target hotel’s geographic location. Competition may generally reduce the number of hotel
acquisition opportunities that we believe are suitable, which could adversely affect our ability to grow our
business.

We face significant competition for the acquisition of management and franchise contracts. We may be
competing for hotel management and franchise contracts with entities that have substantially greater financial
resources. Competition may generally reduce the number of hotel management and franchise contract
opportunities that we believe are suitable, which could adversely affect our ability to grow our business.

Seasonality of the hotel industry could make it difficult to predict the revenues of our various properties.
The hotel industry is seasonal in nature; however, the periods during which our hotel properties experience
higher revenues vary from property to property and depend predominantly on the property’s location. Our
revenues typically have been higher in the first and second quarters than in the third and fourth quarters.

Real Estate Risks

Changes in the real estate sector could adversely affect our operations. Our ability to generate revenues
from our hotels may be adversely affected by risks common to the ownership, leasing or operation of real
property, including:

» changes in national and international economic conditions;

» changes in local market conditions due to changes in general or local economic conditions and
neighborhood characteristics;

» changes in interest rates;
* changes in the availability, cost and terms of mortgage financing;
* the impact of present or future environmental legislation and compliance with environmental laws;

» the ongoing need for capital improvements, particularly in older structures;
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» changes in real estate tax rates and other operating expenses;

« adverse changes in governmental rules and fiscal policies;

* adverse changes in zoning laws;

* civil unrest or war;

« the impact of terrorist activity, threats of terrorist activity and responses thereto;

» acts of God, including earthquakes, hurricanes and other natural disasters (which may result in
uninsured losses); and

« other factors that are beyond our control.

We may be unable to sell properties when we want to because real estate investments are illiquid. Real
estate is a relatively illiquid asset. Therefore, our ability to respond to changes in economic and other conditions
will be limited. If we must sell a property, there can be no assurance that we will be able to dispose of it in the
time period we desire or that the sales price of any property will equal or exceed the amount of our initial
investment in the property.

We would be adversely affected if our property taxes increase. Our properties are subject to real property
taxes. The real property taxes on our properties may increase or decrease as property tax rates change and as the
value of the properties are assessed or reassessed by taxing authorities. Increases in property taxes may adversely
affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We may be unable to obtain consents of ground lessors required for the sale of certain hotels. Some of our
properties are subject to ground leases with third party lessors. In addition, we may acquire properties in the
future that are subject to ground leases. If we wish to sell a property that is subject to a ground lease or wish to
assign our leasehold interest in the ground lease, we may need the consent of third party lessors.

Environmental problems are possible and can be costly. Qur operating costs may be affected by the cost of
complying with existing and future environmental laws, ordinances and regulations. Under various federal, state
and local environmental laws, ordinances and regulations, we may be liable for the costs of removing or
remediating hazardous or toxic substances on, under, or in real property currently or previously owned or
operated by us. These laws often impose liability whether or not we knew of, or were responsible for, the
presence of hazardous or toxic substances. In addition, our ability to borrow by using real property as collateral
may be adversely affected by the presence of hazardous or toxic substances, or the failure to remediate the
property properly. By arranging for the transportation, disposal or treatment of hazardous or toxic substances, we
may also be liable for the costs of removing or remediating these substances at the disposal or treatment facility,
even if we never owned or operated the disposal or treatment facility. We could be held liable under
environmental laws used to impose liability for releases of hazardous materials, including asbestos-containing
materials, into the environment. Third parties may seek recovery from us for personal injuries associated with
exposure to hazardous materials on real property owned or operated by us. Environmental laws may also impose
restrictions on the manner in which we may use or transfer a property or in which we operate our business on a
property. In connection with our hotels, we may be potentially liable for any environmental costs. The cost of
defending against claims of liability or remediating contaminated property and the cost of complying with
environmental laws could materially adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.
Also, there may be material environmental liabilities or compliance concerns of which we are currently unaware.

Some potential losses are not covered by insurance. We maintain insurance coverage on all of our hotels.
Each of our leases with third parties and mortgages on owned hotels requires comprehensive insurance to be
maintained on each of the applicable hotels, including liability, fire and extended coverage. We believe this
specified coverage is of the type and amount customarily obtained for hotels. Leases or mortgages for
subsequently acquired hotels will contain similar provisions. However, there are certain types of losses, generally
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of a catastrophic nature caused by events such as earthquakes, floods, terrorism or war that may be uninsurable or
not economically insurable. We use our discretion in determining amounts, coverage limits and deductibility
provisions of insurance, with a view to maintaining appropriate insurance coverage on our investments at a
reasonable cost and on suitable terms. This may result in insurance coverage that, in the event of a substantial
loss, would not be sufficient to pay the full current market value or current replacement cost of the lost
investment. Inflation, changes in building codes and ordinances, environmental considerations and other factors
also might make it impractical to use insurance proceeds to replace the property after it has been damaged or
destroyed. Under these circumstances, the insurance proceeds received might not be adequate to restore our
economic position with respect to the damaged property.

Hotels that we acquire or develop may fail to perform according to our expectations. Under appropriate
circumstances, we may pursue acquisitions of additional hotels and hotel operating companies and may pursue
development opportunities. Acquisitions entail risks that the acquired hotels or hotel operating companies will
fail to perform according to our expectations or that our cost estimates to acquire, operate and market the
acquired properties will prove inaccurate. In addition, hotel development is subject to other risks, including risks
of construction delays or cost overruns that may increase project costs, new project commencement risks such as
receiving zoning, occupancy and other required governmental approvals and permits, and incurring development
costs for projects that are not pursued to completion.

Third party owners may terminate our management contracts. We manage hotels for third party owners
pursuant to management contracts. These contracts may be acquired, terminated, renegotiated or converted to
franchise agreements in the ordinary course of our business. In addition, the hotel property owner may terminate
these management contracts if we fail to meet certain performance standards, if the property is sold to a third
party, if the owner defaults on indebtedness encumbering the property, upon a foreclosure of the property, upon
the closing of the property or upon certain business combinations involving us in which our name or current
management team does not survive.

There can be no assurance that we will be able to replace terminated management contracts, or that the
terms of renegotiated or converted contracts will be as favorable as the terms that existed before such
renegotiations or conversion. We also will be subject to the risk that a hotel property owner will be unable to pay
management fees to us. In addition, in certain circumstances, we may be required to make loans to or capital
investments in hotel properties in connection with management contracts. If any of these hotel properties suffer
poor operating results or if we lose our management contract, we may not recover our loan or capital investment.

We could lose the right to operate hotels under franchise or brand affiliations. We operate some of our
hotels under franchise or brand affiliations. In addition, we may acquire hotels in the future that are operated
under franchise or brand affiliations. Each franchised hotel must meet specified operating standards and other
terms and conditions to continue its franchise license. The continued use of a brand generally depends upon the
continuation of the management agreement related to that hotel with the hotel’s management entity. Franchisors
typically inspect licensed properties periodically to confirm adherence to operating standards. Actions by us, our
affiliates or the hotel management entities could cause a breach of these standards or other terms and conditions
of a franchise license or the loss or cancellation of a franchise license. It is possible that a franchisor could
condition the continuation of a franchise license on the completion of capital improvements that we determine
are too expensive or otherwise unwarranted in light of general economic conditions or the operating results or
prospects of the affected hotel. In that event, we may elect to allow the franchise license to lapse, which could
result in our incurring significant termination costs. If a franchise or brand affiliation is terminated for any
reason, we may try to obtain a suitable replacement franchise or brand affiliation, or to operate the hotel
independent of a franchise or brand affiliation. If we lose a franchise or brand affiliation, we will lose the
associated name recognition, marketing support and centralized reservation systems provided by the franchisor or
brand owner. This loss could adversely affect the value of the hotel and our results of operations.
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Risks Relating to Gaming Operations

Qur gaming operations depend on decisions by gaming authorities. We own and operate casino gaming
facilities at E]1 San Juan, El Conquistador and Condado Plaza in Puerto Rico. Each of these gaming operations is
subject to extensive licensing, permitting and regulatory requirements administered by various governmental
entities.

Typically, gaming regulatory authorities have broad powers related to the gaming operations licenses. They
may revoke, suspend, condition or limit our gaming approvals and licenses, impose substantial fines and take
other actions, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our business and the value of our hotel/
casinos. Our directors, officers and some key employees are subject to licensing or suitability determinations by
various gaming authorities. If any of those gaming authorities were to find someone unsuitable, we would have to
sever our relationship with that person.

Volatility in the high-end gaming business could adversely impact our financial condition. The high-end
gaming business is more volatile than other forms of gaming. Fluctuations in customers’ high-end gaming
activities could have an adverse impact on our business, financial condition and results of operations. In addition,
a significant portion of our table gaming is attributable to a relatively small number of international customers. If
the most significant of these customers reduces or quits his or her gaming, it could have an adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of operations.

Casino renovations and capital improvements could adversely affect our gaming business. Renovations and
improvements can be affected by time delays in obtaining necessary governmental permits, legal challenges,
shortage of materials and labor, work stoppages and unanticipated cost increases. We attempt to schedule
renovations and improvements during traditionally lower occupancy periods in an effort to minimize disruption
to the casino’s operations.

Risks Relating to Our Indebtedness

We are substantially leveraged and have debt payments of approximately $144.8 million due in 2005 that
cannot be extended at our option. In 20035, we can elect to extend $540.3 million ($358.8 million for three
additional twelve-month periods and $181.5 for one additional twelve-month period) provided that there is not a
default under the loans and other minor conditions are met which are under our control. The remaining 2005
maturities represent $144.8 million related to separate loans collateralized by the Wyndham El Conquistador and
the Wyndham Reach and normal principal amortization. We believe we will be able to refinance these two loans
prior to their maturities in 2005, however there can be no assurance that we will be able to do so.

As of December 31, 2004, we had $2.2 billion of total indebtedness; comprised of (i) $68.6 million of
revolving credit availability under our revolving credit facility, (ii) $870.8 million of term loans I, (iii) $284.2
million of term loans I, (iv) $932.8 million of mortgage debt and (v) $41.1 million of capital lease obligations
and other debt. In addition, we may incur additional indebtedness in the future, subject to certain limitations
contained in the instruments and documents governing our indebtedness. Accordingly, we currently have
significant debt service obligations.

Our high degree of leverage could have important consequences to stockholders including the following: (i)
our ability to obtain additional financing for working capital, capital expenditures, future acquisitions, if any, and
general corporate or other purposes may be impaired, or any such financing may not be on terms favorable to us;
(ii) a substantial portion of our cash flow available from operations and investments after satisfying certain
liabilities arising in the ordinary course of business will be dedicated to the payment of principal and interest on
our indebtedness, thereby reducing funds that would otherwise be available to us; (iii) a substantial decrease in
net operating cash flow or an increase in our expenses could make it difficult for us to meet our debt service
requirements or force us to modify our operations; (iv) high leverage may place us at a competitive disadvantage
and may make us vulnerable to a downturn in our business or the economy generally; and (v) because a portion
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of our borrowings may be at variable rates of interest, we may be exposed to risks inherent in interest rate
fluctuations. As of December 31, 2004, $1.9 billion of our indebtedness was subject to variable interest rates.

Our ability to make scheduled payments of the principal of, or to pay interest on, or to refinance our
indebtedness and to satisfy our other debt obligations will depend on our future performance, which to a certain
extent will be subject to economic, financial, competitive and other factors beyond our control. There can be no
assurance that we will be able to meet our debt service obligations and, to the extent that we cannot, we may lose
some or all of our assets, including hotel properties. Adverse economic conditions could cause the terms on
which we borrow to worsen. Those circumstances, if we are in need of funds to repay indebtedness, could force
us to liquidate one or more investments in properties at times that may not permit realization of the maximum
return on those investments. The foregoing risks associated with our debt obligations may inhibit our ability to
raise capital in both the public and private markets and may have a negative impact on our credit rating.

Risks Relating to Dilution of Our Common Stock

The series A and series B preferred stock are ultimately convertible, at the holder’s option, into a number of
shares of Wyndham class A common stock equal to $100.00 divided by the conversion price, initially equal to
$8.59 but subject to potentia} downward adjustments.

Our credit facility, as amended, prohibits us from paying the cash portion of the preferred dividend until
expiration or further amendment of our credit facility. Under the terms of our preferred stock, if cash dividends
are in arrears and unpaid for a period of 60 days or more, then an additional amount of dividends accrue at a rate
per annum of 2.0% of the stated amount of each share of preferred stock then outstanding from the last payment
date on which cash dividends were to be paid in full until all cash dividends in arrears have been paid in full.
Such additional dividends are cumulative and payable in additional shares of preferred stock. During 2004, we
issued an additional stock dividend of 936,073 shares of series A and series B preferred stock with a value of
$93.6 million because cash dividends totaling $102.3 million on the preferred stock had been in arrears and
unpaid for a period of more than 60 days. As of December 31, 2004, the series A and series B preferred stock on
an “as converted” basis would equate to 184.1 million shares of class A common stock using an $8.59 conversion
price. The non-payment of the cash portion of the series A and series B preferred stock dividend is dilutive to the
current holders of class A common stock.

Employees

As of December 31, 2004, we employed approximately 18,500 employees. In our opinion, we have a good
relationship with our employees and we retain appropriate support personnel to manage our operations.

Available Information

We file annual, quarterly and special reports, proxy statements and other information with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”). Our SEC filings are available to the public at the SEC’s web site at http://
www.sec.gov. No information from this web page is incorporated by reference herein. Our web site is http://
www.wyndham.com. We make available free of charge on our website copies of our Annual Report on Form
10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and amendments to these reports as soon as
reasonably practicable after we have filed or furnished them to the SEC.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

We consider our hotels and resorts to be premier establishments with respect to desirability of location, size,
facilities, physical condition, quality and the variety of services offered in most of the areas in which they are
located. Although obsolescence arising from age and condition of facilities can adversely affect our properties,
we spend substantial funds to renovate and maintain the properties to remain competitive.
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The following table sets forth, for each of our owned and leased hotels as of December 31, 2004, the hotels
and number of rooms and, for the year ended December 31, 2004, total revenue, average daily rate, average
occupancy rate and revenue per available room.

Revenue
Number Average per

of Total Daily Available

Property Name (1) City State Rooms  Revenue Rate Occupancy Room
(Total Revenue in thousands)

Wyndham Hotels & Resorts®
Wyndham Anatole .. ................... Dallas TX 1,610  $100,948 $125.06 57.3% $ 71.67
Wyndham Andover (2) ................. Andover MA 293 $ 9,942 $ 90.23 57.5% $ 51.87
Wyndham Arlington (2) ................ Arlington X 310 $ 11,964 $ 96.62 63.1% $ 60.96
Wyndham Atlanta ..................... Atlanta GA 312 $ 11,569  $107.68 66.7% $ 7179
Wyndham Baltimore ................... Baltimore MD 707 $ 33,437 $121.04 69.2% $ 83.81
Wyndham Bel Age .................... West Hollywood  CA 200  § 15952 $157.05 86.6% $135.99
Wyndham Billerica .................... Billerica MA 210§ 5675 $ 8446 61.4% $ 51.89
Wyndham Boston ..................... Boston MA 362 $ 24,643 $158.55 87.4% $138.56
Wyndham Bristol Place .............. ... Toronto Ontario 287 $ 14,055 $ 93.19 78.0% $ 72.66
Wyndham Burlington .................. Burlington VT 256 $ 12,227 §111.87 83.3% $ 93.23
Wyndham Buttes Resort ................ Tempe AZ 353 $ 24,108 $117.69 81.7% $ 96.16
Wyndham Casa Marina Resort & Beach

House .......covviiiii i, Key West FL 311 $ 27,405 $196.45 83.6% $164.17
Wyndham Chicago .................... Chicago IL 417 $ 27,118 $140.15 85.1% $119.25
Wyndham City Center (2) ............... Washington DC 352 $ 18,783 $118.93 82.6% $ 98.20
Wyndham Commerce (2) ............... Commerce CA 201 $ 6995 $ 7691 82.6% $ 63.54
Wyndham Condado Plaza ............... San Juan PR 570 $ 65,028 $152.60 85.2% $129.99
Wyndham Dallas Market Center (2) ....... Dallas TX 228 $ 5664 § 86.06 57.9% $ 49.83
Wyndham Denver Tech Center ........... Denver CO 180 $ 4171 $ 70.28 60.1% $ 4221
Wyndham El Conquistador Resort &

CountryClub ....................... Fajardo PR 750 % 97,520 $203.68 74.5% $151.82
Wyndham E! San Juan Hotel & Casino . . ... San Juan PR 382 $ 65,642 $221.83 86.1% $190.90
Wyndham Emerald Plaza ............... San Diego CA 436 $ 22,949 $123.15 84.0% $103.40
Wyndham Ft. Lauderdale Airport ......... Dania FL 383 $ 12,752 $ 74.35 80.8% $ 60.07
Wyndham Grand Bay—Coconut

Grove (2) oo Miami FL 177 $ 9,790 $114.98 79.9% $ 91.91
Wyndham Harbour Island ............... Tampa FL 299 $ 16,345 $124.28 74.7% $ 92.90
Wyndham Harrisburg Hershey (2) ........ Harrisburg PA 348 $ 13437 $97.24 65.9% $ 64.11
Wyndham Indianapolis (2) .............. Indianapolis IN 171 $ 4662 $ 7090 74.2% $ 52.59
Wyndham Miami Beach Resort........... Miami FL 424 3 22779 $118.59 75.5% $ 89.54
Wyndham New Orleans . . ............... New Orleans LA 438 $ 29,827 $154.51 82.3% $127.11
Wyndham Newark (2) .................. Newark NJ 396  § 14202 $ 78.13 75.4% $ 58.89
Wyndham Northwest Chicago ... ......... Ttasca IL 408  $ 24203 $103.00 59.9% $ 61.65
‘Wyndham Palace Resort & Spa . .......... Lake Buena Vista FL 1,012 $ 67,954 $126.90 83.3% $105.69
Wyndham Peaks Resort & Golden Door

SPa Telluride cO 174 $ 14,348  $207.44 60.2% $124.91
Wyndham Philadelphia at Franklin Plaza ... Philadelphia PA 757 $ 38,747 3108.06 68.3% $ 73.80
Wyndham Pittsburgh Airport (2) .......... Coraopolis PA 314 $ 11,957 $ 77.15 74.3% $ 5734
Wyndham Reach Resort ................ Key West FL 150 $ 13456 $198.77 84.4% $167.67
Wyndham Richmond Airport ............ Richmond VA 155 $ 4500 $ 6587 78.7% $ 51.83
Wyndham Riverfront (3) ................ New Orleans LA 202 $ 43839 $12741 68.2% $ 86.85
Wyndham Rose Hall Resort & Country

Club ... Montego Bay Jamaica 488 $ 29,480 $105.63 86.3% $ 91.12
Wyndham Syracuse (2) ................. Syracuse NY 250 $ 10,724 $ 78.01 77.7% $ 60.62
Wyndham Toledo (2) ................... Toledo OH 241 $ 7494 $ 7251 67.7% $ 49.08
Wyndham Washington, D.C. ............. Washington DC 400 $ 23,376  $130.05 83.9% $109.07
Wyndham Westborough (2) ............. Westborough MA 223 $ 9,897 $ 96.16 65.5% $ 6295
Wyndham Westshore (2) ................ Tampa FL 322 $ 15,616 $ 88.36 81.6% $ 72.08
The Wyndham New York ............... New York NY 132 $ 2,656 $183.68 81.9% $150.51
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Revenue

Number Average per
of Total Daily Available
Property Name (1) City S_tfx_tf Rooms  Revenue Rate Occupancy Room
(Total Revenue in thousands)

Wyndham Luxury Resorts®
Carmel Valley Ranch—A Wyndham Luxury

RESOIt . oottt Carmel Valley CA 144 $17,222  $218.51 75.1% $164.08
The Boulders—A Wyndham Luxury

RESOt . . oo Carefree AZ 160 $42,329  $268.86 77.8% $209.27
Wyndham Garden Hotels®
Wyndham Garden Hotel— LaGuardia . . .. .. East Elmhurst NY 229 $ 8721 $10471 82.3% $ 86.15
Wyndham Garden Hotel-—Las Colinas (2) ... Irving TX 168 $ 3,846 3 75.08 68.3% $ 5129
Non-Proprietary Branded Properties
Doubletree Des Plaines (2) ............... Des Plaines IL 246 $ 538 $ 7514 64.6% $ 48.51
Doubletree Glenview . ................... Glenview L 252 $ 7,510 $ 8594 65.2% $ 56.04
Doubletree Park Place (2) ................ Minneapolis MN 297 $10,186  § 88.46 62.9% $ 55.68
Doubletree Tallahassee (2) ............... Tallahassee FL 244 $ 8,640  $102.43 70.1% $ 71.82
Hilton Cleveland (2) .............cov.... Independence OH 191 $ 8391 $87.22 59.0% $ 5148
Hilton Denver (2) . ......ovvviviennnn.n Greenwood Village CO 305 $ 8252 % 80.77 52.1% $ 42,12
HiltonNewark (2) ...........covivtn . Newark NJ 253 $11,792 $129.22 69.9% $ 90.38
Holiday Inn Houston (2) ................. Houston X 193 $ 2327 $ 59098 41.9% $ 25.15
Hyatt Lexington (2) . ........ ..o, Lexington KY 365 $12,652  $ 92.62 53.8% $ 49.80
Marriott Atlanta North Central (2) ......... Atlanta GA 287 $ 9627 $ 9284 59.4% $ 55.18
Park Shore .......... ... ... .. ... Honolulu HI 226 $ 6,725 $86.17 77.5% $ 66.82
Park Plaza New Orleans . ................ New Orleans LA 759 316,686 3 84.09 54.2% $ 4559
Radisson Town & Country (2) ............ Houston X 173 $ 3492 $79.04 53.0% $ 41.86
Other
GoldenDoorSpa ....................... Escondido CA

(1)} See “Schedule III-Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation™ on page F-48 for encumbrances, if any, associated with these assets.

(2) On December 30, 2004, we entered into a definitive agreement to sell these non-strategic hotels to a partnership comprised of a private
investment fund managed by Goldman Sachs and affiliates of Highgate Holdings. All 15 Wyndham-branded assets included in the
transaction will remain in the brand’s portfolio pursuant to new franchise agreements. The transaction is expected to close during the first
quarter of 2005.

(3) We have entered into an agreement to sell this property. The transaction is expected to close during the first quarter of 2005.

Total Portfolio
Strategic

Owned Leased Managed Franchised Alliance Total
Wyndham Hotels & Resorts® . .................... 38 5 25 16 6 90
Wyndham Luxury Resorts® .. ..................... 2 — 3 — — 5
Wyndham Garden Hotels® .. ...................... 2 — 2 14 — 18
Summerfield Suites by Wyndham™ ................. — — 6 18 — 24
Proprietary Branded Hotels—Subtotal ... ............ 42 5 36 48 6 137
Non-Proprietary Branded Hotels ................... 13 — 6 — — 19
TOtAl et 55 5 4 48 6 156
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Franchise and Brand Affiliations

As of December 31, 2004, all but two of our owned hotels are operated under franchise or brand affiliations
with nationally recognized hotel companies. Franchisors and brand operators provide a variety of benefits for our
hotels, including national advertising, publicity and other marketing programs designed to increase brand
awareness, training of personnel, continuous review of quality standards and centralized reservation systems. We
generally are the licensee under the franchise agreements related to such hotels. Under these franchise
agreements, franchise royalties and fees generally range up to approximately 10% of room revenue. The duration
of these franchise agreements vary, but generally may be terminated upon prior notice or upon payment of
certain specified fees.

Management of Hotels

As of December 31, 2004, we managed 42 hotels for third party owners pursuant to management
agreements under which we are responsible for the day-to-day operations of these hotels. Of these managed
hotels, we managed 36 hotels under our proprietary brands and six hotels under non-proprietary brands. The day-
to-day operations of these hotels include managing hotel accommodations, meeting rooms and food and beverage
services as well as hiring and training staff, planning and providing sales and marketing services, purchasing
operating supplies, inventories and furniture, fixtures and equipment, providing routine repairs and maintenance,
and performing hotel accounting functions, including the preparation of monthly financial statements.
Management fees generally range up to approximately 5% of total revenue per managed hotel. The terms of the
management agreements vary from hotel to hotel, but range from five to 20 years. As of December 31, 2004, the
average remaining term for the management agreements was approximately 6.6 years.

Strategic Alliance

On December 1, 2003, we entered into a strategic alliance agreement with Viva Resorts. The 10-year
agreement encompasses six Viva Wyndham Resorts located in the Bahamas, Mexico and the Dominican
Republic. Viva Wyndham Caribbean properties consist of the 276-room Viva Wyndham Fortuna Beach—Grand
Bahama Island, The Bahamas; the 500-room Viva Wyndham Dominicus Beach—La Romana, Dominican
Republic; the 330-room Viva Wyndham Dominicus Palace—ILa Romana, Dominican Republic; and the
223-room Viva Wyndham Tangerine—Cabarete, Dominican Republic. The Viva Wyndham Mexican properties
include the 400-room Viva Wyndham Maya—Playa del Carmen, Mexico and the 234-room Viva Wyndham
Azteca—Playa del Carmen, Mexico. The Viva Wyndham properties incorporate Wyndham brand standards and
our guest recognition program, Wyndham ByRequest®,

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

On May 7, 1999, Doris Johnson and Charles Dougherty filed a lawsuit in the Northern District of California
against Patriot, Wyndham, their respective operating partnerships and PaineWebber Group, Inc. This action,
Johnson v. Patriot American Hospitality, Inc., et al., No. C-99-2153, was commenced on behalf of all former
holders of Bay Meadows stock during a class period from June 2, 1997 to the date of filing. The action asserts
securities fraud claims and alleges that the purported class members were wrongfully induced to tender their
shares as part of the Patriot/Bay Meadows merger based on a fraudulent prospectus. The action seeks unspecified
damages and further alleges that defendants continued to defraud shareholders about their intentions to acquire
numerous hotels and saddle the company with massive debt during the class period. Three other actions against
the same defendants subsequently were filed in the Northern District of California: (i) Ansell v. Patriot American
Hospitality, Inc., et al., No. C-99-2239 (filed May 14, 1999), (ii) Sola v. PaineWebber Group, Inc., et al., No. C-
99-2770 (filed June 11, 1999), and (iii) Gunderson v. Patriot American Hospitality, Inc., et al., No. C 99-3040
(filed June 23, 1999). Another action with substantially identical allegations, Susnow v. Patriot American
Hospitality, Inc., et al., No. 3-99-CV1354-T (filed June 15, 1999) also subsequently was filed in the Northern
District of Texas. By order of the Judicial Panel on Multidistrict Litigation, these actions along with certain
actions identified below have been consolidated in the Northern District of California for consolidated pretrial
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purposes. On or about October 13, 2000, the defendants moved to dismiss the actions. On or about August 15,
2001, the Court granted Defendants’ motions to dismiss the action, dismissing some of the claims with prejudice
and granting leave to replead certain other claims in the Complaint. On or about October 15, 2001, plaintiff filed
an amended complaint seeking substantially the same relief as in the original complaint. On or about December
20, 2001, the defendants moved to dismiss the amended complaint. On or about September 3, 2002, the Court
granted in part and denied in part Defendants’ motion to dismiss. The Court did not dismiss certain of Plaintiffs’
claims under Section 11 of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 12(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
An answer to the complaint has been filed and the parties have been exchanging discovery. The Court has not yet
certified a class. On or about February 28, 2005, the parties entered into a stipulation of settlement. Pursuant to
the stipulation of settlement, we shall issue 11 million shares of Wyndham common stock to the proposed
settlement class. We also have agreed to contribute a maximum amount of $1 million to the settlement class, only
in the event that the trading price of Wyndham common stock falls below a certain threshold for a defined period
of time. Furthermore, we have agreed to allow the settlement class to participate in a rights offering under certain
limited circumstances. The stipulation of settlement is subject to Court approval. As of December 31, 2004, we
have recorded a reserve of $11.2 million to cover the cost of the settlement.

On or about June 22, 1999, a lawsuit captioned Levitch v. Patriot American Hospitality, Inc., et al., No.
3-99-CV1416-D, was filed in the Northern District of Texas against Patriot, Wyndham, James D. Carreker and Paul
A. Nussbaum. This action asserts securities fraud claims and alleges that, during the period from January 5, 1998 to
December 17, 1998, the defendants defrauded shareholders by issuing false statements about the company. The
complaint sought unspecified damages and was filed on behalf of all shareholders who purchased Patriot American
and Wyndham stock during that period. Three other actions, Gallagher v. Patriot American Hospitality, Inc., et al.,
No. 3-99-CV1429-1, filed on June 23, 1999, David Lee Meisenburg, et al. v. Patriot American Hospitality, Inc.,
Wyndham International, Inc., James D. Carreker, and Paul A. Nussbaum Case No. 3-99-CV1686-X, filed July 27,
1999 and Deborah Szekely v. Patriot American Hospitality, Inc., et al., No. 3-99-CV1866-D, filed on or about
August 27, 1999, allege substantially the same allegations. By orders of the Judicial Panel on Multidistrict
Litigation, these actions have been consolidated with certain other shareholder actions and transferred to the
Northern District of California for consolidated pretrial purposes. On or about October 20, 2000, the defendants
moved to dismiss the actions. On or about August 15, 2001, the Court granted Defendants’ motions to dismiss the
action, dismissing some of the claims with prejudice and granting leave to replead certain other claims in the
Complaint. On or about October 15, 2001, plaintiff filed an amended complaint seeking substantially the same relief
as in the original complaint. On or about December 20, 2001, the defendants moved to dismiss the amended
complaint. On or about September 3, 2002, the Court dismissed in its entirety the complaint and granted plaintiffs
leave to amend. On or about December 2, 2002, plaintiffs filed an amended complaint. The Court has not yet
certified a class. On or about September 30, 2004, the parties entered into a stipulation of settlement with class
counsel to settle the litigation. The stipulation of settlement is subject to Court approval. Pursuant to the stipulation
of settlement, we shall pay $2.5 million in cash when an order is entered by the Court preliminarily approving the
proposed settlement and an additional $2.5 million on or before the second anniversary of the final Court approval.
As of December 31, 2004, we have recorded an adequate reserve to cover the cost of the settlement.

On May 29, 2002, the State of Florida Office of the Attorney General Department of Legal Affairs filed a
lawsuit in Leon County, Florida (Case No. 02-CA-1296) naming us, Patriot, and four current or former
Wyndham employees as defendants. In this case, the Attorney General alleged that the imposition of energy
surcharges, resort fees and automatic service fees violates the State’s Deceptive and Unfair Trade Practices Act.
We filed a motion to dismiss this suit, which was granted in part, and two of the individual defendants have been
dismissed. The Attorney General seeks damages, penalties and attorneys’ fees from the remaining defendants.
We intend to vigorously defend this lawsuit. Discovery is on-going. This suit may not be resolved for a number
- of years and it is not possible to predict the ultimate cost to us. However, the Court has stated its preliminary
interpretation of the applicable penalty statute. The Attorney General has argued that the statute should be
construed such that the maximum penalty would be $10,000 each time a consumer was allegedly deceived.
Pursuant to the Court’s construction, if the Attorney General’s Office fully prevails on its claims that Wyndham
willfully engaged in a deceptive trade practice by charging energy fees, the maximum penalty that could be
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imposed is $10,000 (exclusive of actual damages or attorneys’ fees). In the event a final judgment is entered in
favor of Wyndham, the Attorney General will likely appeal.

On June 20, 2002, plaintiffs in the case entitled Roller-Edelstein, et al. v. Wyndham International, Inc., et al.,
filed an amended complaint in Dallas County District Court (case no. 02-04946-A) alleging that supplemental fees
charged to hotel guests constituted common law fraud, breach of contract and violated Texas’ Deceptive Trade
Practices Act. The plaintiffs claim to represent a nationwide class and have estimated damages in excess of $10
million. We have answered this complaint, but little formal discovery has been taken and the Court has not yet
certified a class. We have tentatively agreed to settle this case, without admitting liability. Under the proposed
settlement, we would (i) provide a coupon for discounts at our properties to affected class members, (ii) make a
$50,000 charitable donation, (iii) pay attorneys’ fees in an amount up to $240,000, and (iv) agree to make changes
in our disclosures regarding resort fees. The Court has not yet held a hearing on the joint motion to preliminarily
approved the settlement and certify a settlement class. As of December 31, 2004, we have recorded an adequate
reserve to cover the cost of the settlement.

On or about June §, 2003, the Massachusetts Office of the Attorney General notified Wyndham that a
complaint had been filed with its Fair Labor and Practices Division against Wyndham’s Westborough,
Massachusetts location. According to the Office of the Attorney General, the complaint alleged that Wyndham-
Westborough had violated certain provisions of Massachusetts’ wage payment laws (Massachusetts General
Statutes ¢. 149, § 152A) by failing to remit to its employees all amounts owed by statute. On or about January 2,
2004, Wyndham received notice of a second Attorney General complaint also alleging a violation of ¢. 149,

§ 152A, this time with respect to all of Wyndham’s Massachusetts hotels. Although we intend to vigorously
defend against these complaints, we have nevertheless fully cooperated with the Attorney General’s office by
providing it with documents and other information in hopes of quickly resolving these matters. Because the
Office of the Attorney General does not disclose the names of complainants, it is unclear who the complainants
are, and how many are involved. The focus of the investigation has been distribution of “service charges” to
service employees. Wyndham Westborough’'s Massachusetts counsel and counsel for seven Wyndham
Westborough employees have settled all charges involving “service charge” issues and we are in receipt of
settlement agreements signed by all seven potential plaintiffs and their attorney. A number of Wyndham
Westborough employees and ex-employees who are not represented by counsel have also sought payment of
“service charges” collected by the hotel. In each instance in which the subject has been raised, Wyndham
Westborough has made distributions to these individuals in return for their execution of a settlement agreement.

We are a party to a number of other claims and lawsuits arising out of the normal course of business.
However, we do not consider the ultimate liability with respect to these other claims and lawsuits to be material
in relation to our consolidated financial condition or operations.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted during the fourth quarter of 2004 to a vote of our stockholders, through the
solicitation of proxies or otherwise.
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PART II
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES
Market Information

The following table sets forth the quarterly high and low sale prices per share of our class A common stock
as reported on the American Stock Exchange (symbol “WBR”) from January 1, 2003 to December 31, 2004,

Per Share
E ﬂ Dividend
2003:
FIrst QUAITEL . . oottt et et e e e e e $ .30 $.15 —
Second QUAMTET . ..o ittt et $ .76 $.17 —
Third QUArter . ... .ottt e $ .75 $35 —
Fourth QUarter . .......... ittt i i et et et $ 87 $.54 —
2004:
FArst QUarter . . oottt e e $1.54 $.66 —
Second QUATTET .. .....ciiiiir ettt $1.26 $.81 —
Third QUArtEr . ... ... et $1.05 $.70 —
Fourth Quarter . .......... .ttt i e et et $1.28 $.62 —_—
Holders

As of March 8, 2005, there were 2,089 record holders of our class A common stock, including shares held in
“street name” by nominees who are record holders, and approximately 24,000 stockholders.

Dividends

We do not anticipate paying a dividend to our common stockholders and we are prohibited under the terms
of our credit facilities from paying dividends on our class A common stock. For the six year period beginning
September 30, 1999, dividends on our series A and series B preferred stock are payable partly in cash and partly
in additional shares of our series A and series B preferred stock, with the cash portion aggregating $29.25 million
per year, so long as there is no redemption or conversion of our series A and series B preferred stock. For the
following four years, dividends are payable in cash or additional shares of our series A or series B preferred
stock, as the case may be, as determined by our board of directors. After year ten, dividends are payable solely in
cash.

We are prohibited under the terms of the January 24, 2002 amendments to the senior credit facility and
increasing rate loans facility from paying cash dividends on the series A and series B preferred stock. As of
December 31, 2004, we have deferred payments of the cash portion of the preferred stock dividend totaling
approximately $102.3 million. This amount is shown as dividends payable in the balance sheet as of December
31, 2004. In addition, according to the terms of our series A and series B preferred stock, if the cash dividends on
the preferred stock are in arrears and unpaid for at least 60 days, then an additional amount of dividends will
accrue at an annual rate of 2.0% of the stated amount of each share of preferred stock then outstanding from the
last payment date on which cash dividends were to be paid in full until the cash dividends in arrears have been
paid in full. These additional dividends are cumulative and payable in additional shares of preferred stock. As of
December 31, 2004, we have issued an additional stock dividend of 936,073 shares of series A and series B
preferred stock with a value of $93.6 million.

Shares Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

Please see “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” under Item 12 of this Form
10-K for information regarding shares authorized for issuance under our equity compensation plans.
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Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

None

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Affiliated Purchasers

We did not have any issuer purchases of equity securities for the quarter ended December 31, 2004.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following tables set forth selected condensed consolidated historical financial information. This
financial information should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified in its entirety by, our historical
financial statements and notes thereto included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Our selected
financial and other data for 2004, 2003, 2002, 2001 and 2000 have been derived from our consolidated financial
statements. Certain prior year balances have been reclassified to reflect discontinued operations to conform to the
current year presentation with no effect on previously reported amounts of net income or retained earnings.

WYNDHAM INTERNATIONAL, INC.

Selected Condensed Consolidated Historical Financial Data

Year Ended December 31,
2004(1) 2003 2002 2001 2000
(Restated) (in thousands, except per share data)
Operating Data:
Total TEVENUE ..ot oot it et $ 965,514 $ 825,757 $ 837,025 $ 861,253 $ 985,361
Loss from continuing operations before income
taxes and minority interest . . ............... (117,357)  (139,462)  (236,290) (244,313)  (173,030)
Loss from continuing operations .............. (127,089) (90,700)  (144,490)  (135,733) (146,435)
(Loss) income from discontinued operations .. .. (385,827)  (298,912) (53,834) 7,158 (178,236)
Loss before accounting change ............... (512,916)  (389,612)  (198,324)  (128,575) (324,671)
Netloss ..ot i $ (512,916) $ (389,612) $ (522,426) $ (138,940) $ (324,671)
Per Share Data:
Basic and diluted loss per common share:
Loss from continuing operations .......... $ (1.75) $ (146) $ (1.72) $ (1.54) $ (1.49)
(Loss) income from discontinued operations,
netoftaxes ................c.ouunn.. (2.28) (1.78) (0.32) 0.04 (1.07)
Accounting change, netof taxes .......... — — (1.93) (0.06) —
Net loss per common share (2) (3) ........ $ (4.03) $ 324) $ 397 % (1.56) $ (2.56)
Cash Flow Data:
Cash provided by operating activities .......... $ 45445 $ 62,609 $§ 76508 §$ 158359 § 246,838
Cash provided by (used in) investing activities . . . 585,558 137,197 425,692 (63,427) 37,272
Cash (used in) provided by financing activities .. (669,302)  (174,601) (630,972) 18,134 (383,397)
As of December 31,
2004(1) 2003 2002 2001 2000
(Restated) (in thousands)
Balance Sheet Data:
Investment in real estate and related
improvements at cost,net ................. $2,032,965 $2,938,808 $3,611,456 $4,399,256 $3,515,223
Totalassets . ..........c.ovviienerinnnn.n. 2,790,489 3,800,252 4,473458 5,769,953 6,066,899
Totaldebt ............. ... .. ... .. .. ... ... 2,197,486 2,681,959 2,826,543 3,445,995 3,398,950
Minority interest in Operating Partnerships ... .. 20,559 21,289 21,368 21,416 21,416
Minority interest in other consolidated
subsidiaries ............... ... ... ..., 63,001 39,981 38,518 91,657 164,906
Shareholders’ equity ............... ... ..... 115,887 650,073 1,062,379 1,588,221 1,794,187

20




Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
(Restated) (in thousands, except ratios)
Other Data:
Weighted average number of common shares
outstanding . ... ... e 169,128 168,128 167,943 167,698 167,308
Ratio of earnings (losses) to fixed charges .............. 0.39 0.17 0.21) 0.08 0.43
Deficiency of earnings to fixed charges ................ $117,357 $139,462 $236,290 $244,313 $173,030

Notes to Selected Financial Information

(1) The information contained in the selected financial data has been restated for 2004. As discussed in Note 2b
of the notes to the consolidated financial statements appearing elsewhere herein, the restatement reflects
adjustments to correct certain errors in the Company’s accounting for income taxes as well as other
miscellaneous adjustments. The restatement resulted in the Company adjusting its previously reported 2004
net loss of $509,446 ($4.01 per share) to net Joss of $512,916 ($4.03 per share).

(2) For 2004, we did not include in our computation of diluted earnings per share the effect of unvested stock
grants of 11,307,186 and 184,077,753 shares of our series A and series B preferred stock because they are
anti-dilutive. For 2003, we did not include in our computation of diluted earnings per share the effect of
unvested stock grants of 13,241,106 and 167,906,293 shares of our series A and series B preferred stock
because they are anti-dilutive. For 2002, we did not include in our computation of diluted earnings per share
the effect of unvested stock grants of 13,708,395 and 153,325,020 shares of our series A and series B
preferred stock because they are anti-dilutive. For 2001, we did not include in our computation of diluted
earnings per share the dilutive effect of unvested stock grants of 4,613,000 and 138,592,000 shares of our
series A and series B preferred stock because they are anti-dilutive. For 2000, we did not include in our
computation of diluted earnings per share the dilutive effect of unvested stock grants of 645,000, the option
to purchase 104,000 shares of our class A common stock and 129,073,000 shares of our series A and series
B preferred stock because they are anti-dilutive.

(3) For 2004, we did not include in our computation of diluted earnings per share outstanding options to purchase
7,148,568 shares of our class A common stock at prices ranging from $0.95 to $30.40 because the options’
exercise prices were greater than the average market price of our class A common shares and, therefore, the
effect would be anti-dilutive. For 2003, we did not include in our computation of diluted earnings per share
outstanding options to purchase 8,214,628 shares of our class A common stock at prices ranging from $0.48 to
$30.40 because they are anti-dilutive. For 2002, we did not include in our computation of diluted earnings per
share outstanding options to purchase 9,683,681 shares of our class A common stock at prices ranging from
$0.85 to $30.40 because they are anti-dilutive. For 2001, we did not include in our computation of diluted
earnings per share outstanding options to purchase 10,853,511 shares of our class A common stock at prices
ranging from $1.75 to $30.40 because they are anti-dilutive. For 2000, we did not include in our computation
of diluted earnings per share outstanding options to purchase 10,639,174 shares of our class A common stock
at prices ranging from $2.0625 to $30.40 because they are anti-dilutive.

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

As discussed in Note 2b of the notes to the consolidated financial statements, the following information has
been restated to reflect adjustments to correct certain errors in the Company’s accounting for income taxes as
well as other miscellaneous adjustments. As a result, all affected amounts herein have been restated. The
restatement resulted in the Company adjusting its previously reported 2004 net loss of $509,446 ($4.01 per share)
to net loss of $512,916 ($4.03 per share).

Background
Organization

Patriot American Hospitality, Inc. (*Patriot”) was formed on April 17, 1995 as a self-administered real
estate investment trust (“REIT”) to acquire equity interests in hotel properties. On October 2, 1995, Patriot
completed an initial public offering of its common stock and commenced its operations.
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On July 1, 1997, Patriot merged into California Jockey Club (“Cal Jockey”). As part of this merger, Cal
Jockey and Bay Meadows Operating Company (“Bay Meadows”) entered into a paired share arrangement under
which both of their common stocks were paired and traded together. Also, Cal Jockey changed its name to
Patriot, and Bay Meadows changed its name to “Patriot American Hospitality Operating Company.”

In January 1998, Wyndham Hotel Corporation merged into Patriot and, as part of that merger, Patriot
American Hospitality Operating Company changed its name to “Wyndham International, Inc.” We will refer to
Wyndham International, Inc. as it existed before June 30, 1999 as “old Wyndham.” Patriot and old Wyndham
grew primarily by acquiring hotels and other related businesses. They financed these acquisitions with funds
drawn on their revolving credit facilities and capital raised by issuing paired shares and by having their two
operating partnerships issue limited partnership interests.

On June 30, 1999, we restructured our organization. As part of this restructuring:

¢ Patriot became a wholly-owned subsidiary of ours;

» we and Patriot terminated the paired share arrangement;

* each outstanding paired share was converted into one share of our class A common stock; and

»  Patriot terminated its status as a REIT effective January 1, 1999 and became a taxable corporation as of
that date.

Also on June 30, 1999, we completed a $1 billion series B preferred stock equity investment, closed a new
credit facility (comprised of a senior credit facility and an increasing rate loan facility), which has since been
amended and restated, and closed on additional mortgage debt. Holders of our series B preferred stock are
entitled to a quarterly dividend on a camulative basis at a rate of 9.75% per year of which a portion is payable in
additional shares of our series B preferred stock. Our series B preferred stock is convertible, at the holders’
option, into shares of our class B common stock. Also in 1999, we completed a rights offering of our series A
preferred stock, which, except for voting rights, has substantially similar terms to our series B preferred stock.
We used the proceeds of our series A preferred stock offering to redeem some of our series B preferred stock.

Our credit facility prohibits us from paying the cash portion of the preferred dividend until expiration or
further amendment of our credit facility. Under the terms of our preferred stock, if cash dividends are in arrears
and unpaid for a period of 60 days or more, an additional amount of dividends accrue at a rate per annum of 2.0%
of the stated amount of each share of preferred stock then outstanding from the last payment date on which cash
dividends were to be paid in full until all cash dividends in arrears have been paid in full. Such additional
dividends are cumulative and payable in additional shares of preferred stock. As of December 31, 2004, we had
issued an additional stock dividend of 936,073 shares of series A and series B preferred stock with a value of
$93.6 million because cash dividends totaling $102.3 million on the preferred stock had been in arrears and
unpaid for a period of more than 60 days.

On January 28, 2005, Mercury Special Situations Fund LP and Equity Resource Dover Fund LP issued a
tender offer to purchase all outstanding shares of our series A preferred stock. The offer was amended on
February 28, 2005 to extend the expiration date to March 14, 2005.

Asset Dispositions and Lease Terminations

Over the past several years we have sold, and we currently intend to sell, our non-strategic, non-convertible
assets. These are properties that did not fit our proprietary brand profile because of the quality of the assets or the
fact that they were encumbered by long-term licensing agreements with non-Wyndham brands. By disposing of
these assets, we will be able to focus solely on being a branded operating company, as well as reducing our debt
with the majority of the net proceeds from these asset sales. On December 30, 2004, we entered into a definitive
agreement to sell the 25 remaining non-strategic properties in our planned disposition program. Since
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implementing this plan in June of 1999, we have sold approximately 185 non-strategic properties with gross
proceeds of over $2.7 billion.

In 2002, we sold the following assets:

» seven hotels and an investment in a restaurant venture in separate transactions for aggregate net cash
proceeds of approximately $60.1 million after we repaid approximately $65.7 million of debt. Also, we
used $38.7 million of the net cash proceeds from the sales of the assets to pay down a portion of our
senior credit facility and increasing rate loans facility; and

 thirteen hotels in a single transaction for net cash proceeds of approximately $202.5 million, after we
repaid approximately $224.1 million of debt and placed $36.1 million in escrow under the terms of our
senior credit facility for application by us in the future to make payments on existing mortgage
indebtedness. Also, we used $127.6 million of the net cash proceeds from the sale of the assets to pay
down a portion of our senior credit facility and increasing rate loans facility. As of December 31, 2004,
all of the $36.1 million placed in escrow has been applied in payment of existing mortgage
indebtedness.

In 2003, we sold'or terminated leases for the following assets:

+ eighteen hotels, two parcels of undeveloped land and a golf venture were sold in separate transactions
for aggregate net cash proceeds of approximately $107.4 million, after the repayment of mortgage debt
of approximately $114.9 million. Also, we used $68.3 million of the net cash proceeds to pay down a
portion of the senior credit facility and increasing rate loans facility, and we retained the rest of the net
cash proceeds in accordance with the terms of the senior credit facilities; and

* Hospitality Properties Trust (“HPT”) terminated leases on 27 hotel properties (15 Summerfield Suites
by Wyndham™ and 12 Wyndham Hotels and Wyndham Garden Hotels) operated by two of our
subsidiaries. HPT subsequently rebranded the hotel properties to third-party brands.

In 2004, we sold or terminated leases for the following assets:

* investments in 39 hotels and certain undeveloped land were sold in separate transactions for net cash
proceeds of $308.7 million after payment of $313.2 million of mortgage debt. We used $297.4 million
of the net cash proceeds to pay down a portion of the senior credit facility and increasing rate loan
facility, and retained the rest of the net cash proceeds in accordance with the terms of the senior credit
facilities.

+ the leases on six Summerfield Suites by Wyndham™ properties were terminated and the properties were
converted to long-term franchises on April 1, 2004. Approximately $22 million, which represented the
leases’ remaining book value, were considered impaired and written-off as of December 31, 2003.

On December 30, 2004, we entered into an agreement to sell 25 non-strategic hotels to a partnership
comprised of a private investment fund managed by Goldman Sachs and affiliates of Highgate Holdings. The
purchase price of the transaction is $366 million. As part of the agreement, the 15 Wyndham-branded assets
included in the sale will remain in the brand’s portfolio pursuant to new franchise agreements. Impairments
totaling $333.5 million were recorded on these 25 properties during 2004. Upon the close of the transaction in
20085, a gain of approximately $33.9 million will be recorded on the remainder of the assets in the portfolio. The
sale is expected to close in the first quarter of 2005. We also entered into an agreement to sell an additional
property in a separate transaction. These transactions will complete our planned disposition program, which
began in June 1999.

At December 31, 2004, including the 25 non-strategic hotels, we had approximately $361.5 million of assets
classified as held for sale, net of impairment. We classify certain assets as held for sale based on our management
having the authority and intent of entering into commitments for sale transactions expected to close in the next
twelve months.

On January 3, 2005, we completed the sale of the Doubletree Glenview to Lone Star Funds. The property
has been converted to a Wyndham hotel and will be operated by us under a long-term management agreement.
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On March 10, 2005, we completed the sale of the Wyndham Riverfront in New Orleans. All net proceeds
were used to pay down debt.

We adopted Interpretation 46(R) (“FIN 46R), “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities”, as of January 1,
2004. Pursuant to the adoption of FIN 46R, we evaluated our joint ventures, management and franchise contracts
to determine whether any agreements qualify as a variable interest entity (“VIE”) and whether, as such, we meet
the criteria of a primary beneficiary. We identified the Wyndham Anatole management contract as a VIE where
we were identified as the primary beneficiary. Therefore, the Wyndham Anatole has been included in our
consolidated financial statements. The Wyndham Anatole management contract met the FIN 46R criteria for
consolidation into our financial statements due to the requirement that we reimburse the owner for any shortfall
in the payment of mortgage debt and the owner’s preferred return prior to payment of management fees. This
reimbursement is limited to $21 million and is backed by a letter of credit. This $21 million letter of credit
triggers consolidation due to our exposure to the majority of the risks of loss. In 2004, $4.7 million was drawn
against this letter of credit. Even though our risk of loss is limited solely to the $21 million, our projections
indicated that there is a remote possibility that the property will not be able to generate sufficient cash flow to
cover debt service during the term of the management contract and, therefore, the owner has no risk of loss. The
consolidation results in an increase of $310.2 million in our consolidated assets at December 31, 2004. Our
balance sheet also reflects the Wyndham Anatole mortgage debt and capital lease obligations of $168.9 million,
even though we are not a party to nor guarantor of this debt. Our net loss does not change as a result of the
consolidation of the Wyndham Anatole as profit is 100% attributable to the owner and recorded as minority
interest.

On December 22, 2004, we formed a joint venture with Lehman Brothers Real Estate Partners (“LBREP”)
to expand and develop Summerfield Suites by Wyndham™, Wyndham's upscale, extended-stay brand. The
transaction included the sale of six Summerfield Suites by Wyndham™ and the sale of an equity interest in the
entity that owns our Summerfield brand to LBREP. Under the terms of the joint venture agreement with LBREP,
we initially hold a 66.67% ownership interest in the joint venture, however, we have 50% voting rights. In
addition, LBREP has a priority return. Therefore, in accordance with FIN 46R, our joint venture with LBREP is
consolidated in our financial statements at December 31, 2004.

Indebtedness

On April 30, 2004, we extended an $18 million mortgage secured by one hotel, after paydown of $6.3
million. The loan bears interest at LIBOR plus 4.5% and has a maturity date of May 1, 2006.

Also, on June 22, 2004, we completed a $35 million mortgage financing secured by four hotel properties
with Credit Suisse First Boston Inc. The loan bears interest at LIBOR plus 1.2% and has an initial maturity date
of July 9, 2006. We may extend the maturity date of the loan for three additional twelve month periods, provided
that there is not a default under the loan and other minor conditions are met which are within our control.

There can be no assurance that we will be able to continue to meet our debt service obligations and, to the
extent that we cannot, we may lose some or all of our assets, including hotel properties. Adverse economic
conditions could cause the terms on which we borrow to worsen. Those circumstances, if we are in need of funds
to repay indebtedness, could force us to liquidate one or more investments in properties at times that may not
permit realization of the maximum return on those investments. The foregoing risks associated with our debt
obligations may inhibit our ability to raise capital in both the public and private markets and may have a negative
impact on our credit rating.

During 2005, we have scheduled principal payments and debt maturities of approximately $685.1 million.
Of that amount, we can elect to extend $540.3 million ($358.8 million for three additional twelve-month periods
and $181.5 million for one additional twelve-month period). The remaining 2005 maturities represent $144.8
million related to separate loans collateralized by the Wyndham El Conquistador and the Wyndham Reach and
normal principal amortization. We believe we will be able to refinance these two loans prior to their maturities in
2005, however there can be no assurance that we will be able to do so.
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Results of Operations: Year Ended December 31, 2004 Compared with Year Ended December 31, 2003

Our room revenues were $491.6 million and $419.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2004 and
2003, respectively. The Wyndham Anatole portion of our room revenues during the year ended December 31,
2004 was $42.3 million. Excluding the Wyndham Anatole, our room revenues increased by approximately $29.6
million. Occupancy, average daily rate (“ADR”) and revenue per available room (“RevPAR”) increased 1.8%,
3.4% and 6%, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2004 as compared to the same period in 2003. The
increases in occupancy, ADR and RevPAR can be attributed to an increasing demand in the leisure group,
corporate and Wyndham brand internet segments of our business as a result of the recovering economy, as well
as the strategies implemented regarding Wyndham brand direct bookings through Wyndham.com, which
increased to 387,800 reservations in 2004 from 291,623 reservations in 2003.

Our food and beverage revenues were $301.2 million and $236.1 million for the years ended December 31,
2004 and 2003, respectively. The Wyndham Anatole portion of our food and beverage revenues during the year
ended December 31, 2004 was $52.6 million. Excluding the Wyndham Anatole, our food and beverage revenues
increased by approximately $12.5 million. The increase is primarily attributable to increased occupancy, stronger
outlet results and an increasing banquet and catering business.

Our other hotel revenues were $151 million and $146.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2004 and
2003, respectively. The Wyndham Anatole portion of our other hotel revenues during the year ended December
31, 2004 was approximately $6.1 million. Excluding the Wyndham Anatole, our other hotel revenues decreased
approximately $1.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2004 as compared to the same period in 2003. The
decrease is primarily due to decreases in casino revenue, which was unfavorably impacted by hurricanes in the
third quarter of 2004, and communications revenue.

Our room expenses were $118.4 million and $102.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2004 and
2003, respectively. The Wyndham Anatole portion of our room expense during the year ended December 31,
2004 was $9.8 million. Excluding the Wyndham Anatole, our room expenses increased by approximately $5.7
million due primarily to increased costs associated with increased occupancy and higher labors costs for the year
ended December 31, 2004 as compared to the same period of 2003.

Qur food and beverage expenses were $198.8 million and $163.5 million for the years ended December 31,
2004 and 2003, respectively. The Wyndham Anatole portion of our food and beverage expenses during the year
ended December 31, 2004 was $29.1 million. Excluding the Wyndham Anatole, our food and beverage expenses
increased by approximately $6.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2004 as compared to the same period
in 2003. The increase consists of increases in food and beverage product costs and labor costs.

Our other hotel expenses were $377.7 million and $334.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2004
and 2003, respectively. The Wyndham Anatole portion of our other hotel expenses during the year ended
December 31, 2004 was $31.8 million. Excluding the Wyndham Anatole, our other hotel expenses increased by
approximately $11.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2004 as compared to the same period in 2003. The
increase is primarily due to higher utility costs, sales and promotion expenses and other minor operating
expenses.

Our management fee and service fee income was $18.1 million and $17.5 million for the years ended
December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, representing an increase of 3.4% in 2004. The increase in our
management fee and service fee income is primarily due to increases in hotel revenues upon which the fees are
based and an increase in the number of managed hotels.

Our interest and other income was $3.6 million and $6.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2004 and
2003, respectively. The decrease is mainly attributable to the elimination of interest income on our notes
receivable from the Wyndham Anatole subsequent to December 31, 2003 due to the consolidation of the
Wyndham Anatole.
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Our general and administrative expenses were $87.4 million and $62.2 million for the years ended
December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The increase for the year ended December 31, 2004 when compared
to the year ended December 31, 2003 is primarily a result of the following: increases in severance expenses of
$7.8 million associated with staff reductions at our corporate office; increases in litigation settlement expenses of
$7.6 million primarily associated with the Johnson v Patriot American Hospitality, Inc. et al. settlement;
increases in incentive bonus accruals of $3.7 million; expenses related to hurricane damage of $2.6 million in
2004; increases in salaries and wages of $2.4 million and expenses of $1.4 million in 2004 for fees related to
compliance with the provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. These increases were partially offset by a decrease in
bad debt expense of $3.6 million.

Qur interest expense was $192.3 million and $169 million for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively. The Wyndham Anatole portion of the interest expense during the year ended December 31, 2004
was approximately $12.8 million. Excluding the Wyndham Anatole, our interest expense increased
approximately $10.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2004 as compared to the same period of 2003.
While our total debt has decreased, interest rates on certain debt have increased due to recent amendments and
refinancings. At December 31, 2004 and 2003, we had approximately $2.2 billion {this includes $168.9 million in
Wyndham Anatole debt) and $2.68 billion of debt, respectively. Also, the one-month LIBOR rate was 2.4% and
1.12% as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, and the weighted average interest rate excluding hedges
was 6.51% for the year ended December 31, 2004 as compared to 5.92% for 2003.

Our depreciation and amortization expense was $100.8 million and $107 million for the years ended
December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The Wyndham Anatole portion of the depreciation and amortization
expense during the year ended December 31, 2004 was approximately $10.8 million. Excluding the Wyndham
Anatole, our depreciation and amortization expense decreased approximately $17 million for the year ended
December 31, 2004 as compared to the same period of 2003. This decrease in depreciation and amortization
expense is due to certain assets becoming fully depreciated subsequent to the year ended December 31, 2003 and
the elimination of the amortization of management contract costs in 2004 related to the consolidation of the
Wyndham Anatole.

The income tax (provision) benefit from continuing operations was a provision of $143,000 for the year
ended December 31, 2004 and a benefit of $50.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2003. The decrease in
the income tax benefit is due to the recording of a valuation allowance against our deferred tax assets during the
year ended December 31, 2004 as compared to the same period of 2003. We provide a valuation allowance for
deferred tax assets when it is more likely than not that some portion or all of our deferred tax assets will not be
realized. The decrease in our net deferred tax asset is primarily due to the recording of a valuation allowance
against our deferred tax assets. In addition, during 2004, we recorded net income tax benefits from continuing
operations totaling $22 million primarily related to favorable adjustments and settlements of various tax matters.
This was offset by the write-off of $3.5 million in income taxes receivable.

Minority interests’ share of operations from consolidated subsidiaries was $9.6 million and $1.5 million for
the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The primary reason for the increase in minority
interest is the consolidation of the Wyndham Anatole during the year ended December 31, 2004.

For the year ended December 31, 2004, we recorded a gain of $48.4 million as compared to a gain of $33.3
million for the year ended December 31, 2003, for the change in the fair market value of the ineffective interest
rate hedge contracts. Also, during the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, we paid $47.5 million and $49.2
million respectively, in settlement payments for ineffective hedges. In addition, we recorded amortization of $3.6
million (net of taxes of $2.4 million) and $3.8 million (net of taxes of $2.5 million) for the years ended December
31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, to earnings as a reduction of the transitional adjustment that was recorded in
other comprehensive income in 2001.

The loss from discontinued operations was $385.8 million and $298.9 million for the years ended December
31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The increase in loss is attributable to the increase in impairment charges of
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$260.6 million due to our strategic plan to sell our non-strategic assets and to use the proceeds of the sales to
reduce debt and overall leverage. The increase in loss was also impacted by a decrease in the income tax benefit
associated with the loss from discontinued operations. These loss increases were partially offset by a decrease of
$153.9 million related to the write-off of the remaining book value of the terminated HPT leases in 2003 and an
increase in the gain on sale of assets of $31.3 million.

Our resulting net loss for the year ended December 31, 2004 was $512.9 million compared to a net loss of
$389.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2003.

Results of Operations: Year Ended December 31, 2003 Compared with Year Ended December 31, 2002

Our room revenues were $419.7 million and $420.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2003 and
2002, respectively. Our room revenues were flat for the year ended December 31, 2003 compared to the year
ended December 31, 2002. While occupancy increased 2.8%, ADR and RevPAR decreased 3.8% and 0.2%,
respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2003 as compared to the same period in 2002. The declines in
ADR and RevPAR can be attributed to a reduced demand in the corporate group and commercial retail segments
of our business as a result of the sluggish economy, travelers’ fears of exposure to contagious diseases and the
effects of Operation Iraqi Freedom, offset by increased Wyndham.com bookings and leisure and corporate
internet business.

Our food and beverage revenues were $236.1 million and $231.6 million for the years ended December 31,
2003 and 2002, respectively. The increase in our food and beverage revenues is primarily attributable to the 3.4%
increase in occupancy.

Our other hotel revenues were $146.1 million and $160.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2003
and 2002, respectively. The decrease is primarily attributable to the decline in communications revenue, change
in customer mix which produced less ancillary revenue, other minor operating revenues and reduced group
cancellation revenues throughout our owned and leased hotel portfolio for the year ended December 31, 2003 as
compared to the same period in 2002.

Our room expenses were $102.9 million and $100.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2003 and
2002, respectively. The increase in room expenses was primarily due to increases in our labor, benefit and
distribution costs attributable to the 2.8% increase in occupancy for the year ended December 31, 2003 as
compared to the same period in 2002.

. Our food and beverage expenses were $163.5 million and $163 million for the years ended December 31,
2003 and 2002, respectively. The increase is primarily attributable to an increase in food and beverage product
costs associated with the 2.8% increase in occupancy.

Our other hotel expenses were $334.1 million and $343.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2003
and 2002, respectively. The decrease is due primarily to reduced expenses consisting of lower insurance costs
and other minor operating expenses.

‘Our management fee and service fee income was $17.5 million and $17.6 million for the years ended
December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. While our management fee and service fee income was flat, fees
decreased primarily as a result of reductions in hotel revenue upon which the fees are based and the termination
of ten contracts subsequent to 2002. The decrease in fees was offset in part by 27 new management and franchise
contracts acquired subsequent to December 31, 2002.

Our interest and other income was $6.3 million and $7.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2003 and
2002, respectively. The decrease is mainly attributable to the reductions of our notes receivable in 2003 as

compared to the same period in 2002.
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Our general and administrative expenses were $62.2 million and $72.7 million for the years ended
December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The decrease is primarily a result of the following: reductions in
bonus expenses of $8.2 million, reductions in payroll costs of $3.1 million, reductions in severance costs of $2.9
million and reductions in development and acquisition costs of $2.6 million. These reductions in general and
administrative costs were offset by litigation settlement accruals of $6.8 million, increases in office equipment
maintenance and supply costs of $1.7 million and increases in directors’ and officers’ insurance of $1.6 million.

During the year ended December 31, 2002, our bond offering cancellation costs were $3.8 million. We
withdrew the offering of the proposed debt securities due to unfavorable market conditions.

Our interest expense was $169 million and $194.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. This decrease is a result of a reduction in the amount of our total debt and lower interest rates. At
December 31, 2003 and 2002, we had approximately $2.68 billion and $2.83 billion of debt, respectively. Also,
the one-month LIBOR rate was 1.12% and 1.38% as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively, and our
weighted average interest rate excluding hedges for the year ended December 31, 2003 was 5.92% as compared
to 6.17% for the year ended December 31, 2002.

Our depreciation and amortization expense was $107 million and $104.7 million for the years ended
December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The increase in depreciation expense is primarily due to depreciation
of assets placed in service subsequent to December 31, 2002.

The income tax benefit from continuing operations was $50.2 million and $91.7 million for the years ended
December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The decrease in the tax benefit is due to the recording of a valuation
allowance against our deferred tax assets during the year ended December 31, 2003 as compared to same period
in 2002, We provide a valuation allowance for deferred tax assets when it is more likely than not that some
portion or all of our deferred tax assets will not be realized. The decrease in our net deferred tax liability is
primarily due to operating losses, impairment of assets, sale of assets and termination of leasehold interests.

Minority interest in consolidated subsidiaries was a loss of $1.5 million and income of $51,000 for the years
ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The increase in loss is attributable primarily to lower operating
results due to lower hotel revenues.

For the year ended December 31, 2003, we recorded a gain of $33.3 million as compared to a loss of $27.2
million for the year ended December 31, 2002 for the change in the fair value of the ineffective interest rate
hedge contracts. In addition, reductions of $1.2 million (net of taxes of $1.1 million) and $4.8 million (net of
taxes of $3.2 million) were recorded against other comprehensive income for the years ended December 31, 2003
and 2002, respectively, for the change in the fair value of the effective derivatives. Also, during the years ended
December 31, 2003 and 2002, we paid $49.2 million and $41.7 million, respectively, in settlement payments for
ineffective hedges. In addition, we recorded amortization of $3.8 million (net of taxes of $2.5 million) and $9.5
million (net of taxes of $6.3 million) for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively, to earnings
as a reduction of the transitional adjustment that was recorded in other comprehensive income in 2001.

Loss from discontinued operations was $298.9 million and $53.8 million for the years ended December 31,
2003 and 2002, respectively. The increase in loss is attributable to the increase in impairment charges of $127.4
million; and the write-off of the remaining book value of the terminated HPT leases of $153.9 million. The loss
from discontinued operations was offset, in part, by an increase in the gain on sale of assets of $16.1 million and
the increase in tax benefits of $28.4 million.

During the year ended December 31, 2002, we recorded a cumulative effect of an accounting change of

$324.1 million to reflect a write-off of goodwill upon adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(“SFAS”) 142.

28




Our resulting net loss for the year ended December 31, 2003 was $389.6 million as compared to a net loss of
$522.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2002.

Results of Reporting Segments

Our results of operations are classified into three reportable segments: (1) Wyndham branded hotel
properties, (2) non-proprietary branded hotel properties and (3) other.

For the year ended December 31, 2004 compared with the year ended December 31, 2003

Wyndham branded properties include Wyndham Hotels & Resorts®, Wyndham Luxury Resorts®,
Wyndham Garden Hotels® and Summerfield Suites by Wyndham™. This segment represented approximately
95.5% and 94.7% of our total revenues for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Total
revenue for this segment was $922.5 million compared to $782.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2004
and 2003, respectively. The Wyndham Anatole portion of our total revenues during the year ended December 31,
2004 was $100.9 million. Depreciation and amortization expense for this segment was $99.1 million compared to
$102.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The Wyndham Anatole portion of
depreciation and amortization during the year ended December 31, 2004 was $10.8 million. Operating income
for this segment was $141.6 million compared to $92.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively. The Wyndham Anatole portion of the operating income during the year ended December 31, 2004
was approximately $19.5 million. Excluding the Wyndham Anatole, our revenue for this segment increased
approximately $39.3 million, depreciation and amortization expense decreased $14 million and operating income
increased approximately $30 million for the year ended December 31, 2004 compared to the same period of
2003. Increases in revenue and operating income for this segment can be primarily attributed to increases in
occupancy, ADR and RevPAR of 2.4%, 3.7% and 7%, respectively, as demand increased in the corporate group
and commercial retail segments of our business as a result of the recovering economy. The decrease in
depreciation and amortization expense is due primarily to certain assets becoming fully depreciated subsequent to
the year ended December 31, 2003.

Non-proprietary branded properties consists of the operations of the Park Shore Hotel as the operations of
our other non-proprietary branded properties are classified as discontinued operations. This segment represented
less than one percent of our total revenues for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003. Total revenue for
this segment was $6.7 million compared to $6.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively. Depreciation and amortization expense for this segment was $1.2 million for the year ended
December 31, 2004 compared with $1.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2003. Operating income for
this segment was $2.3 million and $1.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
The increases in revenue and operating income for this segment can be primarily attributed to increases in ADR
of 13.6% and RevPAR of 6.2% for the Park Shore Hotel, offset somewhat by a decrease of 5.5% in occupancy.
Depreciation and amortization expense decreased primarily due to certain assets becoming fully depreciated
subsequent to the year ended December 31, 2003.

Other represents revenue from various operating businesses, including management and other service
companies and the Golden Door Spa. Expenses in this segment are primarily interest and corporate general and
administrative expenses. Total revenue for the segment was $36.3 million and $37.2 million for the years ended
December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The decrease in this segment’s revenue was primarily the result of
reductions in notes receivable from the Wyndham Anatole subsequent to December 31, 2003 due to the
consolidation of the Wyndham Anatole, partially offset by an increase in revenue for the Golden Door Spa and
higher management fee and service fee income. Depreciation and amortization expense for this segment was
$533,000 compared to $3.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The decrease
in depreciation and amortization expense can be primarily attributed to the elimination of amortization of
management contract costs in 2004 related to the consolidation of the Wyndham Anatole. Operating losses for
this segment were $263.5 million and $235.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003,
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respectively. The increase in operating losses was primarily due to the following: an increase in interest expense .
of $23.3 million ($12.8 million associated with consolidating the Wyndham Anatole and $10.5 million due to
interest rate increases), an increase in severance expenses of $7.8 million, an increase in litigation settlement
expense of $7.6 million, an increase in incentive bonus accruals of $3.7 million and an increase in management
contract termination costs of $2.7 million. The increases were partially offset by a reduction in losses from
derivative instruments of $17.2 million and a reduction in losses from the sale of assets of $4.9 million.

For the year ended December 31, 2003 compared with the year ended December 31, 2002

Wyndham branded properties represented approximately 94.7% and 94.9% of our total revenues for the
years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Total revenue for this segment was $782.2 million
compared to $794.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Depreciation and
amortization expense for this segment was $102.3 million compared to $103 million for the years ended
December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Operating income for this segment was $92.1 million compared to
$96.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Decreases in revenue and operating
income for this segment can be primarily attributed to a decline in ADR of 3.7% in the year ended December 31,
2003 as a result of the sluggish economy, travelers’ fears of exposure to contagious diseases and the effects of
Operation Iragi Freedom. The decrease in ADR was partially offset by an increase in occupancy of 2.3% for the
year ended December 31, 2003 when compared to the year ended December 31, 2002. RevPAR remained flat'in
2003 when compared to 2002 for the Wyndham branded properties. The decrease in depreciation and
amortization expense is due primarily to certain assets becoming fully depreciated subsequent to the year ended
December 31, 2002. ’

Non-proprietary branded properties represented less than one percent of our total revenues for each of the
years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002. Total revenue for this segment was $6.4 million compared to $4.5
million for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Depreciation and amortization expense
for this segment remained constant at $1.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002. Operating
income for this segment was $1.7 miltion and $487,000 for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. The increases in revenue and operating income for this segment can be primarily attributed to
increases in occupancy, ADR and RevPAR of 23.4%, 7.2% and 49.3%, respectively, for the Park Shore Hotel.

Other represents revenue from various operating businesses, including management and other service
companies and the Golden Door Spa. Expenses in this segment are primarily interest and corporate general and
administrative expenses. Total revenue for the segment was $37.2 million and $38.3 million for the years ended
December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The decrease in this segment’s revenue was primarily the result of a
reduction in dividend and interest income from investments that were sold subsequent to December 31, 2002.
Depreciation and amortization expense for this segment was $3.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2003
compared with $480,000 for the year ended December 31, 2002. The increase in depreciation and amortization
expense was primarily due to an increase in the amortization of management contract costs and trade names.
Operating losses for this segment were $235.8 million and $334.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2003
and 2002, respectively. The decrease in operating losses was primarily due to the following: reductions in losses
from derivative instruments of $62.7 million, reductions in interest expense of $26 million, reductions in bonus
expenses of $8.2 million, reductions in management, leasehold and license agreement costs of $4.5 million,
reductions in bond cancellation costs of $3.8 million, reductions in payroll costs of $3.1 million, reductions in
severance costs of $2.9 million and reductions in development and acquisition costs of $2.6 million. The
reductions were offset by a litigation settlement accrual of $6.8 million, increases in losses on the sale of assets
of $4.9 million, increases in office equipment maintenance and supply costs of $1.7 million and increases in
directors’ and officers’ insurance of $1.6 million.

Subsequent Events

On December 30, 2004, we entered into an agreement to sell 25 non-strategic hotels to a partnership
comprised of a private investment fund managed by Goldman Sachs and affiliates of Highgate Holdings. The
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purchase price of the transaction is $366 million. As part of the agreement, the 15 Wyndham-branded assets
included in the sale will remain in the brand’s portfolio pursuant to new franchise agreements. Impairments
totaling $333.5 million were recorded on certain of these 25 properties during 2004. Upon the close of the
transaction in 2005, a gain of approximately $33.9 million will be recorded on the remainder of the assets in the
portfolio. The sale is expected to close in the first quarter of 2005. We also entered into an agreement to sell an
additional property in a separate transaction. These transactions will complete our planned disposition program,
which began in June 1999,

On January 3, 2003, we sold the Doubletree Glenview to Lone Star Funds. The property has been converted
to a Wyndham hotel and will be operated by us under a long-term management agreement.

On January 28, 2005, Mercury Special Situations Fund LP and Equity Resource Dover Fund LP issued a
tender offer to purchase all outstanding shares of our series A preferred stock at a price of $30 per share. The
offer was amended on February 28, 2005 to extend the expiration date to March 14, 2005.

On or about February 28, 2005, we entered into a stipulation of settlement with regard to the legal
proceeding entitied Johnson v. Patriot American Hospitality, Inc. et al., and discussed under “Item 3. Legal
Proceedings” on page 17, Pursuant to the stipulation of settlement, we shall issue 11 million shares of Wyndham
common stock to the proposed settlement class. We also have agreed to contribute a maximum amount of $1
million to the settlement class, only in the event that the trading price of Wyndham common stock falls below a
certain threshold for a defined period of time. Furthermore, we have agreed to allow the settlement class to
participate in a rights offering under certain limited circumstances. The stipulation of settlement is subject to
Court approval. An accrual of $11.2 million was recorded as of December 31, 2004 related to the settlement.

On March 10, 2005, we completed the sale of the Wyndham Riverfront in New Orleans. All net proceeds
were used to pay down debt.

On March 11, 2005, we announced we have arranged to refinance our corporate credit facility and the
majority of our outstanding mortgage debt. We will refinance approximately $1.65 billion of our outstanding
debt. The refinancing, which is expected to close early in the second quarter 2005, provides an extension of
corporate debt maturity to 2011. Additionally, the debt pre-funds up to $100 million of capital to invest in our
owned properties.

Statistical Information

During 2004, our portfolio of owned and leased hotels experienced increases in occupancy, ADR and
RevPAR of approximately 1.8%, 3.4% and 6%, respectively, as compared to 2003. We attribute the increases in
occupancy, ADR and RevPAR primarily to improved brand performance resulting from our efforts to build our
brand through innovative programs and increased demand in the lodging industry as a result of the recovering
economy. The following table sets forth certain statistical information for 2003 and 2004 for the 67 hotels we
owned and leased during 2004 including the hotels we sold in December 2004.

Occupancy ADR RevPAR
_20;04 ‘% 2004 2003 2004 2003
Wyndham Hotels & Resorts® ............ 76.1% 74.1% $123.34 $119.65 $ 93.80 $ 88.54
Wyndham Luxury Resorts® ............. 76.5 75.6 245.46 232.18 187.56 175.53
Wyndham Garden Hotels® .............. 76.4 75.4 93.50 90.79 71.40 68.42
Summerfield Suites by Wyndham™ ....... 85.5 83.1 97.84 94.75 83.68 78.79
Non-proprietary brands ................. 59.7 58.5 91.01 86.68 54.32 50.68
Weighted average ................. 733% 71.5% $118.23 $114.38 $ 86.67 $ 81.74
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2004 were $24.3 million, inclusive of $1.1 million of
Wyndham Anatole cash and cash equivalents. Our restricted cash was $77.8 million, inclusive of $4.8 million of
Wyndham Anatole restricted cash. At December 31, 2003, our cash and cash equivalents were $62.4 million and
our restricted cash was $130.5 million. Restricted cash is comprised of furniture, fixture and equipment reserves,
tax and insurance escrows, derivative collateral, escrows required under our credit facility, deferred maintenance
reserves and ground rent reserves.

Cash Flow Provided by Operating Activities

Our principal source of cash flow is from the operations of the hotels that we own, lease and manage. Cash
flows from operating activities were $45.4 million, $62.6 million and $76.5 million for the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Operational cash flows declined in 2004 primarily due to a
reduction in cash generated from hotel operations as a result of the hotels sold.

Cash Flows from Investing and Financing Activities

Cash flows provided by our investing activities were $585.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2004
resulting primarily from proceeds received from the sale of assets during 2004 and the change in restricted cash,
partially offset by renovation expenditures at certain hotels. Cash flows used in financing activities of $669.3
million for the year ended December 31, 2004 were primarily related to principal repayments made on our debt
as a result of asset sales.

Cash flows provided by our investing activities were $137.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2003,
resulting primarily from proceeds received from the sale of assets during 2003. This was offset by renovation
expenditures at certain hotels, the acquisition of a hotel property and changes in our restricted cash reserves
during the period. Cash flows used in financing activities of $174.6 million for the year ended December 31,
2003 were primarily related to principal repayments made on our debt.

Cash flows provided by our investing activities were $425.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2002,
resulting primarily from asset sales during 2002. This was partially offset by renovation expenditures at certain
hotels. Cash flows used by our financing activities of $631 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 were
primarily related to the net principal repayments made on our debt as a result of asset sales.

Debt

As of December 31, 2004, we had approximately $68.6 million outstanding under our revolving credit
facility, $870.8 million outstanding on term loans I and $284.2 million outstanding on term loans II.
Additionally, we had outstanding letters of credit totaling $65.5 million. Also, as of December 31, 2004, we had
$932.8 million of mortgage debt outstanding that encumbered 30 hotels and capital leases and other debt of $41.1
million, resulting in total indebtedness of approximately $2.2 billion. We have one covenant under our senior
credit facility and increasing rate loans facility. The interest coverage ratio requirement is 1.25x to 1.0x. Our
interest coverage ratio as of December 31, 2004 was 1.38x to 1.0x. Included in the total indebtedness is
approximately $114.3 million of debt associated with assets held for sale and $168.9 million in mortgage debt
and capital lease obligations associated with the Wyndham Anatole of which we are not a party to nor guarantor
of the debt or capital lease obligation. (See Note 4 to the Consolidated Financial Statements). We are seeking to
refinance the remaining scheduled principal payments prior to their maturities; however, there can be no
assurance that we will be able to do so. As of December 31, 2004, we had approximately $190 million in
liquidity. Our liquidity is defined as revolver availability ($179.7 million) plus cash in our overnight accounts
($10.3 million).

On April 30, 2004, we extended an $18 million mortgage secured by one hotel, after paydown of $6.3
million. The loan bears interest at LIBOR plus 4.5% and has a maturity date of May 1, 2006.
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Also, on June 22, 2004, we completed a $35 million mortgage financing secured by four hotel properties with
Credit Suisse First Boston Inc. The loan bears interest at LIBOR plus 1.2% and has an initial maturity date of July 9,
2006. We may extend the maturity date of the loan for three additional twelve month periods, provided that there is
not a default under the loan and other minor conditions are met which are completely within our control.

We have considered our short-term liquidity needs and the adequacy of adjusted estimated cash flows and
other expected liquidity sources to meet these needs. We believe that our principal short-term liquidity needs are
to fund our normal recurring expenses and our debt service requirements. We anticipate that these needs will be
fully funded from our cash flows provided by operating activities and, when necessary, from our revolving credit
facility. In the past, we have generally met our long-term liquidity requirements for the funding of activities, such
as development and scheduled debt maturities, major renovations, expansions and other non-recurring capital
improvements, through long-term secured and unsecured indebtedness and the proceeds from the sale of our
assets. In the future, we may seek to increase our capital resources through similar activities or, subject to
limitations imposed by the terms of our credit agreements and preferred stock, through offerings of debt or equity
securities, including convertible notes and preferred or common stock.

As of December 31, 2004, under the terms of the applicable credit facilities, loan agreements and lease
agreements, our principal amortization and balloon payment requirements and our future five-year minimum
lease payments are summarized as follows:

Payments due by year

2010 and
Total 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 thereafter
(in thousands)
Debt(4) .......... $2,157,909(1) $682,517(2) $1,264,270(3) $19,293 § 6,676 §$ 7,241 $177912
Capital leases

obligations ...... 39,577(1) 2,628(2) 2,623 2,382 1,294 1,373 29277

Office leases (5) .. .. 8,037 2,763 2,490 2,016 492 276 —
Hotel and ground

leases (5) ....... 161,256 8,470 8,470 8,444 8,450 8,407 119,015

Total ............. $2,366,779  $696,378  $1,277,853  §$32,135 $16,912  $17,297  $326,204

(1) The Wyndham Anatole debt and capital lease obligations of $168.9 million are included, however, we are
not a party to nor guarantor of this debt (see Note 4 to the Consolidated Financial Statements).

(2) We can elect to extend $540.3 million ($358.8 million for three additional twelve-month periods and $181.5
million for one additional twelve month period) provided that there is not a default under the loans and other
minor conditions are met which are within our control. The remaining maturities represent $144.8 million
related to separate loans collateralized by the Wyndham El Conquistador and the Wyndham Reach and
normal principal amortization. We believe we will be able to refinance these two loans prior to maturity;
however, there can be no assurance that we will be able to do so.

(3) We can elect to extend $28 million for three additional twelve-month periods provided that there is not a
default under the loan and other minor conditions are met which are within our control.

(4) Subsequent to December 31, 2004, mortgage debt was paid down by $9.7 million due to asset sales.

(5) Office, hotel and ground leases are operating leases and are included in operating expenses.

During 2005, we have scheduled principal payments and debt maturities of approximately $685.1 million.
Of that amount, we can elect to extend $540.3 million ($358.8 million for three additional twelve-month periods
and $181.5 million for one additional twelve-month period) provided that there is not a default under the loans
and other minor conditions are met which are within our control. The remaining maturities represent $144.8
million related to separate loans collateralized by the Wyndham EI Conquistador and the Wyndham Reach and
normal principal amortization. We believe we will be able to refinance these two loans prior to their maturities;
however, there can be no assurance that we will be able to do so. During 2006, we have scheduled principal
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payments and debt maturities of approximately $1.3 billion. Of that amount, we can elect to extend $28 million
for three additional twelve-month periods. Of the remaining 2006 maturities, we are seeking to extend or
refinance these debt maturities, however, there can be no assurance that we will be able to do so.

Dividends

We do not anticipate paying a dividend to our common stockholders and we are prohibited under the terms
of our credit facilities from paying dividends on our class A common stock. For the six year period beginning
September 30, 1999, dividends on our series A and series B preferred stock are payable partly in cash and partly
in additional shares of our series A and series B preferred stock, with the cash portion aggregating $29.25 million
per year, so long as there is no redemption or conversion of our series A and series B preferred stock. For the
following four years, dividends are payable in cash or additional shares of our series A or series B preferred
stock, as the case may be, as determined by our board of directors. After year ten, dividends are payable solely in
cash.

We are prohibited under the terms of the January 24, 2002 amendments to our senior credit facility and
increasing rate loans facility from paying cash dividends on the series A and series B preferred stock. As of
December 31, 2004, we have deferred payments of the cash portion of the preferred stock dividend totaling
approximately $102.3 million. This amount is shown in the balance sheet as dividends payable as of December
31, 2004. In addition, according to the terms of our series A and series B preferred stock, if the cash dividends on
the preferred stock are in arrears and unpaid for at least 60 days, then an additional amount of dividends will
accrue at an annual rate of 2.0% of the stated amount of each share of preferred stock then outstanding from the
last payment date on which cash dividends were to be paid in full until the cash dividends in arrears have been
paid in full. These additional dividends are cumulative and payable in additional shares of preferred stock. As of
December 31, 2004, we have issued an additional stock dividend of 936,073 shares of series A and series B
preferred stock with a value of $93.6 million.

Renovations and Capital Improvements

During 2004, we invested approximately $92.1 million in capital improvements and renovations. These
capital expenditures included (i) costs related to enhancing the revenue-producing capabilities of our hotels and
(ii) costs related to recurring maintenance. During 2005, we anticipate spending approximately $75 million in
capital expenditures. We are limited to capital expenditures of $125 million per year, plus $25 million per year
for emergency capital expenditures under the terms of the January 24, 2002 amendments to the senior credit
facility and increasing rate loans facility.

We attempt to schedule renovations and improvements during traditionally lower occupancy periods in an
effort to minimize disruption to the hotel’s operations. Therefore, we do not believe such renovations and capital
improvements will have a material effect on the results of operations of the hotels. Capital expenditures will be
financed through capital expenditure reserves or with working capital.

Inflation

Operators of hotels in general possess the ability to adjust room rates quickly. However, competitive
pressures may limit our ability to raise room rates in the face of inflation.

Seasonality

The hotel industry is seasonal in nature; however, the periods during which our hotel properties experience
higher revenues vary from property to property and depend predominantly on the property’s location. Qur
revenues typically have been higher in the first and second quarters than in the third or fourth quarters.
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of our consolidated financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that
affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities. On an on-going basis, we evaluate our estimates, including those related to: impairment of
assets; assets held for sale; bad debts; income taxes; insurance reserves; derivatives; and contingencies and
litigation. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

We believe the following critical accounting policies affect our more significant judgments and estimates
used in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements.

We periodically review the carrying value of our assets, including intangible assets, to determine if events
and circumstances exist indicating that assets might be impaired. If facts and circumstances support this
possibility of impairment, our management will prepare probability weighted undiscounted and discounted cash
flow projections which require judgments that are both subjective and complex.

Our management uses its judgment in projecting which assets will be sold by us within the next twelve
months. These judgments are based on our management’s knowledge of the current market and the status of
current negotiations with third parties. If assets are expected to be sold within 12 months, they are reclassified as
assets held for sale on the balance sheet.

We maintain allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability of our
customers to make required payments. If the financial condition of our customers were to deteriorate resulting in
an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional allowances may be required.

We record a valuation allowance to reduce our deferred tax assets to the amount that is more likely than not
to be realized. While we have considered ongoing prudent and feasible tax planning strategies in assessing the
need for the valuation allowance, should we determine that we would be abie to realize our deferred tax assets in
the future in excess of its net recorded amount, an adjustment to the deferred tax asset would increase income in
the period such determination was made.

We have reserves for taxes and associated interest that may become payable in future years as a result of
audits by tax authorities. Although we believe that the positions taken on previously filed tax returns are
reasonable, we nevertheless have established tax and interest reserves in recognition that various taxing
authorities may challenge the positions taken by us resulting in additional liabilities for taxes and interest. The
tax reserves are reviewed as circumstances warrant and adjusted as events occur that affect our potential liability
for additional taxes, such as lapsing of applicable statutes of limitations, conclusion of tax audits, additional or
reduced exposure based on current calculations, identification of new issues, release of administrative guidance,
or rendering of a court decision affecting a particular tax issue.

We maintain a paid loss deductible insurance plan for commercial general liability, automobile liability and
workers’ compensation loss exposures related to our hotel operations. The primary loss deductible retention limit
is currently $1 million per occurrence for general liability, $250,000 per occurrence for automobile liability and
$500,000 per occurrence for workers’ compensation loss, in most jurisdictions. The estimates of the ultimate
liability for losses and associated expenses are based upon a third party actuarial analysis and projection of actual
historical development trends of loss frequency, severity and incurred but not reported claims as well as
traditional issues that affect loss cost such as medical and statutory benefit inflation. In addition, the actuarial
analysis compares our trends against general insurance industry development trends to develop an estimate of
ultimate costs within the deductible retention. Large claims or incidents that could potentially involve material
amounts are also monitored closely on a case-by-case basis. As of December 31, 2004, our balance sheet
included an estimated liability with respect to this self-insurance program of $29.7 million.
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Our objective in using derivatives is to add stability to interest expense and to manage our exposure to
interest rate movements. During the year ended December 31, 2004, such derivatives were used to hedge the
variable cash flows associated with a portion of our variable-rate debt. As of December 31, 2004, we did not
have any derivatives designated as fair value hedges. Additionally, we do not use derivatives for trading or
speculative purposes. We use a variety of methods and assumptions that are based on market conditions and risks
existing at each balance sheet date to determine the fair value of our derivative instruments. For the majority of
financial instruments including most derivatives, standard market conventions and techniques such as discounted
cash flow analyses, option pricing models, replacement cost and termination cost are used to determine fair
value. All methods of assessing fair value result in a general approximation of value and such value may never
actually be realized. Future cash inflows or outflows from our derivative instruments depend upon future
borrowing rates. If assumptions about future borrowing rates prove to be materially incorrect, the recorded value
of these agreements could also prove to be materially incorrect. Because we use the derivative instruments to
reduce our exposure to increases in variable interest rates, thus effectively fixing a portion of our variable interest
rates, the impact of changes in future borrowing rates could result in our interest expense being either higher or
lower than might otherwise have been incurred on our variable-rate borrowings had the rates not been fixed. A
reduction in interest rates could result in a competitive advantage for companies in a position to take advantage
of a lower cost of capital.

We are defendants in lawsuits that arise out of, and are incidental to, the conduct of our business. Our
management uses its judgment, with the aid of legal counsel, to record accruals for losses that we consider to be
probable and that can be reasonably estimated as a result of any pending actions against us.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In December 2003, the FASB issued FIN 46R, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.” The objective
of FIN 46R is to provide guidance on how to identify a variable interest entity (““VIE”) and determine when the
assets, liabilities, non-controlling interest, and results of operations of a VIE need to be included in a company’s
consolidated financial statements. A company that holds a variable interest in an entity will need to consolidate
the entity if the company’s interest in the VIE is such that the company will absorb a majority of the VIE’s
expected losses and/or receive a majority of the entity’s expected residual returns, if they occur. FIN 46R also
requires additional disclosure by primary beneficiaries and other significant variable interest holders. The
disclosure provisions of FIN 46R became effective upon issuance. The consolidation requirements of FIN 46R
apply immediately to VIE’s created after January 31, 2003 and in the first fiscal year or interim period ending
after March 15, 2004 to existing VIE’s. We adopted FIN 46R during the first quarter ended March 31, 2004. We
believe that our interest in one management contract (Wyndham Anatole) is a VIE where we are the primary
beneficiary, which requires consolidation under FIN 46R as of January 1, 2004. In the unlikely event that we
terminate the management contract and all of the underlying assets related to this contract had no value, we
estimate that the maximum exposure to loss would approximate $88.9 million, primarily representing the net
carrying value at December 31, 2004 of our investment in the management contract and the two previously
issued notes receivable. However, we expect to recover the recorded amount of our investment in the Wyndham
Anatole. See Note 4 to the Consolidated Financial Statements on page F-19 for the condensed financial
information of the Wyndham Anatole as of December 31, 2004.

On December 22, 2004, we formed a joint venture with LBREP to expand and develop Summerfield Suites
by Wyndham™, Wyndham’s upscale, extended-stay brand. The transaction included the sale of six Summerfield
Suites by Wyndham™ and the sale of an equity interest in the entity that owns our Summerfield brand to LBREP.
Under the terms of the joint venture agreement with LBREP, we initially hold a 66.67% ownership interest in the
joint venture, however, we have 50% voting rights. In addition, LBREP has a priority return. Therefore, in
accordance with FIN 46R, our joint venture with LBREP is also included in our consolidated financial statements
at December 31, 2004,
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In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS 150, “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with
Characteristics of Both Liabilities and Equity.” SFAS 150 specifies that instruments within its scope embody
obligations of the issuer and that, therefore, the issuer must classify them as liabilities. SFAS 150 is effective
immediately for all financial instruments entered into or modified after May 31, 2003. For all other instruments,
SFAS 150 goes into effect at the beginning of the first interim period beginning after June 15, 2003, except for
mandatorily redeemable financial instruments of a non-public entity. For contracts that were created or modified
before May 31, 2003 and still exist at the beginning of the first interim period beginning after June 15, 2003,
entities should record the transition to SFAS 150 by reporting the cumulative effect of a change in an accounting
principle. SFAS 150 prohibits entities from restating financial statements for earlier years presented. On October
29, 2003, the FASB deferred the provisions of paragraphs 9 and 10 of SFAS 150 as they apply to mandatorily
redeemable noncontrolling interests. Those provisions require that mandatorily redeemable minority interests
within the scope of SFAS 150 be classified as a liability on a parent company’s financial statement in certain
situations, including when a finite-lived entity is consolidated. The deferral of those provisions is expected to
remain in effect while these interests are addressed in either Phase II of the FASB’s Liabilities and Equity project
or Phase II of the FASB’s Business Combinations Project. However, the FASB did not defer the disclosure
provisions relating to mandatorily redeemable noncontrolling interests. Therefore, in accordance with SFAS 150,
if we liquidate the consolidated subsidiaries in which there exists a minority interest, we would be required to
pay approximately $22.6 million in cash. Such amount is lower than the carrying amount of the minority interest
in consolidated subsidiaries by $1.4 million.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS 123 (Revised 2004), “*Shared-Based Payment.” SFAS 123R is a
revision of SFAS 123, “Accounting for Stock Based Compensation”, and supersedes Accounting Principles
Board Opinion No. 25 (APB 25), “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees”. Among other items, SFAS 123R
eliminates the use of the intrinsic value method of accounting permitted under APB 25, and requires companies
to expense the fair value of employee stock options and similar share-based payment awards. Under SFAS 123R,
share-based payment awards are expensed based on the fair value of the awards on their grant dates and the
estimated number of awards that are expected to vest. The fair values of the share-based payment awards are
estimated using an option-pricing model that appropriately reflects a company’s specific circumstances and the
economics of the company’s share-based payment transactions. Compensation expense for share-based payment
awards, along with the related tax effects, is recognized as the awards vest. SFAS 123R also requires the tax
benefit associated with these share-based payment awards be classified as financing activities in the statement of
cash flow rather than operating activities as currently permitted. We will be required to adopt SFAS 123R in the
third quarter of 2005. The provisions of SFAS 123R apply to all outstanding and unvested share-based payment
awards at the company’s adoption date. SFAS 123R offers alternative transition methods of adopting this final
rule. At the present time, we have not determined which alternative method we will use.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Our primary market risk exposure is to future changes in interest rates related to our derivative financial
instruments and other financial instruments, including debt obligations, interest rate swaps, interest rate caps and
future debt commitments.

We manage our debt portfolio by periodically entering into interest rate swaps and caps to achieve an
overall desired position of fixed and floating rates or to limit our exposure to rising interest rates.

The following table provides information about our derivative and other financial instruments that are
sensitive to changes in interest rates.

« For fixed rate debt obligations, the table presents principal cash flows and related weighted-average
interest rates by expected maturity date and contracted interest rates at December 31, 2004. For variable
rate debt obligations, the table presents principal cash flows by expected maturity date and contracted
interest rates at December 31, 2004,
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*  For interest rate swaps and caps, the table presents notional amounts and weighted-average interest rates
or strike rates by expected (contractual) maturity dates. Notional amounts are used to calculate the
contractual cash flows to be exchanged under the contract. Weighted average variable rates are based on
implied forward rates in the yield curve at December 31, 2004.

Face Fair
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 Thereafter Value Value

(dollars in thousands)

Debt
Long-term debt
obligations including
current portion
FixedRate ......,.. $ 21461(1) 3 9,809 $ 8,538 $7970  $8,614 $207,189 $ 263,581 $ 264,197
Average Interest
Rate ............ 8.82% 8.70% 8.35% 8.25% 8.26% 7.91%
Variable Rate . . .. . .. $663,684(1) $1,257,084 $13,137 $ — 8 — $ — $1,933,905(2) $1,933,905
Average Interest
Rate ............ 6.88% 8.76% 6.67% — — —
Interest Rate Derivative
Financial Instruments
Related to Debt
Interest Rate Swaps
(based on British
LIBOR)
Pay Fixed/Receive :
Variable ... ...... $ 57,063 3 - %5 — 3 — $ — $ — $ 57,063 $ 38
Average Pay Rate . .. 4.62% — — — — —
Average Receive
Rate ............ 4.84% — — — — —
Interest Rate Swaps
(based on U.S.
LIBOR)
Pay Fixed/Receive
Variable ......... $742,188 $ — 512987 $ — 5§ _ $ — $ 755,175 3 (8,675)
Average Pay Rate . ., 6.62% — 4.24% — - —
Average Receive
Rate ............ 311% — 4.11% — — —
Interest Rate Caps
Notional Amount. ... $818,166 $ 35000 § — 3 — 5 — $ — $ 853,166 $ —
Strike Rate . ........ 5.92% 7.00% — — — —
ForwardRate . . . .. .. 3.11% 3.76% — — — —

the Wyndham Reach and normal principal amortization. We believe we will be able to refinance these two loans prior to maturity;
however, there can be no assurance that we will be able to do so.

(2) The Wyndham Anatole debt of $168.9 million is included, however, we are not a party to nor guarantor of this debt (see Note 4 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements),
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The debt portfolio as of December 31, 2003 was as follows:

Face Fair
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008  Thereafter Value Value
(dollars in thousands)
Debt

Long-term debt obligations
including current portion
FixedRate ................ $ 5508 $19,033 $ 7,167 $92,291 $3,539 $60,720 $ 1882258 $ 201,501
Average Interest Rate ....... 8.75% 8.98% 9.09% 8.12% 9.05% 9.00%
VariableRate ............. $287,153 $664,906 $1,528,387 $ 535 § 605 $12,115 $2,493,701  $2,493,701
Average Interest Rate ... .... 5.02% 7.63% 9.87% 481% 4.65% 4.87%

Interest Rate Derivative Financial
Instruments Related to Debt

Interest Rate Swaps (based on
British LIBOR)
Pay Fixed/Receive

Variable ............... $ — $53128 % -5 — 3% — & — $ 53,128 3 (109)

Average Pay Rate .......... 4.62 % 4.62 % — — — —
Average Receive Rate ...... 4.52 % 4.94 % — —_ — -

Interest Rate Swaps
Pay Fixed/Receive

Varjable ............... $ — $755978 § — % — % — $ — $ 755978 $ (49,148)

AveragePayRate .......... 6.63% 6.63% — — — —
Average Receive Rate ... ... 1.50% 2.94% — — — —

Interest Rate Caps
Notional Amount .......... $377,465 $688,515 § 5 — & — 5 -~ $1,065,980 $ (7.503)
StrikeRate ............... 6.21% 5.83% — — —_ —
ForwardRate ............. 1.50% 2.94% — — — -

From December 31, 2003 to December 31, 2004, the liability for derivative instruments decreased by $48.1
million. Our derivative portfolio consists entirely of interest rate protection agreements, which are valued based
on the present value of future expected hedge payments over the remaining term of each interest rate hedge.
Since the hedges have moved closer to their maturity date, the present value of future expected hedge payments
has decreased. Consequently, the negative market value on the hedges has decreased which resulted in a decrease
to the liability for derivative instruments,

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm report and our financial statements, notes thereto and
financial statement schedules listed in the accompanying index are filed as part of this Annual Report on Form
10-K. See “Index to Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedules” on page F-1.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of December 31, 2004, management, under the supervision and with the participation of our Chairman,
President and Chief Executive Officer (our principal executive officer) and our Chief Financial Officer (our
principal financial officer), evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined
under Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act™)).
Based on this evaluation, our Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer
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concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective in ensuring that information required to
be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit to the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”)
under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the
SEC’s rules and forms and include controls and procedures designed to insure the information required to be
disclosed by us in such reports is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chairman,
President and Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure.

Management’s Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting, as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f). The Company’s internal
control over financial reporting is a process designed under the supervision of the principal executive and
financial officers, and effected by the board of directors and management, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America.
Internal control over financial reporting cannot provide absolute assurance of achieving financial reporting
objectives because of its inherent limitations. Internal control over financial reporting is a process that involves
human diligence and compliance and is subject to lapses in judgment and breakdowns resulting from human
failures. Internal control over financial reporting also can be circumvented by collusion or improper management
override. Because of its inherent limitations, there is a risk that material misstatements may not be prevented or
detected on a timely basis by internal control over financial reporting. However, these inherent limitations are
known features of the financial reporting process. Therefore, it is possible to design into the process safeguards
to reduce, though not eliminate, the risk. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are
subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

We performed an assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2004 using the criteria described in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

A material weakness is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that results in more than
a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the annual or interim financial statements will not be
prevented or detected. Management is not permitted to conclude that the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting is effective if there are one or more material weaknesses in internal control over financial
reporting. As of December 31, 2004, the Company did not maintain effective controls over the accounting and
review of income taxes and the determination of deferred income taxes and the related valuation allowance.
Specifically, the Company did not maintain effective controls over the reconciliation of its income tax assets and
liabilities to the underlying differences between the tax basis and accounting basis of each component of the
Company’s balance sheet. In addition, the related income tax asset valuation allowance was not reconciled to the
underlying supporting detail. This control deficiency resulted in an audit adjustment to the fourth quarter 2004
consolidated financial statements. For the quarter ended March 31, 2005, the Company identified an additional
adjustment of a write-off of income tax receivable related to 2004, which resulted in the restatement of the 2004
financial statements described in Note 2b. Additionally, this control deficiency could result in a misstatement of
income taxes payable, deferred income tax assets and liabilities and the related income tax provision that could
result in a material misstatement to the annual or interim financial statements that would not be prevented or
detected. Accordingly, management determined that this control deficiency constitutes a material weakness.
Because of this material weakness, we have concluded that the Company did not maintain effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria in Internal Control—Integrated
Framework.

Management had previously concluded that the Company did not maintain effective internal control over
financial reporting because of the material weakness described above. In connection with the restatement
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described in Note 2b to the consolidated financial statements related to the accounting for income taxes,
management has determined that the material weakness described above also affected this restatement.
Accordingly, the restatement did not have an effect on management’s assessment.

Our management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2004 has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered
public accounting firm, as stated in their report, which appears herein and which expressed an unqualified
opinion on management’s assessment and an adverse opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004.

Management’s Consideration of the Restatement

In coming to the conclusion that our disclosure controls and procedures and our internal control over
financial reporting were not effective as of December 31, 2004, our management considered, among other things,
the control deficiency related to the accounting for income taxes, which previously resulted in a material
adjustment to the December 31, 2004 consolidated financial statements. In May 2005, an additional adjustment
related to the accounting for income taxes, as well as other adjustments, resulted in the need to restate our
previously issued 2004 consolidated financial statements as disclosed in Note 2b of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements included in Item § of this Annual Report on Form 10-K/A. After reviewing and analyzing
the Securities and Exchange Commission’s Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 99, “Materiality,”
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 28, “Interim Financial Reporting” paragraph 29 and SAB Topic 5-F,
“Accounting Changes Not Retroactively Applied Due to Immateriality,” and taking into consideration (i) that the
restatement adjustments did not have a material impact on the financial statements of prior interim or annual
periods taken as a whole; (ii) that the cumulative impact of the restatement adjustments on stockholders’ equity
was not material to the financial statements of prior interim or annual periods; and (iii) that we have restated our
previously issued financial statements solely because the cumulative impact of the error, if recorded in the
March 31, 2005 interim consolidated financial statements, would have been material to the March 31, 2005
interim consolidated financial statements’s reported net income, our management has concluded that the
adjustment related to accounting for income taxes provides further evidence of the previously disclosed material
weakness. Furthermore, our management has concluded that the other control deficiencies related to the other
adjustments did not constitute a material weakness, individually or when aggregated.

Remediation of Material Weakness

As discussed in Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, as of December 31,
2004, there was a material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting. In 2005, we plan to
implement improved monitoring controls over the income tax account balance sheet review process and will
engage a third party consultant to assist our personnel in conducting a comprehensive and detailed review of our
tax reporting and accounting. Once fully implemented, management believes that these new policies and
procedures will be effective at remediating this material weakness.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Other than the matters discussed above, during the three-month period ended December 31, 2004, there
were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that materially affected or are reasonably likely
to materially affect our internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None
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PART II1

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The information required by Item 10 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K (other than the information
required by Item 401 of Regulation S-K with respect to executive officers, which appears under the heading
“Executive Officers of the Registrant” below) is incorporated by reference from our Amendment No. 2 on Form
10-K/A to the 2004 Annual Report filed with the SEC on April 29, 2005.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT
Set forth below are the names, ages and certain other information concerning our executive officers:

Fred J. Kleisner is the Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer. He has served as Chairman of the
Board since October 13, 2000 and as Chief Executive Officer since March 27, 2000. From July 1999 to October
2000, Mr. Kleisner served as President. From July 1999 to March 2000, Mr. Kleisner also served as Chief
Operating Officer. From March 1998 to August 1999, he was President and Chief Operating Officer of The
Americas, for Starwood Hotels & Resorts Worldwide, Inc. Hotel Group. His experience in the industry also
includes senior positions with Westin Hotels and Resorts, where he was President and Chief Operating Officer
from 1995 to 1998; Interstate Hotels, where he was Executive Vice President and Group President of Operations
from 1990 to 1995; The Sheraton Corporation, where he was Senior Vice President, Director of Operations,
North America Division-East from 1985 to 1990; and Hilton Hotels, where for 16 years he served as General
Manager of several landmark hotels, including The Waldorf Astoria and The Waldorf Towers in New York, The
Capital Hilton in Washington, D.C. and The Hilton Hawaiian Village in Honolulu. Mr. Kleisner, who holds a
B.A. degree in Hotel Management from Michigan State University, completed advanced studies at the University
of Virginia and Catholic University of America. Mr. Kleisner is 60 years old.

Mark A. Solls became our Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary in September 2002. He
previously served as Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary with Dal-Tile International, Inc. from 1998
to 2002. Prior to Dal-Tile, Mr. Solls served as Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary for Pronet Inc.
from 1993 to 1997. Mr. Solls obtained his B.A. in Finance from the University of Illinois and his law degree
from Southern Illinois University. Mr. Solls is 48 years old.

Judy Hendrick was named our Executive Vice President and Chief Investment Officer in October 2004. Ms.
Hendrick previously served as Senior Vice President of Finance and Treasurer. She joined us in 1993 as Finance
Manager. Prior to joining Wyndham, Ms. Hendrick held commercial lending positions with InterFirst Bank
Dallas where she was Vice President of Real Estate Lending. Ms. Hendrick holds a B.S. degree from Kansas
State University and a master’s in business administration from the University of Texas at Dallas. Ms. Hendrick
is 51 years old.

Elizabeth Schroeder became our Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer in October 2004 and
is responsible for finance strategy and operations. Ms. Schroeder joined us in August 1998 as Vice President of
Finance. She previously held executive positions in financial reporting, planning and analysis with American
General Hospitality Corporation, where she was the Corporate Controller. Ms. Schroeder earned her bachelor’s
degree from Louisiana State University and is a certified public accountant. Ms. Schroeder is 39 years old.

Timothy L. Fielding was named Executive Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer in October 2004,
Mr. Fielding joined us in July 1995 as Director of Corporate Finance. Prior to joining Wyndham, Mr. Fielding
served two years as the Director of Corporate Finance with Medical Care America and ten years with KPMG
Peat Marwick working with public and private companies in the real estate, broker/dealer, banking and
manufacturing industries. Mr. Fielding received bachelor’s and master’s degrees in accounting from Sam
Houston State University and is a certified public accountant. Mr. Fielding is 44 years old.
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Andrew Jordan became our Executive Vice President, Chief Marketing Officer in April 2003 and oversees
the operations of the sales, revenue management, marketing and corporate communications departments. Mr.
Jordan joined Wyndham in 1998 as Senior Vice President of Marketing, responsible for positioning Wyndham as
a leading, upscale hotel brand in North America. He previously served as President of U.S. Sales and Marketing
for Club Med. Prior to that, he was part of the global marketing team for The Coca-Cola Company in Atlanta,
and spent the prior ten years with major advertising agencies in New York, including Lowe & Partners, Wells
Rich Green and Ogilvy & Mather. Mr. Jordan received his master’s degree from New York University and
undergraduate degree from the University of Texas in Austin. Mr. Jordan is 42 years old.

Michael A. Grossman became our Executive Vice President, Asset Management/Owned Assets in October
2004 and is responsible for the asset management function related to our owned properties. Additionally, he has
oversight of our hotel management services division, where he leads the team that manages non-proprietary
branded properties owned by Wyndham and third party owners. He had previously served as Executive Vice
Presidént and divisional President of the management services division since January 1998. From 1977 to 1993,
Mr. Grossiman owned and operated Grossman and Associates, a hotel management company. Mr. Grossman
joined Patriot American Hospitality L.P. in August 1993 as a Senior Vice President heading up its hotel division.
Mr. Grossman was subsequently appointed Chief Operating Officer of Gencom American Hospitality, which
initially served as a third party manager for Patriot and was subsequently acquired by Patriot. Mr. Grossman
holds a B.B.A. from the University of Texas and a J.D. from Southern Methodist University. Mr. Grossman is 52
years old.

Mark Hedley was named Executive Vice President and Chief Information Officer in January 2005 and is
responsible for driving strategic technology initiatives throughout the company and overseeing casino gaming
operations in Puerto Rico. Mr. Hedley was formerly our Senior Vice President and Chief Technology Officer.
Prior to joining Wyndham in 2000, Mr. Hedley served as vice president, information technology for Sun
International, North America. He was previously vice president and chief information officer of Caesars World,
Inc. and héld other senior technology and information systems positions with Caesars World, Inc. and ITT
Sheraton organizations. Mr. Hedley received a B.A. in hotel, restaurant and institutional management from
Michigan State University. Mr. Hedley is 41 years old.

We have a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that applies to all our directors, officers and employees,
which can be found at our Web site, www.wyndham.com. We will post any amendments to the Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics, as well as any waivers that are required to be disclosed by the rules of the SEC on our Web
site. Information on Wyndham’s Web site is not incorporated by reference into this Annual Report on Form
10-K.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by Item 11 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K is incorporated by reference from
our Amendment No. 2 on Form 10-K/A to the 2004 Annual Report filed with the SEC on April 29, 2005.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

With the exception of the equity compensation plan table presented below, the information required by Item
12 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K is incorporated by reference from our Amendment No. 2 on Form 10-K/
A 16 the 2004 Annual Report filed with the SEC on April 29, 2005.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of securities

Number of securities remaining available for
to be issned Weighted-average future issnance under
upon exercise of exercise price of equity compensation plans
outstanding options, outstanding options, (excluding securities
Plan category warrants and rights  warrants and rights reflected in column (a))

(a) (b) (©
Equity compensation plans approved by security
holders ... 15,815,904(1) $4.96(2) 15,230,877(3)
Equity compensation plans not approved by
security holders ............... ... ... ... —_ — —

Total ..... ... 15,815,904(1) $4.96(2) 15,230,877(3)

(1) The 15,815,904 consists of 8,694,785 of stock options outstanding and 7,121,119 of restricted unit awards
outstanding at December 31, 2004.

(2) The figure set forth in column (b) reflects the weighted average exercise price for the 8,694,785 stock
options outstanding under our equity compensation plans as of December 31, 2004. In addition to such stock
options, 7,121,119 restricted unit awards were also outstanding under our equity compensation plans as of
December 31, 2004. These restricted unit awards entitle the recipients to receive shares of our class A
common stock upon the satisfaction of certain terms and conditions, including the satisfaction of certain
vesting requirements. Since no exercise price is payable with respect to the restricted unit awards, such
restricted unit awards were excluded from the calculation of the weighted average exercise price.

(3) The figure set forth in column (c) reflects the number of securities available for issuance under our equity
compensation plans as of December 31, 2004. Under the Second Amendment and Restatement of our 1997
Incentive Plan, the number of shares available for grant is equal to 10% of the outstanding shares of our
class A common stock on a fully diluted basis. For purposes of this plan, “fully diluted basis” means the
assumed conversion of all outstanding shares of our series A and series B convertible preferred stock, the
assumed exercise of all outstanding stock options and the assumed conversion of all units of partnership
interest in Patriot American Hospitality Partnership, L.P. and Wyndham International Operating
Partnership, L.P.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The information required by Item 13 of this Annual Report on 10-K is incorporated by reference from our
Amendment No. 2 on Form 10-K/A to the 2004 Annual Report filed with the SEC on April 29, 2005.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by Item 14 of this Annual Report on 10-K is incorporated by reference from our
Amendment No. 2 on Form 10-K/A to the 2004 Annual Report filed with the SEC on April 29, 2005.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) The index to the audited financial statements and the notes thereto, and financial statement schedules is
included on page F-1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The financial statements are included herein at
pages F-4 through F-46. The following financial statement schedules are included herein at pages F-47
through F-52:

Schedule II—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Schedule III—Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation

All other schedules for which provision is made in Regulation S-X are either not required to be included
herein under the related instructions or are inapplicable or the related information is included in the
footnotes to the applicable financial statement and, therefore, have been omitted.

(b) Exhibits:

Exhibit
Number

Description

2.1

22

23

24

3.1

32

3.3

4.1

4.2

Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of February 18, 1999, by and among Patriot American
Hospitality, Inc. (“Patriot”), Wyndham International, Inc. (“Wyndham”), Patriot American
Hospitality Partnership, L.P., Wyndham International Operating Partnership, L.P. and the Investors
named therein, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Wyndham’s Registration Statement on
Form S-4/A (SEC file no. 333-79527) filed June 1, 1999.

Amendment to Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of June 28, 1999, by and among Patriot,
Wyndham, Patriot American Hospitality Partnership, L.P., Wyndham International Operating
Partnership, L.P. and the parties identified on the signature page as the Original Investors,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.2 to Wyndham’s Current Report on Form 8-K (SEC file no.
001-09320) filed July 13, 1999.

Restructuring Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.2 to Wyndham’s Registration Statement
on Form S-4/A (SEC file no. 333-79527) filed June 1, 1999.

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of March 26, 1999, by and among Wyndham, Wyndham
International Acquisition Subsidiary, Inc. and Patriot, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.3 to
Wyndham’s Registration Statement on Form S-4/A (SEC file no. 333-79527) filed June 1, 1999.

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Wyndham, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.1 to Wyndham’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (SEC file no. 333-82325) filed July
2, 1999.

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Wyndham, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Wyndham’s
Registration Statement on Form S-8 (SEC file no. 333-82325) filed July 2, 1999.

Amendment No. 1 to Amended and Restated Bylaws of Wyndham, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 2.1 to Wyndham’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31,
2000.

Certificate of Designation of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock of Wyndham, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 99.5 to Wyndham’s and Patriot’s Current Report on Form 8-K (SEC file no.
001-09320) filed March 2, 1999.

Certificate of Designation of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock of Wyndham, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Wyndham’s Registration Statement on Form S-4/A (SEC file no.
333-79527) filed June 1, 1999.
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Exhibit
Number

Description

4.3

44

45

4.6

47

4.8

10.1

10.2

103

104

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

Certificate of Designation of Series C Junior Participating Cumulative Preferred Stock of Wyndham,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Wyndham’s Current Report on Form 8-K (SEC file no.
001-09320) filed July 12, 1999.

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of February 18, 1999, by and among Wyndham and the
holders of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock of Wyndham party thereto, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Wyndham’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
June 30, 1999 (SEC file no. 001-09320).

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of June 30, 1999, by and among Wyndham and former
Operating Partnership unitholders party thereto, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
Wyndham’s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (SEC file no. 333-86189) filed August 30, 1999.

Shareholder Rights Agreement, dated as of June 29, 1999, between Wyndham and American Stock
Transfer and Trust Company, as Rights Agent, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to
Wyndham'’s Current Report on Form 8-K (SEC file no. 001-09320) filed July 12, 1999.

Amendment No. 1 to the Shareholder Rights Agreement, dated May 12, 2000, by and between
Wyndham and American Stock Transfer and Trust Company, incorporated by reference to Exhibit
4.2 to Wyndham’s Registration Statement on Form 8-A filed May 30, 2000.

Amendment No. 2 to the Shareholder Rights Agreement, dated April 24, 2002, by and between
Wyndham and American Stock Transfer and Trust Company, incorporated by reference to Exhibit
4.8 to Wyndham’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002.

Credit Agreement, dated as of June 30, 1999, by and among Wyndham and the lenders named
therein, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Wyndham’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 1999.

Increasing Rate Note Purchase and Loan Agreement, dated as of June 30, 1999, by and among
Wyndham and the lenders named therein, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Wyndham’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1999.

Executive Employment Agreement as Amended and Restated, dated as of April 19, 1999, between
Wyndham and Michael A. Grossman, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Wyndham’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1999.

Executive Employment Agreement, dated as of March 27, 2000, between Wyndham and Fred J.
Kleisner, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Wyndham’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2000.

Letter Agreement, dated July 7, 1999, between Wyndham and Karim Alibhai, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Wyndham'’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 1999 (SEC file no. 001-09320).

Second Amendment and Restatement of the Wyndham 1997 Incentive Plan, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Wyndham’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed on September 6,
2001.

Letter Agreement, dated March 1, 2001, between James D. Carreker and Wyndham, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.16 to Wyndham’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December
31, 2000.

Amendment and Restatement to the Credit Agreement, dated September 25, 2000, by Wyndham and
the lenders named therein incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Wyndham’s Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2000.
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Exhibit
Number Description

10.9 Amendment and Restatement to the Increasing Rate Note Purchase and L.oan Agreement, dated
September 25, 2000, by Wyndham and the lenders named therein, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.18 to Wyndham’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2000.

10.10 Loan Agreement, dated as of July 18, 2001, by and among W-Baltimore, LL.C, Posadas De San Juan
Associates, W-Atlanta, LLC, W-Boston LLC and Travis Real Estate Group Joint Venture (wholly-
owned subsidiaries of Wyndham) and Lehman Brothers Bank FSB, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to Wyndham’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30,
2001.

10.11 Form of Restricted Unit Award Agreement, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Wyndham’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2001.

10.12 Waiver to the Credit Agreement, dated as of September 25, 2001, by Wyndham and the lenders
named therein, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Wyndham’s Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2001.

10.13 Addendum to Employment Agreement, effective as of July 13, 2001, between Wyndham and Fred J.
Kleisner, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to Wyndham’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2001.

10.14 Addendum No. 2 to Employment Agreement, effective as of November 14, 2001, between Wyndham
and Fred J. Kleisner, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to Wyndham’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001.

10.15 Second Amendment and Restatement to the Credit Agreement, dated as of January 16, 2002, by
Wyndham and the lenders named therein, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to Wyndham’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001.

10.16 ~ Second Amendment and Restatement to the Increasing Note Purchase and Loan Agreement, dated as
of January 16, 2002, by Wyndham and the lenders named therein, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.20 to Wyndham’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001

10.17 Addendum to Employment Agreement, effective as of August 10, 2001, between Wyndham and
Michael Grossman, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.23 to Wyndham’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001.

10.18 Addendum No. 2 to Employment Agreement, effective as of December 21, 2001, between Wyndham
and Michael Grossman, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.24 to Wyndham’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001.

10.19 Form of Third Amendment and Restatement to the Credit Agreement, dated as of April 22, 2002, by
Wyndham and the lenders named therein, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Wyndham’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2002.

10.20 Amendment No. 1 to the Second Amendment and Restatement of Wyndham’s 1997 Incentive Plan,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Wyndham’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarterly period ended March 31, 2002.

10.21 Addendum No. 3 to Employment Agreement, effective as of January 7, 2002, between Wyndham
and Fred J. Kleisner, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Wyndham’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2002.

10.22 Addendum No. 4 to Employment Agreement, effective as of January 28, 2002, between Wyndham
and Fred J. Kleisner, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Wyndham’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2002.
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Exhibit
Number

Description

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32

Employment Agreement, dated September 17, 2002, between Wyndham and Mark A. Solls,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Wyndham’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarterly period ended September 30, 2002.

Loan Agreement, dated as of June 28, 1999, between Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc. and W-
Brookfield, LLC, DT Gienview, LLC, R-Lisle, LLC, Rad-Burl, LLC, Parsippany, LLC, Rad-Jose,
LLC, WCHNW, LLC, W-Garden Atlanta, LLC, W-Charlotte, LLC, and H-Melbourne, L.P,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.38 to Wyndham’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2002,

First Amendment to Loan Agreement, dated as of June 29, 2001, between W-Brookfield, LLC, DT
Glenview, LLC, R-Lisle, LLC, Rad-Burl, LLC, Parsippany, LLC, Rad-Jose, LLC, WCHNW, LLC,
W-Garden Atlanta, LLC, W-Charlotte, LLC and H-Melbourne, L.P. and Sasco Floating Rate
Commercial Mortgage Trust 1999-C3, Multiclass Pass-Through Certificates, Series 1999-C3,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.39 to Wyndham’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2002.

Amended and Restated Loan Agreement, dated as of November 5, 1999, between Bear, Stearns
Funding, Inc. and the other parties signatory thereto, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.40 to
Wyndham’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002.

First Amendment and Supplement to Amended and Restated Loan Agreement, dated as of
September 6, 2002 between LaSalle Bank National Association, as Trustee for Bear Stearns
Commercial Mortgage Securities Inc. Commercial Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates Series 1999-
WYNI and the other parties signatory thereto, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.41 to
Wyndham’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002.

Second Amendment and Supplement to Amended and Restated Loan Agreement, dated as of
October 11, 2002, between LaSalle Bank National Association, as Trustee for Bear Stearns
Commercial Mortgage Securities Inc. Commercial Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates Series 1999-
WYNI1 and the other parties signatory thereto, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.42 to
Wyndham’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002.

Third Amendment and Supplement to Amended and Restated Loan Agreement, dated as of
November 15, 2002, between LaSalle National Bank, as Trustee for the Registered Holders of Bear
Stearns Commercial Mortgage Securities, Inc., Commercial Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates,
Series 1999-WYNI and the other parties signatory thereto, incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.43 to Wyndham’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002.

Promissory Note, dated September 4, 1997, by Patriot American Hospitality Partnership, L.P. in
favor of Metropolitan Life Insurance Company in the original principal amount of $13,467,000,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.44 to Wyndham’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2002.

Promissory Note, dated September 4, 1997, by PAH-DT Allen Partners, L.P. in favor of
Metropolitan Life Insurance Company in the original principal amount of $29,748,000, incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.45 to Wyndham’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2002.

Promissory Note, dated September 4, 1997, by PAH-DT Allen Partners, L.P. in favor of
Metropolitan Life Insurance Company in the original principal amount of $11,155,500, incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.46 to Wyndham’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2002.
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Promissory Note, dated September 4, 1997, by PAH-DT Allen Partners, L.P. in favor of
Metropolitan Life Insurance Company in the original principal amount of $9,246,000, incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.47 to Wyndham’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2002.

Promissory Note, dated September 4, 1997, by PAH-DT Allen Partners, L.P. in favor of
Metropolitan Life Insurance Company in the original principal amount of $21,909,000, incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.48 to Wyndham’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2002.

Promissory Note, dated September 4, 1997, by PAH-DT Allen Partners, L.P. in favor of
Metropolitan Life Insurance Company in the original principal amount of $13,366,500, incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.49 to Wyndham’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2002.

Promissory Note, dated February 13, 2001, by Fred J. Kleisner in favor of Wyndham, incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.50 to Wyndham’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2002.

Addendum No. 5 to Employment Agreement, effective as of January 6, 2003, by and between
Wyndham and Fred J. Kleisner, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.51 to Wyndham’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002.

Fourth Amendment and Restatement to the Credit Agreement, dated as of March 4, 2003, by
Wyndham and the lenders named therein, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Wyndham’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2003.

Third Amendment and Restatement to the Increasing Rate Note Purchase and Loan Agreement,
dated March 4, 2003, by Wyndham and the lenders named therein, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to Wyndham’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31,
2003.

Fifth Amendment and Restatement to the Credit Agreement, dated as of May 29, 2003, among the
Company and the lenders named therein, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Wyndham’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2003.

Fourth Amendment and Restatement to the Increasing Rate Note Loan and Purchase Agreement,
dated as of May 29, 2003, among the Company and the lenders named therein, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Wyndham’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period
ended June 30, 2003.

Employment Agreement, dated May 21, 2003, between Wyndham and Andrew Jordan, incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Wyndham’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period
ended June 30, 2003.

Mortgage Loan Agreement, dated June 11, 2003, between Lehman ALI, Inc. and the Company’s
subsidiaries that are party thereto, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to Wyndham’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on July 18, 2003.

Mezzanine Loan Agreement, dated June 11, 2003, between Lehman ALI Inc. and the Company’s
subsidiaries that are party thereto, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.3 to Wyndham’s Current
Report on Form §-K filed on July 18, 2003.

Mortgage Loan Agreement, dated October 28, 2003, between Lehman Brothers Holdings, Inc. D/B/A
Lehman Capital and Posadas De Puerto Rico Associates, Inc., incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.59 to Wyndham’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003
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Mezzanine Loan Agreement, dated October 28, 2003, between Lehman Brothers Holdings, Inc. and
PPRA Mezz Borrower, Inc., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.60 to Wyndham’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003.

Mortgage Loan Agreement, dated April 30, 2004, between GMAC Commercial Mortgage
Corporation, Inc. and the Company’s subsidiaries that are party thereto, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to Wyndham’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30,
2004.

Mortgage Loan Agreement, dated June 22, 2004, between Credit Suisse First Boston, Inc. and the
Company’s subsidiaries that are party thereto, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to
Wyndham’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2004.

Employment Agreement, dated January 4, 2003, between Wyndham and Timothy L. Fielding,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Wyndham’s Current Report on Form 8-K/A dated
October 12, 2004 and filed January 6, 2005.

Employment Agreement, dated January 4, 2005, between Wyndham and Judy L. Hendrick,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to Wyndham’s Current Report on Form 8-K/A dated
October 12, 2004 and filed January 6, 2005.

Employment Agreement, dated January 4, 2005, between Wyndham and Elizabeth Schroeder,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.3 to Wyndham’s Current Report on Form 8-K/A dated
October 12, 2004 and filed January 6, 2005.

Employment Agreement, dated January 5, 2005, between Wyndham and Mark Hedley, incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Wyndham’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 12, 2005,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.51 to Wyndham’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2004.

Agreement of Purchase and Sale, dated December 22, 2004, by and among Sum Business Holdings,
LLC, and Sum Mezz, LLC, and Wyndham, Summerfield Hotel Company, L.P., Summerfield
Hanover Owner, LLC and S-Seattie, LLC, and Patriot American Hospitality Partnership, L.P.
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.52 to Wyndham’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2004.

Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated December 30, 2004, by and among Wyndham, the Owners, and
W2005 WYN Realty, L.L.C. and Halifax Holdings, Inc. incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.53
to Wyndham’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004.

Statement Regarding Computation of Ratios.

Significant Subsidiaries of Wyndham, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.51 to Wyndham’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004.

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

*  Filed herewith
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant
has duly caused this Form 10-K/A to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

WYNDHAM INTERNATIONAL, INC.

By: /s/ FRED J. KLEISNER

Fred J. Kleisner
Chairman of the Board, President and
Chief Executive Officer

Dated: May 23, 2005

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by
the following persons on behalf of the registrant in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Capacities in which signed P_a_tf
/s/  FRED J. KLEISNER Chairman of the Board, President and May 23, 2005
Fred J. Kleisner Chief Executive Officer (principal

executive officer)

/s/ ELIZABETH SCHROEDER Executive Vice President and Chief May 23, 2005
Elizabeth Schroeder Financial Officer (principal financial
officer)
/s/  TiMOTHY L. FIELDING Executive Vice President and Chief May 23, 2005
Timothy L. Fielding Accounting Officer (principal

accounting officer)

/s/  KARIM ALIBHAT* Director May 23, 2005
Karim Alibhai
/s/  MARC A. BEILINSON* Director May 23, 2005
Marc A. Beilinson
/s/ LEeEoND. BLACK* Director May 23, 2005
Leon D. Black
/s/ LEONARD BOXER* Director May 23, 2005

Leonard Boxer

/s!  ADELA CEPEDA* Director May 23, 2005
Adela Cepeda
/s/  MILTON FINE* Director May 23, 2005
Milton Fine
/s/ LEE HILLMAN* Director May 23, 2005

Lee Hillman
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Signature Capacities in which signed Date

/s/ 'THoMmAs H. LEg* Director May 23, 2005
Thomas H. Lee

/s/  ALAN M. LEVENTHAL* Director May 23, 2005

Alan M. Leventhal

/s/ WILLIAM MACK* Director May 23, 2005
William Mack

/s/ LEE S. NEIBART* Director May 23, 2005
Lee 8. Neibart

/s MARC J. ROWAN* Director May 23, 2005
Marc J. Rowan

/s/ _RoLF E. RUHFUs* Director May 23, 2005
Rolf E. Ruhfus

/s/ LAWRENCE J. RUISI* Director May 23, 2005

Lawrence J. Ruisi

/s/ScoOTT A. SCHOEN* Director May 23, 2005
Scott A. Schoen

/s/  ScoTT M. SPERLING* Director May 23, 2005
Scott M. Sperling

/s/  LyNN C. SWANN* Director May 23, 2005

Lynn C. Swann

/s/{ SHERWOOD M. WEISER* Director May 23, 2005
Sherwood M. Weiser

* By Fred J. Kleisner, Attorney-in-Fact

52




WYNDHAM INTERNATIONAL, INC.
7
INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

HISTORICAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Page

Wyndham International, Inc.:
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm—PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP ............ F-2
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,2004 and 2003 . ........ ... ... o iiiiiiin.... F-4
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 .. ....... F-5
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and

2002 e e e e e e e e e e F-6
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 ........ F-7
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements . ............. . ittt F-8
Financial Statement Schedules:
Schedule II—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts ................ . it F-47
Schedule III—Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation .. ...t F-48

F-1




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders
Wyndham International, Inc.:

We have completed an integrated audit of Wyndham International Inc.’s 2004 consolidated financial
statements and of its internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004 and audits of its 2003 and
2002 consolidated financial statements in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Our opinions, based on our audits, are presented below.

Consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedules

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the accompanying index present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Wyndham International Inc. and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2004
and 2003, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2004 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
In addition, in our opinion, the financial statement schedules listed in the accompanying index present fairly, in
all material respects, the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated
financial statements. These financial statements and financial statement schedules are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and financial
statement schedules based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with the
standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As described in Note 2b to the consolidated financial statements, the Company has restated its 2004
consolidated financial statements.

Internal control over financial reporting

Also, we have audited management’s assessment, included in Management’s Report on Internal Control
Over Financial Reporting appearing under Item 9A, that Wyndham International Inc. did not maintain effective
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, because Wyndham International, Inc. did not
maintain effective controls over the accounting and review of income taxes and the determination of deferred
income taxes and the related valuation allowance, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The
Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for
its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Qur responsibility is to express
opinions on management’s assessment and on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of internal control over financial reporting in accordance with the standards of the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. An audit of internal control over financial reporting includes obtaining an
understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we
consider necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.
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A company'’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

A material weakness is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that results in more than a
remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or
detected. The following material weakness has been identified and included in management’s assessment. As of
December 31, 2004, Wyndham International, Inc. did not maintain effective controls over the accounting and review
of income taxes and the determination of deferred income taxes and the related valuation allowance. Specifically, the
Company did not maintain effective controls over the reconciliation of its income tax assets and liabilities to the
underlying differences between the tax basis and accounting basis of each component of the Company’s balance
sheet. In addition, the related income tax asset valuation allowance was not reconciled to the underlying supporting
detail. This control deficiency resulted in an audit adjustment to the fourth quarter 2004 consolidated financial
statements. For the quarter ended March 31, 2005, the Company identified an additional adjustment of a write-off of
income tax receivable related to 2004, which resulted in the restatement of the 2004 financial statements described in
Note 2b. Additionally, this control deficiency could result in a misstatement of income taxes payable, deferred
income tax assets and liabilities and the related income tax provision that could result in a material misstatement to
the annual or interim financial statements that would not be prevented or detected. Accordingly, management
determined that this control deficiency constitutes a material weakness. This material weakness was considered in
determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the December 31, 2004 consolidated
financial statements, and our opinion regarding the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting does not affect our opinion on those consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that Wyndham International Inc. did not maintain effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on criteria
established in Internal Control ~ Integrated Framework issued by the COSO. Also, in our opinion, because of the
effect of the material weakness described above on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria,
Wyndham International Inc. has not maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the COSO.

Management and we previously concluded that the Company did not maintain effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2004 because of the material weakness described above. In connection
with the restatement of the Company’s consolidated financial statements described in Note 2b to the consolidated
financial statements related to accounting for income taxes, management has determined that the material
weakness described above resulted in this restatement. Accordingly, this restatement did not affect
management’s assessment or our opinions on internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Dallas, Texas

March 15, 2005 with respect to our opinion relating to the consolidated financial statements and financial
statement schedules, except for Note 2b to the consolidated financial statements related to accounting for income
taxes, as to which the date is May 16, 2005, and April 8, 2005 with respect to our opinions relating to internal
control over financial reporting, except for the penultimate paragraph of Management’s Report on Internal
Control Over Financial Reporting, as to which the date is May 16, 2005
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WYNDHAM INTERNATIONAL, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cashandcashequivalents .......... ... i i e
Restricted cash ... .. o e e e e
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $4,115 in 2004 and $4,489 in 2003 . . .
D 013170 o 1= L PP
Prepaid expenses and other assets .......... ... i e
Assets held for sale, net of accumulated depreciation of $178,085 in 2004 and $119,868 in 2003 . ...
Total COITENt ASSELS . . .. o\ttt it it e e e

Investment in real estate and related improvements, net of accumulated depreciation of $576,686 in 2004
and $901,779 0 2003 . ... e e e e
Investment in unconsolidated subsidiaries . ... .. .. .. .. i e
Notes and other 1eCeivables ... ... . i e i e e e e
Management contract costs, net of accumulated amortization $7,128 in 2004 and $20,204 in 2003 ... .. ..
Leasehold costs, net of accumulated amortization of $186 in 2004 and $32in2003 ...................
Trade names, net of accumulated amortization of $42,739 in 2004 and $37,123in2003 . ...............
Deferred INCOME LAXES . . .ttt t et ettt e e et e e e e e e e
Deferred acquisition COSIS . ... ... o i i
Deferred expenses, net of accumulated amortization of 362,123 in 2004 and $73,758 in 2003 ...........
(313 LT R
) 1B T

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Trade accounts payable .......... . . .
Accrued payroll COSES .. ...
Dividends payable . ... .. .. ..
Accrued insurance and Property taXes .. ... ...t ii e e
Other acCrued EXPENSES .. vttt t ettt e e e e e
Advance deposits . .. ... . e e e
Borrowings associated with assets held forsale ............ ... .. . o i i
Current portion of borrowings under credit facility, term loans, mortgage notes and capital lease

OblIZALIONS . ..

Total current Habilities .. ... ..ot i e e

Borrowings under credit facility, term loans, mortgage notes and capital lease obligations . .............
Derivative financial INSIFUIMENS . .. ... ... it
Income taxes payable . ... ...
Deferred inCOME . .. ..o e
Minority interest in the Operating Partnerships .. ... o i i s
Minority interest in other consolidated subsidiaries .. ....... .. ... ... . . i i i
Commitments and contingencies
Shareholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value; authorized: 150,000,000 shares; shares issued and outstanding:
15,812,279 in 2004 and 14,423,151in2003 . ... . .. . . e
Common stock, $0.01 par value; authorized: 750,000,000 shares; shares issued and outstanding:
171,386,918 in 2004 and 168.238,102in2003 ....... ... .. . .
Additional paidincapital ... ... ... .
Receivables from shareholders and affiliates . ..... ... ... .. ..
Accumulated other comprehensiveincome ........ .. .. .. . i
Accumulated deficit . ... ...

Total shareholders’ equity . .......... oot i

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity . ......... ... .. .o

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

F4

December 31, December 31,
2004 2003
(Restated)
$ 24338 $ 62,441
77,812 130,457
70,129 71,077
12,818 13,680
10,389 10,564
361,504 238,330
556,990 526,549
2,032,965 2,938,808
51,149 48,252
23,686 43,320
4,826 79,014
6,537 572
83,612 86,743
— 17,125
4,335 4,459
21,803 49,267
4,586 6,143

$ 2,790,489

$ 3,800,252

$ 17,891 $ 28,609
49,138 45,866
102,322 73,100
41,884 40,559
94,494 61,875
36,637 33,006
114,251 118,133
685,145 292,661
1,141,762 693,809
1,398,090 2,271,165
8,637 56,760
33,107 57,124
9,446 10,051
20,559 21,289
63,001 39,981
158 144
1,714 1,682
4,298,445 4,166,227
(6,855) (18,121)
(5,560) (8,918)
(4,172,015) (3,490,941)
115,887 650,073

$ 2,790,489

$ 3,800,252




WYNDHAM INTERNATIONAL, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Years Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
(Restated)
Revenues:
ROOIMI TEVEMUSS . o\ ot ettt et et e et et e e e e e e e e $ 491,564 $419,718 $ 420,275
Food and beverage revenues ... ... ..ottt i e 301,246 236,086 231,640
Other ROtel TEVEIUES . .. .ottt e e e e e e et e et et e e 150,979 146,139 160,415
Total HOtel FEVEIUES « . . o v oottt et et e et e e e s 943,789 801,943 812,330
Management fee and servicefeeincome .. ....... ... o oo 18,084 17,479 17,639
Interest and Other INCOMIE . . . ... . i i i i it e e e e e e 3,641 6,335 7,056
Total revenues .............. R 965,514 825,757 837,025
Expenses:
ROOM BXPENSES . ..ottt ittt e e 118,366 102,872 100,938
Food and beverage EXpemSes . .. ...ttt s 198,750 163,468 162,985
Other hotel EXPENSES . ..o v ittt e 377,732 334,076 343,069
Total hotel XPENSes . ... ... it e i e 694,848 600,416 606,992
General and adminiStrative . ... ... i s 87,441 62,237 72,711
Bond offering cancellation COStS . .. ...ttt — — 3,750
INEErESt EXPEIISE . . . oottt ettt e e e 192,281 168,968 194,933
Management, leasehold and license agreement costs .......... ...l 4,667 1,946 6,445
Loss (gain) onsale 0f @SSEIS . ... ottt e e — 4,937 (11)
Loss on derivative financial inStruments ... ... vttt i e i e e e 4,983 22,193 84,844
Depreciation and amortization . . ...« o i e 100,834 107,008 104,690
TOtal EXPENSES .« .o\ttt e 1,085,054 967,705 1,074,354
Operating loss from continuing operations . ............. ... .ottt (119,540)  (141,948) (237,329)
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries .. ......... ... ..o o e oo 2,183 2,486 1,039
Loss from continuing operations before income taxes and minority interests ................... (117,357)  (139,462) (236,290)
Income tax (provision) benefit. . ... ... . .. e (143) 50,232 91,749
Loss from continuing operations before minority interests ................. .. ..o il (117,500) (89,230) (144,541)
Minority interest in consolidated subsidiaries ................ .. ... ool oioao L (9,589) (1,470) 51
Loss from continUing OPErations .. ... ... ....veutrtren ettt et (127,089) (90,700) (144,490)
Discontinued operations:
Loss from operations of discontinued hotels . .............. .. . i (624) (54,897) (46,567)
IMpairment IOSS . ... ovut ettt e (426,034)  (165,403) (38,013)
HPT leasehold termination ... ........tnuiut ittt ittt — (153,909) —
Gain (1058) 0N Sale OF ASSELS . . .o\t ti et e 40,831 9,489 (6,652)
Loss from discontinued operations before income taxes . .......... ... . i (385,827) (364,720) (91,232)
Income tax benefit from discontinued operations . ............coii it — 65,808 37,398
Loss from discontinued operations . ............... .. i (385,827) (298,912) (53,834)
Loss before accounting change .......... ... . e (512,916) (389,612) (198,324)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, netof taxes ........................ — — (324,102)
Nt LSS . oottt e e e e e e e e e e e e $ (512,916) $(389,612) $ (522,426)
Net loss attributable to common shareholders:
L= L0 S $ (512,916) 3$(389,612) $ (522,426)
Preferred stock dividends . ...... ... i e e e (168,158) (155,583) (144,217
Net loss attributable to common shareholders .. ....... ... ... i $ (681,074) $(545,195) $ (666,643)
Basic and diluted loss per common share:
Loss from cONtnUINg OPELALONS . .« .\ vttt vt ettt ettt r it e e e e eaeannnen $ (L.75) § (146) $ (1.72)
Loss from discontinued operations, net Of taXes ............oviiiiiii i (2.28) (1.78) (0.32)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, netoftaxes ........................ — — (1.93)
Net 1088 per CommOn ShAE ... ..ottt et e $ 403 $ (324 3 (3.97)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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WYNDHAM INTERNATIONAL, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

Years Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
(Restated)
Cash flows from operating activities:
N 0SS .« ottt ettt e e e e e $(512,916) $(389,612) $(522,426)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization ...............c.iiiiii i 159,049 225,713 288,150
Amortization of deferred compensation ............... .. . il 2,753 2,480 3,363
Amortization of deferred loan costs ........ v i 26,304 31,247 25,522
(Gain) loss on sale Of aSSEtS . ...t i it i e e (40,831) (4,552) 6,641
Impairment 10SS OB @SSELS .. .o\ vttt it e 426,034 165,403 38,013
Write-off of intangible assets ......... ... . . i i (202) 156,377 6,445
Write-off of deferred acquisitioncosts ...........co i 1,585 335 2,574
Provision forbad debtexpense ......... ... i i 885 6,453 6,539
(Gain) loss on derivative financial INSIHUMENtS . . ..o o v v v e e in i enen e (42,482) (26,970) 43,182
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries .......................... (2,183) (2,486) (1,039)
Minority interest in consolidated subsidiaries ... ... ... ... .. .. oo 9,920 3,040 955
Deferred INCOME LAXES .+ .« o oottt vttt ettt e e e (9,139) (120,505) (143,581)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ........................ — — 324,102
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accountsreceivable ... ... ... e 4,589 24,587 18,225
Prepaid expenses and otherassets . ........... ... i 4,361 1,220 7,291
Deferred Income . ...t e e (186) 818 787
Accounts payable and accrued eXpenses . ... ... i 17,904 (10,939)  (28,235)
Net cash provided by operating activities ................ccooiun.. 45,445 62,609 76,508
Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of hotel properties and related working capital assets, net of cash
acquired . ... — (19,993) —
Improvements and additions to hotel properties . ...ttt (92,139) (59,591  (79,916)
Proceeds from sale 0f @SSELS . ... vu' ittt e e 628,208 223,760 555,604
Acquisition of management CONIIACES . .. ... ... v vttt 951) (3,793) (497)
Acquisition of intangible asset . ......... . (4,500) —_— —_
Change in restricted cash accounts .............ovuiiitiiiiniie i 64,020 6,295 (57,907)
Change in Other @SSELS . .. ..o v 'ttt i e (6,500) (90) —
Collection on other notes receivable .. ... ... ..ottt e 698 522 6,603
Advances on other notes receivable . ...... ... .. ... . e e 47 (8,424) (2,518)
Deferred acquisition COSS .. ... oottt ittt e (1,799) (2,136) (1,252)
Investment in unconsolidated subsidiaries ............. .. ... it (1,432) 3) (361)
Distributions from unconsolidated subsidiaries .............. ... ..o .. — 650 5,936
Net cash provided by investing activities ......................... 585,558 137,197 425,692
Cash flows from financing activities:
Borrowings under line of credit facility and otherdebt ....................... ... 90,000 554,500 82,000
Repayments of borrowings under credit facility and otherdebt .. .................. (750,261) (700,244) (689,090)
Payment of deferred 10an coSts .. ...ttt e e e (2,610) (27.891) (15,743)
Contributions received from minority interest in consolidated subsidiaries . . ......... — — 1,601
Distribution made to minority interest in other partnerships ................... ... (6,443) (899) (9,667)
(01041, 0 11 P 12 67) (73)
Net cash used in financing activities . .............ivviiinenen.. (669,302) (174,601) (630,972)
Effect of exchange rate on cash and cash equivalents ........................... 196 3) 309
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents ................ ... . ... ... (38,103) 25,202  (128,463)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ............. .. ... . ool 62,441 37,239 165,702
Cash and cash equivalents atend of year .......... ... .. .. .. cciiiiiuiirrrnennns $ 24338 $ 62,441 $ 37,239
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year forinterest .. ... ..., $ 176,774 $ 169,615 $ 216,981
Cash paid during the year for income taxes, net of refunds received . ............... $ 3864 $ 06,623 $ 14,462

See Note 16 for additional supplemental disclosure of cash flow information.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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WYNDHAM INTERNATIONAL, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

1. Organization:

Wyndham International, Inc. (together with its consolidated subsidiaries, “we,” “us,” “Wyndham”, or the
“Company”) is a fully integrated and multi-branded hotel enterprise that operates primarily in the upper upscale
and luxury segments. As of December 31, 2004, we owned interests in 55 hotels with over 18,400 guestrooms
and leased 5 hotels from third parties with over 900 guestrooms. In addition, we managed 42 hotels for third
party owners with over 11,100 guestrooms, franchised 48 hotels with over 9,900 guestrooms and had a strategic
alliance with a third party for 6 hotels with over 1,900 rooms.

Wyndham as currently constituted, was formed through the June 30, 1999 restructuring and reorganization
of Patriot American Hospitality, Inc. (collectively with its subsidiaries, “Patriot”) and Wyndham International,
Inc. (collectively with its subsidiaries, “Old Wyndham”). Prior to June 30, 1999, the shares of common stock of
Patriot were paired and traded together with the shares of Old Wyndham, on a one for one basis, as a single unit
pursuant to a stock pairing arrangement, and were referred to as paired shares.

2a. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

Principles of Consolidation—The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Wyndham, our
wholly-owned subsidiaries, and the partnerships, corporations and limited liability companies in which we own a
controlling interest, after the elimination of all significant intercompany accounts and transactions.

Partnerships, Corporations and Limited Liability Companies—In December 2003, the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Interpretation No. 46(R), “Consolidation of Variable Interest
Entities” (“FIN 46R™") which requires a variable interest entity to be consolidated by a company if that company
is subject to a majority of the risk of loss from the variable interest entity’s activities or entitled to receive a
majority of the entity’s residual returns or both. We adopted FIN 46R as of January 1, 2004.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates—The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires
us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses,
and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. On an on-going basis, we evaluate our estimates,
including those related to: impairment of assets; assets held for sale; bad debts; income taxes; insurance reserves;
derivatives; and contingencies and litigation. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other
assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for
making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

The following critical accounting policies affect our more significant judgments and estimates used in the
preparation of our consolidated financial statements.

We periodically review the carrying value of our assets, including intangible assets, to determine if events
and circumstances exist indicating that assets might be impaired. If facts and circumstances support this
possibility of impairment, management will prepare undiscounted and discounted cash flow projections, which
require judgments that are both subjective and complex.

Our management uses its judgment in projecting which assets we will sell within the next twelve months.
These judgments are based on management’s knowledge of the current market and the status of current
negotiations with third parties. If assets are expected to be sold within 12 months, they are reclassified as assets
held for sale on the balance sheet.
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WYNDHAM INTERNATIONAL, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
(dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

We maintain allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability of our
customers to make required payments. If the financial condition of our customers were to deteriorate, resulting in
an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional allowances may be required.

We record a valuation allowance to reduce our deferred tax assets to the amount that is more likely than not
to be realized. While we have considered ongoing prudent and feasible tax planning strategies in assessing the
need for the valuation allowance, in the event we were to determine that we would be able to realize our deferred
tax assets in the future in excess of their net recorded amount, an adjustment to the deferred tax asset would
increase income in the period such determination was made.

We have reserves for taxes and associated interest that may become payable in future years as a result of
audits by tax authorities. Although we believe that the positions taken on previously filed tax returns are
reasonable, we nevertheless have established tax and interest reserves in recognition that various taxing
authorities may challenge the positions taken by us resulting in additional liabilities for taxes and interest. The
tax reserves are reviewed as circumstances warrant and adjusted as events occur that affect our potential liability
for additional taxes, such as lapsing of applicable statutes of limitations, conclusion of tax audits, additional or
reduced exposure based on current calculations, identification of new issues, release of administrative guidance,
or rendering of a court decision affecting a particular tax issue.

We maintain a paid loss deductible insurance plan for commercial general liability, automobile liability and
workers’ compensation loss exposures related to the hotel operations. The primary loss deductible retention limit
is currently $1,000 per occurrence for general liability, $250 per occurrence for automobile liability and $500 per
occurrence for workers’ compensation loss, in most jurisdictions. The estimates of the ultimate lability for losses
and associated expenses are based upon a third party actuarial analysis and projection of actual historical
development trends of loss frequency, severity and incurred but not reported claims as well as traditional issues
that affect loss cost such as medical and statutory benefit inflation. In addition, the actuarial analysis compares
our trends against general insurance industry development trends to develop an estimate of ultimate costs within
the deductible retention. Large claims or incidents that could potentially involve material amounts are also
monitored closely on a case-by-case basis. As of December 31, 2004, our balance sheet included an estimated
liability with respect to this self-insurance program of $29,656.

Our objective in using derivatives is to add stability to interest expense and to manage our exposure to
interest rate movements. During the year ended December 31, 2004, such derivatives were used to hedge the
variable cash flows associated with a portion of our variable-rate debt. As of December 31, 2004, we did not
have any derivatives designated as fair value hedges. Additionally, we do not use derivatives for trading or
speculative purposes. We use a variety of methods and assumptions that are based on market conditions and risks
existing at each balance sheet date to determine the fair value of the derivative instruments. For the majority of
financial instruments including most derivatives, standard market conventions and techniques such as discounted
cash flow analyses, option pricing models, replacement cost and termination cost are used to determine fair
value. All methods of assessing fair value result in a general approximation of value, and such value may never
actually be realized. Future cash inflows or outflows from the derivative instruments depend upon future
borrowing rates. If assumptions about future borrowing rates prove to be materially incorrect, the recorded value
of these agreements could also prove to be materially incorrect. Because we use the derivative instruments to
reduce our exposure to increases in variable interest rates, thus effectively fixing a portion of our variable interest
rates, the impact of changes in future borrowing rates could result in interest expense being either higher or lower
than might otherwise have been incurred on the variable-rate borrowings had the rates not been fixed. A
reduction in interest rates could result in a competitive advantage for companies in a position to take advantage
of a lower cost of capital.
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WYNDHAM INTERNATIONAL, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-—(Continued)
(dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

We are defendants in lawsuits that arise out of, and are incidental to, the conduct of our business.
Management uses judgment, with the aid of legal counsel, to record accruals for losses that we consider to be
probable and that can be reasonably estimated, as a result of any pending actions against us.

Investment in Real Estate and Related Improvements

The hotel properties are stated at cost. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method based upon
estimated useful lives of the assets of 35 to 40 years for the hotel buildings and improvements and 3 to 7 years
for furniture, fixtures and equipment. These estimated useful lives are based on management’s knowledge of the
properties and the industry in general.

Maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred; major renewals and betterments are
capitalized. Upon the sale or disposition of a fixed asset, the asset and the related accumulated depreciation are
removed from the accounts and the gain or loss is included in operations.

Interest associated with borrowings used to finance substantial hotel renovations is capitalized and
amortized over the estimated useful life of the assets. No interest was capitalized in 2004, 2003 and 2002, as
there were no substantial hotel renovations.

We periodically review the carrying value of each property to determine if events and circumstances exist
indicating that the assets might be impaired. If facts or circumstances support the possibility of impairment, we
will prepare projections of undiscounted cash flows, without interest charges, of the specific property, to
determine if the amounts estimated to be generated by those assets are less than the carrying amounts of those
assets. If impairment is indicated, an adjustment will be made to the carrying amount based on the difference
between the fair value and the carrying amount of the asset. When we identify an asset held for sale, we estimate
the net selling price of such asset. If the net selling price of the asset is less than the carrying amount of the asset,
a reserve for loss is established. Depreciation is no longer recorded once we identify an asset as held for sale. Net
selling price is estimated as the amount at which the asset could be bought or sold (fair value) less costs to sell.
Fair value is determined at prevailing market conditions, appraisals or current estimated net sales proceeds from
pending offers, if appropriate. We recorded impairment of $426,034, $165,403 and $38,013 for the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

We consider all highly liquid investments with an original maturity date of three months or less when
purchased to be cash equivalents.

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash is comprised of furniture, fixture and equipment reserves, tax and insurance escrows,
derivative collateral, deferred maintenance reserves and ground rent reserves.

Inventories

Inventories consist of food, beverages, china, linen, glassware and silverware and are stated at cost, which
approximates market.
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WYNDHAM INTERNATIONAL, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
(dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Investment in Unconsolidated Subsidiaries

Our investment in unconsolidated subsidiaries includes investments in five entities ranging from
approximately 1% to 50%. Investments in partnerships and joint ventures are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting when we have a 20% or more ownership interest or exercise significant influence over the
venture. If our ownership is less than 20% and we do not exercise significant influence, the investment is
accounted for under the cost method.

We review our investment in unconsolidated subsidiaries periodically for other than temporary declines in
market value. For any decline that is considered other than temporary, we record an impairment as a reduction in
the carrying value of the investment. Estimated fair values are based on projections of cash flows and market
capitalization rates.

Notes and Other Receivables

Notes and other receivables are carried at their estimated collectible amounts. Interest income on notes and
other receivables is recognized as earned. Receivables are periodically evaluated for collectibility based on
adequacy of collateral and/or creditworthiness of borrower. Impairments are recorded as necessary.

Intangibles

Goodwill was recognized in connection with the acquisition of certain businesses and was amortized
utilizing the straight-line method over a period of 10 to 40 years. However, on January 1, 2002, we completed the
two-step process prescribed by Statement of Financial Accounting Standard (“SFAS”) 142 “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets” for (1) testing for impairment and (2) determining the amount of impairment loss related to
goodwill associated with the reporting unit. Accordingly, in January 2002, we recorded an impairment charge of
$324,102 as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle. In connection with the adoption of SFAS
142, we did not record $12,136 of amortization in 2002, and will not be recording $12,136 of amortization
annually going forward. Upon implementation of SFAS 142, we identified finite lived intangible assets related to
our trade names and determined that there was no indication of impairment on these finite lived intangible assets.

The costs associated with the acquisition of management contracts and trade names have been recorded as
deferred costs. Amortization of management contracts is computed using the straight-line method over the term
of the related management agreements. No charges were recognized in 2004 for the remaining unamortized cost
of management contracts lost. During 2003 and 2002, we recognized charges for the remaining unamortized cost
of management contracts lost of $1,946 and $6,445, respectively. Amortization of trade names costs is computed
using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of 20 years.

The costs associated with the acquisition of leaseholds for hotel properties leased from third party owners
have been recorded as deferred costs. Leasehold costs are amortized using the straight-line method over the terms
of the related leasehold agreement. During 2003, we recognized a charge for the remaining unamortized cost of
leasehold contracts lost of $153,909.




WYNDHAM INTERNATIONAL, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
(dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Our intangible assets are as follows:

As of December 31, 2004 As of December 31, 2003
Gross Carrying Accumulated Gross Carrying Accumulated
Amount Amortization Amount Amortization
Amortized intangible assets
Management contract CostS . .................... $ 11,954 $ (7,128) $ 99,218 $(20,204)
Leasehold cOStS . ....v it i i 6,723 (186) 604 32)
Trade name COStS ... v i in e ee e 121,851 (42,739) 123,866 (37,123)
Total amortized intangible assets . ................ $140,528 $(50,053) $223,688 $(57,359)
Unamortized intangible assets
Goodwill ... ... .. e $ 391 $ 391
Trade NAmME COSES . v v v vttt et e 4,500 —
Total unamortized intangible assets ... ............ $ 4,891 $ 391

The aggregate amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 was $12,902
$16,523 and $23,160, respectively.

The estimated amortization expense for the following five years is as follows:

200 $9,362
2006 . $9,396
2007 o e $8,647
2008 e $8,578
2000 $8,376

We review the carrying value of our intangible assets with finite lives including management contracts and
leasehold costs whenever events or changes in circumstances arise that indicate the carrying amount of the asset
may not be recoverable. If circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset that we expect to hold and
use may not be recoverable, we estimate the future cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset and its
eventual disposition. Future cash flows are the future cash inflows expected to be generated by an asset less the
future cash outflows expected to be necessary to obtain those inflows. If the sum of the expected future cash
flows (undiscounted and without interest charges) is less than the carrying amount of the asset, we recognize an
impairment loss as the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its fair value. In addition, we
periodically evaluate the remaining useful lives of our intangible assets to determine whether events or
circumstances indicate that a revision of the remaining amortization period is warranted.
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WYNDHAM INTERNATIONAL, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
(dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)
Deferred Expenses

Deferred expenses consist of the following:

December 31,
2004 2003
Deferred 10an COSIS . oottt e $ 80,500 $118,991
Franchise fees . . ..o i e 566 865
O RET . . 2,860 3,169
83,926 123,025
Less: accumulated amortization . . ... ...ttt e (62,123) (73,758)

$21,803 $ 49,267

Deferred loan costs are amortized to interest expense on a straight-line basis (which approximates the
interest method) over the terms of the related loans, which range from one to ten years. Franchise costs are
amortized using the straight-line method over the terms of the related franchise agreements.

Income Taxes

We record our provision for income taxes in accordance with SFAS 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes”.
Under the liability method of SFAS 109, deferred taxes are determined based on the difference between the
financial statements and tax bases of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect in the years the
differences are expected to reverse (see Note 12).

Minority Interest in the Operating Partnerships

Minority interest in the Operating Partnerships (“OP”) includes adjustments for the minority partners’ share
of the net income (loss) as defined by the partnership agreement and certain other adjustments for the issuance or
redemption of OP units.

Minority Interest in Other Consolidated Subsidiaries

We have entered into a number of joint ventures in which a third party owns a minority interest. For
financial reporting purposes, the financial position and results of operations for each joint venture are included in
our consolidated financial statements. In addition, the Wyndham Anatole is included in our consolidated
financial statements pursuant to FIN 46R.

Earnings (Loss) per Share

Earnings per share disclosures for all periods presented have been calculated in accordance with
requirements of SFAS 128, “Earnings per Share”. We compute basic earnings per share based upon the weighted
average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period presented. We include shares of
common stock granted to our officers and employees in the computation only after the shares become fully
vested. We compute diluted earnings per share based upon the weighted average number of shares of common
stock and dilutive common stock equivalents outstanding during the periods presented. The diluted earnings per
share computations include the dilutive impact of options to purchase common stock which were outstanding
during the period calculated by the “treasury stock” method, unvested stock grants and other restricted awards to
officers and employees and convertible preferred shares (see Note 7).
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WYNDHAM INTERNATIONAL, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
(dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Stock Compensation

We account for our stock compensation arrangements under the provisions of Accounting Principles Board
Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (“APB 25”), and we intend to continue to do so
until we are required to expense stock-based employee compensation in compliance with the requirements of
SFAS 123R, “Share-Based Payment”, which becomes effective for us in the third quarter of 2005. At December
31, 2004, no stock-based employee compensation cost has been charged to earnings for options, as all options
granted under those plans had an exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying common stock on the
date of grant. Had compensation cost for our stock option-based compensation plans been determined based on
the fair value at the grant dates for awards under the plans consistent with the method pursuant to SFAS 123,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation”, our net loss and loss per common share would have increased to
the pro forma amounts indicated below:

December 31,
2004 2003 2002
(Restated)

Net loss attributable to common shareholders, as reported .............. $(681,074) $(545,195) $(666,643)
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined

under fair value based method for all awards, net of related tax effects .. (704) (355) (825)
Pro forma net loss attributable to common shareholders ................ $(681,778) $(545,550) $(667,168)
Earnings per share:
Basic and diluted loss per common share—as reported . . ............... $ @03y $ (B2 8 (BN
Basic and diluted loss per common share—proforma ................. $ 403 $ @G22 % (3.9

Revenue Recognition

We primarily own, operate, manage and franchise hotel properties. Revenue is generally recognized when
rooms are occupied and as services are performed. Hotel revenue consists primarily of room rentals, food and
beverage sales and other activities from owned and leased hotels. Management and service fees primarily
represent management and franchise fees earned from third-party owned hotels we manage. Management fees
include a base fee, which is generally a percentage of hotel revenue, and an incentive fee, which is generally
based on the hotel’s profitability. We recognize base fees as revenue when earned in accordance with the terms
of the contract. Incentive fees are not recognized until the end of the year based on the hotel’s annual
profitability. Franchise fees represent fees in connection with the franchise of our brand from third-party owners.
We recognize franchise fee revenue in accordance with SFAS 45, “Accounting for Franchise Fee Revenue.”
Initial franchise fees are recognized when substantially all of the initial services or conditions relating to the
franchise contract have been performed or satisfied. Continuing franchise fees are recognized as the fees are
earned and become receivable from the franchise. Payments received in advance of revenue being earned under
the franchise agreements are deferred and classified in accrued expenses.

Foreign Currency Translation

Financial statements of foreign subsidiaries not maintained using U.S. dollars are remeasured into the U.S.
dollar functional currency for consolidation and reporting purposes. Assets and liabilities of non-U.S. operations
are translated into U.S. dollars at the exchange rate in effect at the balance sheet date. Revenues and expenses of
non-U.S. operations are translated at the weighted average exchange rate during the year. Resulting translation
adjustments are reflected in shareholders’ equity. Realized foreign currency gains and losses are included in
results of operations.
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WYNDHAM INTERNATIONAL, INC,

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
(dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Advertising Costs

We participate in various advertising and marketing programs. Production costs of commercials are charged
to operations in the period during which the commercial is first aired. The costs of other advertising, promotion
and marketing programs are expensed in the period incurred. We have recognized advertising expenses of
$27,094, $28,995 and $37,201 for 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Self Insurance

We are self-insured for various levels of general liability, automobile liability, workers’ compensation and
employee medical coverage up to certain levels. Accrued expenses include the estimated cost from unpaid
incurred claims of $29,656 and $26,617 at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. We base our accrual on a
range of estimates of unpaid incurred claims provided by a third party actuary.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and
accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Concentrations

We currently invest primarily in hotel properties. The hotel industry is highly competitive and our hotel
investments are subject to competition from other hotels for guests. Each of our hotels competes for guests
primarily with other similar hotels in its immediate vicinity and other similar hotels in its geographic market. We
believe that brand recognition, location, quality of the hotel, services provided and price are the principal
competitive factors affecting our hotel investments.

Our financial instrument exposure to concentration of credit risk consists primarily of cash and cash
equivalents. Our funds are deposited with high-credit-quality financial institutions and at times, these funds may
be in excess of the federal depository insurance limit.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

SFAS 107, “Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments”, requires disclosures about the fair
value for all financial instruments, whether or not recognized, for financial statement purposes. Disclosures about
fair value of financial instruments are based on pertinent information available to management as of December
31, 2004 and 2003. Considerable judgment is necessary to interpret market data and develop estimated fair value.
Accordingly, the estimates presented herein are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that could be realized
on disposition of the financial instruments. The use of different market assumptions and/or estimation
methodologies may have a material effect on the estimated fair value amounts.

Management estimates the fair values of (i) accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses
approximate the carrying value due to the relatively short maturity of these instruments; (ii) the notes receivable
approximate carrying value based upon effective borrowing rates for issuance of debt with similar terms and
remaining maturities; and (iii) the borrowings under the revolving credit facility, term loan and various other
mortgage notes approximate carrying value because these borrowings accrue interest at floating interest rates
based on market. We estimate the fair value of our fixed rate debt generally using discounted cash flow analysis
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based on our current borrowing rates for debt with similar maturities. The estimated fair value of the fixed rate
debt at December 31, 2004 was approximately $264,197 compared to a book value of $263,581.

Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

We account for our derivative instruments in accordance with SFAS 133, “Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as amended by SFAS 137 and SFAS 138.

On the date we enter into a derivative contract, we designate the derivative as a hedge of (a) a forecasted
transaction or (b) the variability of cash flows that are to be received or paid in connection with a recognized
asset or liability (a “cash flow hedge”). Currently, we have only entered into derivative contracts designated as
cash flow hedges. Changes in the fair value of a derivative that is highly effective and that is designated and
qualifies as a cash flow hedge, to the extent that the hedge is effective, are recorded in other comprehensive
income until earnings are affected by the variability of cash flows of the hedged transaction (e.g., until periodic
settlements of a variable-rate asset or liability are recorded in earnings). Any hedge ineffectiveness (which
represents the amount by which the changes in the fair value of the derivative exceed the variability in the cash
flows of the forecasted transaction) is recorded in current-period earnings. Changes in the fair value of non-
hedging instruments are reported in current-period earnings.

We formally document all relationships between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as our risk-
management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. This process includes linking all
derivatives that are designated as cash flow hedges to (1) specific assets and liabilities on the balance sheet or (2)
specific firm commitments or forecasted transactions. We also formally assess (both at the hedge’s inception and
on an ongoing basis) whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions have been highly effective in
offsetting changes in the cash flows of hedged items and whether those derivatives may be expected to remain
highly effective in future periods.

We discontinue hedge accounting prospectively when (1) we determine that the derivative is no longer
effective in offsetting changes in the cash flows of a hedged item (including hedged items such as firm
commitments or forecasted transactions); (2) the derivative expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised; (3) it is
no longer probable that the forecasted transaction will occur; (4) a hedged firm commitment no longer meets the
definition of a firm commitment; or (5) management determines that designating the derivative as a hedging
instrument is no longer appropriate.

When we discontinue hedge accounting because it is no fonger probable that the forecasted transaction will
occur in the originally expected period, the gain or loss on the derivative remains in accumulated other
comprehensive income and is reclassified into earnings when the forecasted transaction affects earnings.
However, if it is probable that a forecasted transaction will not occur by the end of the originally specified time
period or within an additional two-month period of time thereafter, the gains and losses that were accumulated in
other comprehensive income will be recognized immediately in earnings. In all situations in which hedge
accounting is discontinued and the derivative remains outstanding, we will carry the derivative at its fair value on
the balance sheet, recognizing changes in the fair value in current-period earnings.

Seasonality

The hotel industry is seasonal in nature; however, the periods during which our hotel properties experience
higher revenues vary from property to property and depend predominantly on the property’s location. Our
revenues typically have been higher in the first and second quarters than in the third and fourth quarters.
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Recent Pronouncements

In December 2003, the FASB issued FIN 46R, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities” to provide
guidance on how to identify a variable interest entity (“VIE”) and determine when the assets, liabilities, non-
controlling interest, and results of operations of a VIE need to be included in a company’s consolidated financial
statements. A company that holds a variable interest in an entity will need to consolidate the entity if the
company’s interest in the VIE is such that the company will absorb a majority of the VIE’s expected losses and/
or receive a majority of the entity’s expected residual returns, if they occur. FIN 46R also requires additional
disclosure by primary beneficiaries and other significant variable interest holders. The disclosure provisions of
FIN 46R became effective upon issuance. The consolidation requirements of FIN 46R apply immediately to
VIE’s created after January 31, 2003 and in the first fiscal year or interim period ending after March 15, 2004 to
existing VIE’s. We adopted FIN 46R during the first quarter ended March 31, 2004. We believe that our interest
in one management contract (Wyndham Anatole) is a VIE where we are the primary beneficiary, which requires
consolidation under FIN 46R as of January 1, 2004. In the unlikely event that we terminate the management
contract and all of the underlying assets related to this contract had no value, we estimate that the maximum
exposure to loss would approximate $88,852, primarily representing the net carrying value at December 31, 2004
of our investment in the management contract and the two previously issued notes receivable. See Note 4 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for the condensed financial information of the Wyndham Anatole as of
December 31, 2004,

On December 22, 2004, we tormed a joint venture with Lehman Brothers Real Estate Partners (“LBREP”)
to expand and develop Summerfield Suites by Wyndham™, Wyndham’s upscale, extended-stay brand. The
transaction included the sale of six Summerfield Suites by Wyndham™ and the sale of an equity interest in the
entity that owns our Summerfield brand to LBREP. Under the terms of the joint venture agreement with LBREP,
we initially hold a 66.67% ownership interest in the joint venture however, we have 50% voting rights. In
addition, LBREP has a priority return. Therefore, in accordance with FIN 46R, our joint venture with LBREP is
also included in our consolidated financial statements at December 31, 2004.

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS 150, “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with
Characteristics of Both Liabilities and Equity.” SFAS 150 specifies that instruments within its scope embody
obligations of the issuer and that, therefore, the issuer must classify them as liabilities. For calendar-year-end
companies, SFAS 150 became effective at the beginning of their third quarters. SFAS 150 was effective
immediately for all financial instruments entered into or modified after May 31, 2003. For all other instruments,
SFAS 150 went into effect at the beginning of the first interim period beginning after June 15, 2003, except for
mandatorily redeemable financial instruments of a non-public entity. For contracts that were created or modified
before May 31, 2003 and still exist at the beginning of the first interim period beginning after June 15, 2003,
entities should record the transition to SFAS 150 by reporting the cumulative effect of a change in an accounting
principle. SFAS 150 prohibits entities from restating financial statements for earlier years presented. On October
29, 2003, the FASB deferred the provisions of paragraphs 9 and 10 of SFAS 150 as they apply to mandatorily
redeemable noncontrolling interests. Those provisions require that mandatorily redeemable minority interests
within the scope of SFAS 150 be classified as a liability on a parent company’s financial statement in certain
situations, including when a finite-lived entity is consolidated. The deferral of those provisions is expected to
remain in effect while these interests are addressed in either Phase II of the FASB’s Liabilities and Equity project
or Phase II of the FASB’s Business Combinations Project. However, the FASB did not defer the disclosure
provisions relating to mandatorily redeemable noncontrolling interests. Therefore, in accordance with SFAS 150,
if we liquidate the consolidated subsidiaries in which there exists a minority interest, we would be required to
pay approximately $22,646 in cash. Such amount is lower than the carrying amount of the minority interest in
consolidated subsidiaries by $1,390.
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In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS 123R, “Shared-Based Payment”. SFAS 123R requires
companies to expense the fair value of employee stock options and similar share-based payment awards. Under
SFAS 123R, share-based payment awards are expensed based on the fair value of the awards on their grant dates
and the estimated number of awards that are expected to vest. The fair values of the share-based payment awards
are estimated using an option-pricing model that appropriately reflects a company’s specific circumstances and
the economics of the company’s share-based payment transactions. Compensation expense for share-based
payment awards, along with the related tax effects, is recognized as the awards vest. SFAS 123R also requires the
tax benefit associated with these share-based payment awards be classified as financing activities in the statement
of cash flow rather than operating activities as currently permitted. Public companies with calendar year-ends
will be required to adopt SFAS 123R in the third quarter of 2005. The provisions of SFAS 123R apply to all
outstanding and unvested share-based payment awards at the company’s adoption date. SFAS 123R offers
alternative transition methods of adopting this final rule. At the present time, we have not determined which
alternative method we will use.

Reclassification

Certain prior year balances have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation with no effect
on previously reported amounts of income or retained earnings.

2b. Restatement

The Company restated its consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2004.
In addition, the Company restated its quarterly consolidated financial statements for the fourth quarter of 2004.
The restatement reflects adjustments to correct certain errors in the Company’s accounting for income taxes as
well as other miscellaneous adjustments. The restatement resulted in the Company adjusting its previously
reported 2004 net loss of $509,446 ($4.01 per share) to net loss of $512,916 ($4.03 per share). The nature and
impact of these adjustments are described below.

Income Taxes

During the quarter ended March 31, 2005, as the Company was continuing to remediate internal controls
over income tax accounting previously disclosed in its December 31, 2004 Annual Report on Form 10K, the
Company identified an additional income tax charge of $1,678 related to 2004. The charge increased the other
accrued expenses liability, increased the accumulated deficit in shareholders’ equity and decreased total
shareholders’ equity by $1,678. The charge increased the income tax provision thus resulting in increased loss
from continuing operations and net loss by $1,678 ($(0.01) per share).

Other Adjustments

Other accounting adjustments relate primarily to accruals of unbilled legal and consulting fees aggregating
$1,792 previously identified but deemed immaterial and recorded in a subsequent period. The impact of these
adjustments was an increase in net loss of $1,792 ($(0.01) per share) in 2004.

All previously reported amounts affected by the restatement that appear elsewhere in these notes to the
consolidated financial statements have also been restated.
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The following table reflects the effects of the restatement on the 2004 Consolidated Balance Sheet (in

thousands):
AS
PREVIOUSLY
REPORTED RESTATED
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash €qUIVAIENRLS . ... ...ttt ettt ettt e $ 24338 § 24338
Restricted Cash ... e e e s 77,812 77,812
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $4,115in2004 .................... 70,438 70,129
B F A5 01 o) o -7 U 12,818 12,818
Prepaid expenses and other assets ... ........ .o uii ittt e 10,389 10,389
Assets held for sale, net of accumulated depreciation of $178,085in2004 ........................ 361,504 361,504
TOtAl CUITEIL ASSELS .« o« v v vttt v ettt e et et et e ettt e et et et e ettt e, 557,299 556,990
Investment in real estate and related improvements, net of accumulated depreciation of $576,686 in 2004 . .. 2,032,965 2,032,965
Investment in unconsolidated subsidiaries ... ... ...ttt i e e 51,149 51,149
Notes and other reCeivables . ... . o i i e e e 24,366 23,686
Management contract costs, net of accumulated amortization $7,128in2004 .. ... .. .. ... .. ... ... .. 4,826 4,826
Leasehold costs, net of accumulated amortization of $186in2004 ... ... . ... .. ... . i 6,537 6,537
Trade names, net of accumulated amortization of $42,739in2004 . ... ... . . i 83,612 83,612
Deferred INCOME AXES . ..\ ettt et sttt e e ettt e it e ettt e — —
Deferred acqUiSItiON COSES . . .\t vttt ettt ettt ettt et e e s e e 4,335 4,335
Deferred expenses, net of accumulated amortization of $62,123in2004 .......... ... ... ... ... 21,803 21,803
L0817 T € P 4,586 4,586
TOtAl ASSEES . .o . o o o e e e e e e $2,791,478  $2,790,489
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Trade acCOunts PAYADIE . . ...\ttt e e $ 17,186 § 17,891
Accrued payroll COSIS .. ... i e 49,928 49,138
Dividends payable . ... ... ... 102,322 102,322
Accrued insurance and PrOPEItY tAXES . ... .uvvtutt ittt ettt e e 41,884 41,884
Other aCCTUEd EXPENSES .« . ..o i ittt et ettt et ettt e e e e 91,928 94,494
AQVANCE AEPOSIES L .\ v vttt et et e e e e e e 36,637 36,637
Borrowings associated with assetsheldforsale ................. .. ... i i it 114,251 114,251
Current portion of borrowings under credit facility, term loans, mortgage notes and capital lease
OBLIGAtIONS . . .ot ot e e 685,145 685,145
Total curmrent Habilities . .. ...\ttt et e e e 1,139,281 1,141,762
Borrowings under credit facility, term loans, mortgage notes and capital lease obligations .. .............. 1,398,090 1,398,090
Derivative financial INStUMENtS . . . ... ...ttt e et e et e e 8,637 8,637
Income taxes payable . ... . ... 33,107 33,107
Deferred INCOME ... ot e e e e e 9,446 9,446
Minority interest in the Operating Partnerships . ...... ... .o i 20,559 20,559
Minority interest in other consolidated subsidiaries . .......... ... i e 63,001 63,001
Commitments and CONUNGENCIES ... ...\ttt i i
Shareholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value; authorized: 150,000,000 shares; shares issued and outstanding:

15,812,279 00 2004 .. it e s 158 158
Common stock, $0.01 par value; authorized: 750,000,000 shares; shares issued and outstanding:

171,386,918 in 2004 . ...\ttt e 1,714 1,714
Additional paid incapital .. ...... ... e 4,298,445 4,298,445
Receivables from shareholders and affiliates .......... ... ... i i e (6,855) (6,855)
Accumulated other comprehensive inCOme . ... ... h. it e (5,560) (5,560)
Accumulated defiCit . ... ..ot e (4,168,545) (4,172,015)

Total shareholders’ equity ......... ... 119,357 115,887
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity ......... ... ... . . i i $ 2,791,478 $ 2,790,489
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The following table reflects the effects of the restatement on the 2004 Consolidated Statement of Operations

(in thousands, except per share amounts):

AS
PREVIQUSLY
REPORTED  RESTATED
Revenues:
ROOMI TEVEIIUES .\ v v vt ettt ettt ettt et e e et e e et e e et e e et e e e s $ 491,564 $ 491,564
Food and beverage TeVENUES .. .. ..ottt e e 301,246 301,246
Other Rote] FEVEIUES . . ..ttt e e e e e e e e e e 150,979 150,979
Total ROtEl TEVEIUES . . .. ottt e ettt e ettt e e 943,789 943,789
Management fee and service fee income . ........ ... i 18,084 18,084
Interest and Other INCOME . . . o .t ittt ittt et e e et e e e e e e 3,641 3,641
TOtAl FEVEIIES .+ v v vt vttt e e et e e e e e e 965,514 965,514
Expenses:
ROOM EXPRISES . ..o 118,366 118,366
Food and Beverage EXPENSES . . . v\ v v vttt e et e 198,750 198,750
Other KOtel EXPENSES . . .. vttt e et ettt 377,732 377,732
Total ROl EXPENSES . ... oottt ettt e 694,848 694,848
General and administratiVe .. .ottt e e e e 85,958 87,441
Bond offering cancellation COSES . . ... ..ot u — —
INEETESE @XPEISE « .+ . v vt vttt et e ettt e e e e e et e e e e e e e e e 192,281 192,281
Management, leasehold and license agreement CostS ... ........vutiiiiutinireenin i 4,667 4,667
Loss (gainyonsale 0f @sSets . ..o ittt i i i i i i e s — —
Loss on derivative financial inStruments . . .. ...ttt ittt et i it ie et 4,983 4,983
Depreciation and amortization ............ ...ttt 100,834 100,334
TOLAl €XPEIISES .« « o o ettt et ettt e e e e e e e e 1,083,571 1,085,054
Operating 10ss from CONtNUING OPEratiONS . . ..\t 'u v is ittt ettt cr s nnas (118,057} (119,540)
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries ......... ... ... . i 2,183 2,183
Loss from continuing operations before income taxes and minority interests ........................ (115,874) (117,357)
Income tax BENefit . . . . ..ot e e e 1,535 (143)
Loss from continuing operations before minority interests .. .......... .. oot (114,339) (117,500)
Minority interest in consolidated subsidiaries . . ......... .. ... i i (9,589) (9,589)
Loss from continUing OPerations . . ... ...ttt ettt et et et s (123,928) (127,089)
Discontinued operations:
Loss from operations of discontinued hotels . ....... ... .. . . . . . e (315) (624)
IMpairment LOSS . . ..o .o e e e (426,034) (426,034)
HPT leasehold termination . ... .. ... iuue et e et e et — —
Gain (1088) 0N Sale OF A88EYS . ... vttt e s 40,831 40,831
Loss from discontinued operations before income taxes .............. ... . i i (385,518) (385,827)
Income tax benefit from discontinued operations .. ... ...t — —
Loss from discontinued Operations .. .............uiiiuiin ittt e s (385,518) (385.827)
Loss before accounting Change . ... ... ...t e (509,446) (512,916)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, netoftaxes ................. ... ........ — —
£ 0 -0 $ (509,446) $ (512,916)
Net loss attributable to common shareholders:
Nt 088 Lottt e e e e e e $ (509,446) $ (512,916)
Preferred stock dividends .. .. .. e e (168,158) (168,158)
Net loss attributable to common shareholders ............ .t $ (677,604) $ (681,074)
Basic and diluted loss per common share:
Loss from continuing Operations . . . ... .. ...ttt it e e e $ (1.73) $ (1.75)
Loss from discontinued operations, N8t 0f taXeS . . . ...\ vttt it i e (2.28) (2.28)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, netoftaxes ............ ... — —
Net loss per commoORn Share . . ... ...ttt e e e $ 4.01) 3 (4.03)

The impact of the above adjustments on the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows is not presented as it is

immaterial and the net cash provided by operating activities remained unchanged.
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3. Investment in Real Estate and Related Improvements and Assets Held for Sale:

Investment in real estate and related improvements and assets held for sale consists of the following:

December 31, 2004 ‘ December 31, 2003
Investment in Investment in
Real Estate Assets Held Real Estate Assets Held
Held for Use for Sale Tota) Held for Use for Sale Total
Land ..................... $ 208,261 $ 58,317 $ 266,578 $ 288,106 $ 38521 § 326,627
Land held for development ... 19,927 — 19,927 28,647 — 28,647
Buildings and
improvements . ........... 1,931,199 458,209 2,389,408 2,867,596 252,538 3,120,134
Furniture, fixtures and
equipment . .............. 423,497 92,815 516,312 641,294 77,777 719,071
Renovations in progress . . . . .. 26,767 2,561 29,328 14,944 767 15,711
2,609,651 611,902 3,221,553 3,840,587 369,603 4,210,190
Less: impairment ........... —_ (72,313) (72,313) — (11,405) (11,405)
Less: accumulated
depreciation ............. (576,686) (178,085) (754,771)  (901,779) (119,868) (1,021,647)

$2,032,965 $ 361,504 $2,394,469 $2,938,808 $ 238,330 $ 3,177,138

We classify certain assets as held for sale based on having the authority and intent of entering into
commitments for sale transactions expected to close in the next twelve months. At December 31, 2004, certain
assets were classified as held for sale. At December 31, 2004 and 2003, the impairment for assets held for sale
totaled $72,313 and $11,405, respectively. The assets held for sale had income from operations of $42,413 and
$8,824 for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, net of amounts owned by third party
limited partners.

We continue to evaluate the assets in our total portfolio and to pursue an orderly disposition of our held for
sale assets. There can be no assurance if or when sales will be completed or whether such sales will be completed
on terms that will enable us to realize the full carrying value of such assets.

Asset Sales

During the year ended December 31, 2004, we sold our investments in 39 hotels and certain undeveloped
land in separate transactions. We received net cash proceeds of approximately $308,676, after the repayment of
mortgage debt of approximately $313,248. We recorded a net gain of $40,831 as a result of these asset sales.
Also, we used $297,407 of the net cash proceeds to pay down a portion of the senior credit facility and increasing
rate loan facility, and we retained the rest of the net cash proceeds in accordance with the terms of the senior
credit facilities.

During the year ended December 31, 2003, we sold our investments in eighteen hotels, certain undeveloped
land and a golf venture in separate transactions. We received net cash proceeds of approximately $107,386, after
the repayment of mortgage debt of approximately $114,878. We recorded a net gain of $4,552 as a result of these
asset sales. Also, we used $68,282 of the net cash proceeds to pay down a portion of the senior credit facility and
increasing rate loan facility, and we retained the rest of the net cash proceeds in accordance with the terms of the
senior credit facilities.
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During the year ended December 31, 2003, leases on 27 hotel properties (15 Summerfield Suitese by
Wyndham and 12 Wyndham Hotels and Wyndham Garden Hotels) operated by two subsidiaries of Wyndham
were terminated by Hospitality Properties Trust (“HPT”’). HPT subsequently rebranded these hotel properties to
third-party brands.

During 2002, we sold seven hotels and an investment in a restaurant venture, in separate transactions, for
aggregate net cash proceeds of approximately $60,125, after repayment of approximately $65,659 of mortgage
debt. In addition, we sold thirteen hotels in a single transaction for net cash proceeds of approximately $202,467
after repayment of approximately $224,113 of mortgage debt. As a result of asset sales, we recorded a net loss of
$3,699. Also, we used $166,254 of the net cash proceeds from the asset sales to pay down a portion of our senior
credit facility and increasing rate loan facility and placed $36,141 in escrow under the terms of the senior credit
facility for future application to payments on our existing mortgage indebtedness. As of December 31, 2004, all
of the escrowed cash proceeds have been applied in payment of existing mortgage indebtedness.

Interstate

During 2000, Wyndham agreed to the redemption of its aggregate 55% non-voting economic interest (the
“Wyndham Interest”) in Interstate Hotels, LLC (“IH LLC”), a principal operating subsidiary of Interstate Hotei
Company (“IHC”). IH LLC transferred to us a management agreement for one hotel owned by us and amended
management agreements with respect to six other hotels owned by us to reduce the management fees and to
permit termination by the owner upon 30 days notice. In addition, IH LLC redeemed approximately 9% of the
Wyndham Interest and substantially all of the remainder was converted into a preferred membership interest in
TH LLC. As additional consideration for the redemption and conversion of the Wyndham Interest, we caused our
representative on THC’s Board of Directors to resign and relinquished our right to appoint a member to THC’s
Board of Directors in the future. In addition, we granted IHC an option exercisable within 90 days of October 20,
2000, to acquire all of IHC’s stock we owned at a weighted average trading price per share, provided that the
purchase price not be less than $3.00 per share nor more than $4.00 per share. On December 3, 2000, the
common stock was acquired for approximately $597. On July 12, 2001, IH LLC, pursuant to a redemption
agreement, called for the redemption of our preferred interest in [H LLC. In consideration for the redemption, we
received $8,250 in cash and two promissory notes in the amounts of $750 and $3,682, respectively. The notes
were repaid in May 2002 and June 2002, respectively, by IHC. We recorded a gain of $2,003, net of previously
recorded impairment of $16,499. The portion of the Wyndham Interest that was not converted into a preferred
membership interest will remain outstanding. Thereafter, at any time on or after July 1, 2004, both IH LLC and
Wyndham had the right to require that IH LLC redeem the remaining 1% non-controlling common interest at an
amount that is the lesser of (a) the product of (i) five times IH LLC’s EBITDA as of December 31, 2003 and (ii)
the percentage of total equity interest in [H LLC which is represented by the remaining 1% non-controlling
common interest, or (b) approximately $433. The redemption of the remaining 1% non-controlling common
interest under the agreement occurred in November 2004.

4. Investment in Wyndham Anatole:

We adopted FIN 46R as of January 1, 2004. Pursuant to the adoption of FIN 46R, we evaluated our joint
ventures, management and franchise contracts to determine whether any agreements qualify as a VIE and
whether, as such, we meet the criteria of a primary beneficiary. We identified the Wyndham Anatole as a VIE
due to the management contract and Wyndham was identified as the primary beneficiary. Therefore, the
Wyndham Anatole has been included in our consolidated financial statements, The Wyndham Anatole
management contract has the following provisions:

¢ Wyndham will secure a letter of credit in the amount of $21,000 which can be drawn by the owner if net
operating income (“NOI”) generated by the hotel is insufficient to pay the primary debt service and first
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portion of the owner’s priority return. This letter of credit will be renewed annually, but if there are any
amounts drawn against the letter of credit, only the remaining balance will be renewed.

s NOI will be distributed as follows:
» First, to the payment of debt service on the hotel’s first mortgage;

» Second, to pay a preferred return to the owner (the amounts due under the debt service and owner
return shall not exceed $28,000);

»  Third, to the payment of current and accrued interest on the Wyndham loans;

» Fourth, to pay Wyndham a base management fee in an amount equal to 2% of gross revenues;
Fifth, to pay any owner accrued amount (as defined in the management agreement);

¢ Sixth, to pay Wyndham an incentive management fee equal to 40% of NOI; and,

+  Seventh, any remaining NOI shall be distributed 50% to the owner and 50% to Wyndham.

+ If the hotel is sold during the 11% to 20™ year of the contract, the sales proceeds (after the payment of
closing costs and expenses) will be distributed as follows:

e First, $330,000 would be paid to the hotel’s lender to satisfy the repayment of mortgage debt and as
a priority return to the owner;

*  Second, to the payment of accrued and unpaid interest on, and the principal of, the Wyndham loans;
¢ Third, to the payment of any unpaid owner accrued amount;

»  Fourth, to the payment to Wyndham of the unamortized portion of 50% of $67,000 (the amount paid
to the owner at the inception of the agreement); and,

»  Fifth, 50% to the owner and 50% to Wyndham.

The Wyndham Anatole management contract met the FIN 46R criteria for consolidation into our financial
statements due to the requirement that we reimburse the owner for any shortfall in the payment of mortgage debt
and the owner’s preferred return prior to payment of management fees. This reimbursement is limited to $21,000
and is backed by a letter of credit. This $21,000 letter of credit triggers consolidation due to Wyndham being
exposed to the majority of the risks of loss. As of December 31, 2004, $4,667 had been drawn against this letter
of credit. Even though our risk of loss is limited solely to the $21,000, our projections indicate that there is a
remote possibility that the property will not be able to generate sufficient cash flow to cover debt service during
the term of the management contract and therefore the owner has no risk of loss.

We consolidated the Wyndham Anatole as of and for the twelve months ended December 31, 2004, This
consolidation results in an increase of $310,172 in consolidated Wyndham assets. Our balance sheet also reflects
the Wyndham Anatole mortgage debt and capital lease obligations of $168,891, even though we are not a party
to nor guarantor of this debt or capital lease obligations. Our net loss does not change as a result of the
consolidation of the Wyndham Anatole as profit is 100% attributable to the owner and recorded as minority
interest.
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Condensed financial information of the Wyndham Anatole is set forth below:

Condensed Balance Sheet
December 31,

2004
ASSETS
Cash and cash qUIVAIENLS .. .. ..ottt e ettt e et e $ 1,141
Restricted cash . ... .. . e 4,785
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $368 .. ....................... 8,952
Investment in real estate and related improvements, net of accumulated depreciation of $32,354 . . . 293,745
L0 1 T3 1312 - P OO 1,549
TOtAl ASSEIS . .\ sttt e e e e e e e e $310,172
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Trade accounts Payable . .. ... ...ttt e e $ 2,198
Accrued payroll COSES . ..ottt et e 3,164
Accrued insurance and Property taXes .. ... ..vun ottt e 3,086
Other Habilities . ... ...ttt et et e e e e e e 3,344
Advance deposits . ... ... e 1,672
Intercompany items with Wyndham . ....... ..o i 88,852
Mortgage debt and capital lease obligations ............ ... i 168,891
MINOTItY INIETESE . . . Lottt ettt e e e et e e e e e e e i et e 38,965
Wyndham equity . .. ..o e —
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity .. ............ieeiiiii .., $310,172
Condensed Statement of Operations:
Year Ended
December 31,
2004
Revenues:
ROOM TEVEIIUES . . . . v o v v e et et e e e e et et et e e e e e e i $ 42,266
Food and beverage revenues ... ... .. i 52,568
Other hote]l reVENUES . . ... i e et e e e 6,114
TOtAl TEVENUES . . . o oot ettt et ettt et et e e e 100,948
Expenses:
ROOIML EXPEISES . . o\ vttt ettt e e e e e e 9,828
Food and beverage eXpenses ... ...ttt e 29,062
Other hotel EXPenses . . .. ..ottt e e e e 31,817
Total hotel BXPENSES . . ..o\ttt e e e e 70,707
INTETESt EXPEIISE . .\ttt ittt e e ettt e e e e e e e 12,756
Depreciation and amortization .. ..........coueuntuiiit i 10,756
T Otal X PENSES . . ottt it et e e e 94,219
Income before intercompany items and minority interest ...............cvvieeirineiia, 6,729
Intercompany items with Wyndham ........ .. ... .. . .. . e 2,854
MINOMLY INEEIESt . .. ot vttt ittt it e e et et e e (9,583)
Net income attributable to Wyndhamequity ............ ... i i $ —
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5. Line of Credit Facility, Term Loans, Mortgage and Other Notes and Capital Lease Obligations:

Outstanding borrowings as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 under the line of credit, term loans, mortgage
and other notes and capital lease obligations consist of the following:
December 31, December 31,

Description 2004 2003 Amortization Interest Rate Maturity

Revolving credit facility I .............. $ — $ 4,081 None LIBOR +3.75% June 30, 2004(1)
Revolving credit facility T . ............ — — None LIBOR +4.75% April 1, 2006(1)
Revolving credit facility IV.............. 68,589 160,051 None LIBOR +5.75% April 1, 2006(1)
TermloansI ............. ... .. 870,794 1,051,369 @) LIBOR + 5.75%(3) June 30, 2006
TermloansII ........................ 284,196 343,284 ()] LIBOR +5.75% April 1, 2006
Increasingrate loans .................. — 15,165 None LIBOR +4.75% June 30, 2004(1)
Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc. .. .... .. 128,015 175,184 5) LIBOR + 1.8% August 10, 2005
Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc. TIT .. .. ... 10,735 39,339 6) 8.0%(6) September 10, 2005
Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc. IV .. ... ... 266,094 397,353 (@) 7.49%(7) July 8, 2005
Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc.

(Condado) ............vvvvia. 92,740 94,369 ® LIBOR +4.25%(8)  November 6, 2005
CSFBPool.......................... 28,040 _— None LIBOR +1.2% July 9, 2006(9)
Metropolitan Life Insurance ............ —_— 93,492 (10) 8.08% October 1, 2007
Other mortgage notes payable(11) ....... 238,926 269,885 Various (12) (12)
Unsecured financing . ................. 1,510 1,509 None 10.5% May 15, 2006
Capital lease obligations ............... 38,956 36,878
Capital lease obligations (Wyndham

Anatole) ... 621 —

Cigna Insurance (Wyndham Anatole) . . . .. 168,270 — (13) 7.48% August 1, 2011
$2,197,486 $2,681,959 (14)

Less current portion:

Mortgage debt-assets held forsale ....... (114,251) (118,133)

Current portion of borrowings . . ......... (685,145) (292,661)

Longtermdebt ...............couuun. $1,398,090 $2,271,165

(1) We entered into amendments and restatements of our senior credit facilities. The consenting lenders’ maturity dates for the revolving
credit facility and the term loans I were extended to April 1, 2006. The non-consenting lenders’ debt of approximately $19,000, which
was due on June 30, 2004, was repaid on May 12, 2004.

(2) A principal payment of $5,000 is to be paid each six months until the final payment of principal, which is due on June 30, 2006.

(3) 1% of the interest rate spread is paid-in-kind and is payable at maturity.

(4) A principal payment of 0.5% of the outstanding principal balance is to be paid each six months unti! the final payment of the principal,
which is due on April 1, 2006.

(5) The loan is collateralized by three hotel properties with a net book value of $185,952 as of December 31, 2004. We must make scheduled
amortization payments as set forth in the loan agreement. The loan agreement provides that we can elect to extend the term of the loan for
one additional twelve-month period, provided that there is not a defanlt under the loan and other minor conditions are met which are within
our control.

(6) The loan is collateralized by two hotel properties with a net book value of $32,745 as of December 31, 2004. We must make scheduled
amortization payments as set forth in the loan agreement. The loan agreement provides that we can elect to extend the term of the loan
for one additional twelve-month period, provided that there is not a default under the loan and other minor conditions are met which are
within our control. As of December 31, 2004, LIBOR is below the minimum interest rate pursuant to the agreement, therefore, the rate is
fixed at 8% until such time as the LIBOR rate rises above the minimum of 3%.

(7) The loan is collateralized by 14 hotel properties with a net book value of $357,262 as of December 31, 2004. We must make scheduled
amortization payments as set forth in the loan agreement. The loan agreement provides that we can elect to extend the term of the loan
for three additional twelve-month periods, provided that there is not a default under the loan and other minor conditions are met which
are within our control. The interest rate is the sum of (x) the greater of (i} LIBOR or (ii) 2.5% plus (y) the then effective spread as set
forth in the loan agreement. As of December 31, 2004, the spread is 4.99% and LIBOR is less than 2.5%, which results in a current
interest rate of 7.49%. The interest rate is adjustable as LIBOR and the spread changes over the life of the loan. Over the life of the loan,
the average spread is 5%.

(8) The loan is collateralized by one hotel with a net book value of $95,659 as of December 31, 2004. The interest rate has a 2% LIBOR
floor. The loan agreement provides that we can elect to extend the term of the loan for three additional twelve-month periods, provided
that there is not a default under the loan and other minor conditions are met which are within our control.
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(9) The loan is collateralized by three hotel properties with a net book value of $74,710 as of December 31, 2004. The loan agreement
provides that we can elect to extend the term of the loan for three additional twelve-month periods, provided that there is not a default
under the loan and other minor conditions are met which are within our control.

(10) The hotels were sold on January 30, 2004 and the debt was assumed in full by the purchaser.

(11) The loans are collateralized by six hotel properties and a parcel of land with a net book value of $525,672 as of December 31, 2004,

(12) Interest rates range from fixed rates of 9.08% to 9.11% and variable rates of LIBOR plus 1.5% to LIBOR plus 4.5%. The mortgages have
a weighted average interest rate as of December 31, 2004 of 5.85%. Maturity dates range from 2005 through 2016.

(13) The loan is collateralized by the Anatole hotel with a net book value of $293,745 as of December 31, 2004. We are not party to nor
guarantor of this loan. (See note 4 to the Consolidated Financial Statements).

(14) The weighted average interest rate was 6.51% and 5.92% for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Under the terms of the related loan agreements and capital lease obligations, principal amortization and
balloon payment requirements at December 31, 2004 are as follows for each of the next five years:

Year _Amount
2005 o e $ 685,145(1)
2006 . e e 1,266,893(2)
2007 e e e e 21,675
2008 L e 7,970
2000 L e e 8,014
2010 and thereafter . ... oottt e e 207,189

$2,197,486(3)

(1) We can elect to extend $540,334 ($358,834 for three additional twelve-month periods and $181,500 for one
additional twelve-month period) provided that there is not a default under the loans and other minor
conditions are met which are within our control. The remaining maturities represent $144,811 related to
separate loans collateralized by the Wyndham El Conquistador and the Wyndham Reach and normal
principal amortization.

(2) We can elect to extend $28,040 for three additional twelve-month periods, provided that there is not a
default under the loan and other minor conditions are met which are within our control.

(3) The Wyndham Anatole debt and capital leases of $168,891 are included, however, we are not a party to nor
guarantor of this debt (see note 4 to the Consolidated Financial Statements).

On April 30, 2004, we extended an $18,000 mortgage secured by one hotel, after paydown of $6,300. The
loan bears interest at LIBOR plus 4.5% and has a maturity date of May 1, 2006.

One June 22, 2004, we completed a $35,000 mortgage financing secured by four hotel properties. The loan,
which was made by Credit Suisse First Boston Inc., bears interest at LIBOR plus 1.2% and has an initial maturity
date of July 9, 2006. We may extend the maturity date of the loan for three additional twelve-month periods,
provided that there is not a default under the loan and other minor conditions are met which are within our
control.

6. Derivatives:

We manage our debt portfolio by using interest rate caps and swaps to achieve an overall desired position of
fixed and floating rates. The fair value of interest rate hedge contracts is estimated based on quotes from the
market makers of these instruments and represents the estimated amounts we would expect to receive or pay to
terminate the contracts. Credit and market risk exposures are limited to the net interest differentials and
counterparty risk. At December 31, 2004, the estimated fair value of the interest rate hedges represented a
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liability of $8,637. We estimate that the majority of the $8,637 liability at December 31, 2004 will be charged to
earnings during 2005 as all of the interest rate swaps except one will mature in 2005. We have no embedded
derivatives under SFAS 133, as amended, at December 31, 2004,
The following table represents the derivatives in place as of December 31, 2004:
Notional Maturity Cap Floor Fair
Amount Date Swap Rate Rate Rate  Trigger Level Value
Type of Hedge:
Interest Rate Cap (1) .......... $ 269,396 7/9/05 n/a 4.25% n/a n/a $ —
Interest Rate Cap (1) .......... 146,943 7/9/05 n/a 425% n/a n/a —
Interest Rate Cap (1) .......... 112 7/1/05 n/a 9.75% n/a n/a —
Interest Rate Cap (1) .......... 105,441 7/1/05 n/a 9.75% nla nfa —
Interest Rate Cap (1) .......... 172,783  8/10/05 n/a 725% n/a n/a —
Interest Rate Cap (1) .......... 92,740 11/15/05 n/a 5775% nfa n/a —
Interest Rate Cap (2) .......... 3,900 9/2/06 n/a 7.00% wa wa —
Interest Rate Cap (2) .......... 5,800 9/2/06 n/a 7.00% n/a n/a —
Interest Rate Cap (2) .......... 12,000 9/2/06 n/a 7.00% n/a n/a —
Interest Rate Cap (2) .......... 13,300 9/2/06 n/a 700% n/a n/a —
Interest Rate Cap (1) .......... 6,783  9/10/05 n/a 7.00% n/a n/a —
Interest Rate Cap (1) .......... 12,597  9/10/05 n/a 7.00% n/a n/a —
Interest Rate Cap (1) .......... 19,380  9/10/05 n/a 7.00% n/a n/a —
$ 861,175 $ —
Interest Rate Swap (2) ......... $ 28,771  9/30/05 4.62% n/a n/a n/a $ 44
Interest Rate Swap (2) ......... 28,292 12/30/05 7.00% n/a n/a 5.61% 6)
Interest Rate Swap (2) ......... 42,750 8/1/05 4.36%-325% 7.85% n/a 5.75% 777
Interest Rate Swap (2) ......... 13,737  4/30/07 3.92%-4.73% 6.50% /a 5.50% (298)
Interest Rate Swap (2) ......... 550,000 3/7/05  6.10%-6.75% n/a nfa 7.00%-8.50%  (5,975)
Interest Rate Swap (2) ......... 150,000 3/7/05  6.10%-6.75% n/a n/a  7.00%-8.50%  (1,625)
$ 813,550 $(8,637)
Total Caps and Swaps ......... $1,674,725 $(8,637)

(1) Effective derivatives (See paragraph “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” in Note 2 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements).

(2) [Ineffective derivatives (See paragraph “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” in Note 2 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements).

For the year ended December 31, 2004, we recorded a gain of $48,418 for the change in the fair market
value of the ineffective interest rate hedge contracts through earnings, and a charge of $298 (net of taxes of $198)
to other comprehensive income for the change in the fair market value of the effective interest rate hedge

. contracts. Also, during 2004, we recorded amortization of $3,563 (net of taxes of $2,374) to earnings as a
reduction of the transitional adjustment that was recorded in other comprehensive income in 2001. Additionally,
we paid $47,466 in settlement payments for the ineffective hedges during the year ended December 31, 2004,

For the year ended December 31, 2003, we recorded a gain of $33,331 for the change in the fair market
value of the ineffective interest rate hedge contracts through earnings, and a reduction of $1,220 (net of taxes of
$1,077) to other comprehensive income for the change in the fair market value of the effective interest rate hedge
contracts. Also, during 2003, we recorded amortization of $3,817 (net of taxes of $2,544) to earnings as a
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reduction of the transitional adjustment that was recorded in other comprehensive income in 2001. Additionally,
we paid $49,163 in settlement payments for the ineffective hedges during the year ended December 31, 2003.

For the year ended December 31, 2002, we recorded a loss of $27,181 for the change in the fair market
value of the ineffective interest rate hedge contracts through earnings, and a reduction of $4,797 (net of taxes of
$3,197) to other comprehensive income for the change in the fair market value of the effective interest rate hedge
contracts. Also, during 2002, we recorded amortization of $9,601 (net of taxes of $6,400) to earnings as a
reduction of the transitional adjustment that was recorded in other comprehensive income in 2001. Additionally,
we paid $41,662 in settlement payments for the ineffective hedges during the year ended December 31, 2002.

7. Computation of Earnings (Loss) Per Share:

Basic and diluted earnings per share have been computed as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2004(1) 2003(1) 2002(1)
(Restated)
Loss from continuing operations ...............c.coeiinreirneeenn.. $(127,089) § (90,700) $(144,490)
Loss from discontinued Operations .. .............c.vvuvvnenneenen... (385,827) (298,912) (53,834)
Preferred stock dividends . ....... ... ... . e (168,158) (155,583) (144,217)
Loss attributable to common shareholders before cumulative effect of
accounting change . ....... ... . .t e (681,074) (545,195) (342,541)

Cumulative effect of accountingchange ............... ... ... ...... — —  (324,102)
Net loss attributable to common shareholders ........................ $(681,074) $(545,195) $(666,643)
Weighted average number of shares outstanding . ..................... 169,128 168,128 167,943
Loss per common share:

Loss from continuing operations .................coviiiernan... $ 175 % 146 $ (1.72)

Loss from discontinued operations . ........... ... .. ... ..., (2.28) (1.78) (0.32)

Accountingchange . ........ ... . i — —_ (1.93)
Net loss per common share .............cooviiiiiiiinneinnnnnnn.. $ 403 $ (B2 % @BID

(1) For 2004, the dilutive effect of unvested stock grants of 11,307, options to purchase 7,149 shares of
common stock at prices ranging from $0.95 to $30.40 and 184,078 shares of preferred stock were not
included in the computation of diluted earnings per share because they are anti-dilutive. For 2003, the
dilutive effect of unvested stock grants of 13,241, options to purchase 8,215 shares of common stock at
prices ranging from $0.48 to $30.40 and 167,906 shares of preferred stock were not included in the
computation of diluted earnings per share because they are anti-dilutive. For 2002, the dilutive effect of
unvested stock grants of 13,708, options to purchase 9,684 shares of common stock at prices ranging from
$0.85 to $30.40 and 153,325 shares of preferred stock were not included in the computation of diluted
earnings per share because they are anti-dilutive.
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8. Commitments and Contingencies:
Office Lease

We have entered into agreements to lease office space for our corporate headquarters and other regional
offices. In general, the agreements provide for monthly payments of rent plus reimbursement for certain other
costs as specified per each agreement and are accounted for as operating leases for financial reporting purposes.
The leases have terms from five to 10 years. Annual rental payments of $3,823, $3,667 and $4,414 for 2004,
2003 and 2002, respectively, are reflected in general and administrative expense in the accompanying financial
statements. Future five-year minimum lease payments under these lease agreements are as follows:

Rent

Year Amount
2005 L e $2,763
2006 .. 2,490
2007 e e 2,016
2008 . e e 492
2000 e 276
2010 and thereafter . . ... ... .. —_—

$8,037

Hotel and Ground Leases

We lease both land and hotels under agreements with terms ranging from five to 100 years. In general, the
agreements provide for monthly payments of rent and are accounted for as operating leases for financial
reporting purposes. We have incurred rent expense totaling $17,085, $39,976 and $73,774 for 2004, 2003 and
2002, respectively. Future five-year minimum lease payments under these lease agreements are as follows:

Rent

Year _Amount
2005 $ 8,470
2006 . 8,470
2007 8,444
2008 e 8,450
2000 e 8,407
2010 and thereafter . .. ... ... i 119,015

$161,256

Employment Agreements—Executive Officers

‘We have entered into employment agreements with each of our executive officers. Generally, the
agreements provide for annual base compensation with any increases during the terms of the agreements to be
approved by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors, as applicable.

Employee Separation Agreements

During 2004, we implemented organizational changes to better align our costs with our revenue structure
upen the completion of our plan to sell our non-strategic assets. These organizational changes included a
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reduction in our workforce. We entered into separation agreements with certain employees which require them to
render services until their termination date in order to receive termination benefits. The liability related to these
termination benefits is being recognized ratably over the employees’ service periods in accordance with the
provisions of SFAS 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities”. We estimate that
$8,000 will be paid in 2005 related to these separation agreements, of which $6,864 has been accrued and is
included in accrued payroll costs in the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2004, with the remainder
to be expensed ratably over the 2005 service period.

Notes Receivable From Former Senior Executives Officers

Patriot assumed note receivables from four former senior executive officers. As a part of these senior
executive officers’ amended employment contracts and separation agreements, the maturity dates of these notes
were extended to dates ranging from July 2004 through April 2006. Three notes came due during 2004 and were
foreclosed upon and written-off and the associated shares of the Company’s class A common stock used as
collateral for the notes were cancelled. The notes and related accrued interest were previously included in
shareholders’ equity. As of December 31, 2004, there is one remaining promissory note with an outstanding
balance of $6,855 including accrued interest maturing in 2006. This note and the related accrued interest are
classified as receivables from shareholders in the statement of shareholders’ equity.

As part of a separation agreement, we assumed a note receivable of $7,846 from a former senior executive
officer. The note bears interest at 5.5% per annum and matures on August 13, 2005. The note is a full recourse
note and is secured by the pledge of 449,818 Wyndham shares held by the former senior executive officer. The
note receivable is included in the notes and other receivables on the consolidated balance sheet. As of December
31, 2004, principal and accrued interest in the amount of $9,739 remained outstanding on the loan. As of
December 31, 2004, we had a reserve of $2,680 against the note.

Management Agreement—Wyndham Anatole Hotel

In August 2000, we amended the Wyndham Anatole Hotel management agreement. This amendment,
among other things, extended the term of the management agreement to August 31, 2020. Under the terms of this
amendment, we have a contingent obligation to pay the hotel owners a maximum of $21,000 over the term of the
management agreement if yearly operating income, as defined, is not sufficient to pay the primary debt service
and an owner preferred return. This contingent obligation is supported by a $21,000 letter of credit issued by us.
Payments totaling $4,667 were drawn against the letter of credit in 2004 resulting in a contingent obligation of
$16,333 as of December 31, 2004.

Contingencies

On May 7, 1999, Doris Johnson and Charles Dougherty filed a lawsuit in the Northern District of California
against Patriot, Wyndham, their respective operating partnerships and PaineWebber Group, Inc. This action,
Johnson v. Patriot American Hospitality, Inc., et al., No. C-99-2153, was commenced on behalf of all former
holders of Bay Meadows stock during a class period from June 2, 1997 to the date of filing. The action asserts
securities fraud claims and alleges that the purported class members were wrongfully induced to tender their
shares as part of the Patriot/Bay Meadows merger based on a fraudulent prospectus. The action seeks unspecified
damages and further alleges that defendants continued to defraud shareholders about their intentions to acquire
numerous hotels and saddle the company with massive debt during the class period. Three other actions against
the same defendants subsequently were filed in the Northern District of California: (i) Ansell v. Patriot American
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Hospitality, Inc., et al., No. C-99-2239 (filed May 14, 1999), (ii) Sola v. PaineWebber Group, Inc., et al., No.
C-99-2770 (filed June 11, 1999), and (iii) Gunderson v. Patriot American Hospitality, Inc., et al., No. C 99-3040
(filed June 23, 1999). Another action with substantially identical allegations, Susnow v. Patriot American
Hospitality, Inc., et al., No. 3-99-CV1354-T (filed June 15, 1999) also subsequently was filed in the Northern
District of Texas. By order of the Judicial Panel on Multidistrict Litigation, these actions along with certain
actions identified below have been consolidated in the Northern District of California for consolidated pretrial
purposes. On or about October 13, 2000, the defendants moved to dismiss the actions. On or about August 15,
2001, the Court granted Defendants’ motions to dismiss the action, dismissing some of the claims with prejudice
and granting leave to replead certain other claims in the Complaint. On or about October 15, 2001, plaintiff filed
an amended complaint seeking substantially the same relief as in the original complaint. On or about December
20, 2001, the defendants moved to dismiss the amended complaint. On or about September 3, 2002, the Court
granted in part and denied in part Defendants’ motion to dismiss. The Court did not dismiss certain of Plaintiffs’
claims under Section 11 of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 12(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
An answer to the complaint has been filed and the parties have been exchanging discovery. The Court has not yet
certified a class. On or about February 28, 2003, the parties entered into a stipulation of settlement. Pursuant to
the stipulation of settlement, we shall issue 11 million shares of Wyndham common stock to the proposed
settlement class. We also have agreed to contribute a maximum amount of $1,000 to the settlement class, only in
the event that the trading price of Wyndham common stock falls below a certain threshold for a defined period of
time. Furthermore, we have agreed to allow the settlement class to participate in a rights offering under certain
limited circumstances. The stipulation of settlement is subject to Court approval. As of December 31, 2004, we
have recorded a reserve of $11,200 to cover the cost of the settlement.

On or about June 22, 1999, a lawsuit captioned Levitch v. Patriot American Hospitality, Inc., et al., No. 3-
99-CV1416-D, was filed in the Northern District of Texas against Patriot, Wyndham, James D. Carreker and
Paul A. Nussbaum. This action asserts securities fraud claims and alleges that, during the period from January 5,
1998 to December 17, 1998, the defendants defrauded shareholders by issuing false statements about the
company. The complaint sought unspecified damages and was filed on behalf of all shareholders who purchased
Patriot American and Wyndham stock during that period. Three other actions, Gallagher v. Patriot American
Hospitality, Inc., et al., No. 3-99-CV1429-L, filed on June 23, 1999, David Lee Meisenburg, et al. v. Patriot
American Hospitality, Inc., Wyndham International, Inc., James D. Carreker, and Paul A. Nussbaum Case No. 3-
99-CV1686-X, filed July 27, 1999 and Deborah Szekely v. Patriot American Hospitality, Inc., et al., No. 3-99-
CV1866-D, filed on or about August 27, 1999, allege substantially the same allegations. By orders of the Judicial
Panel on Maltidistrict Litigation, these actions have been consolidated with certain other shareholder actions and
transferred to the Northern District of California for consolidated pretrial purposes. On or about October 20,
2000, the defendants moved to dismiss the actions. On or about August 15, 2001, the Court granted Defendants’
motions to dismiss the action, dismissing some of the claims with prejudice and granting leave to replead certain
other claims in the Complaint. On or about October 15, 2001, plaintiff filed an amended complaint seeking
substantially the same relief as in the original complaint. On or about December 20, 2001, the defendants moved
to dismiss the amended complaint. On or about September 3, 2002, the Court dismissed in its entirety the
complaint and granted plaintiffs leave to amend. On or about December 2, 2002, plaintiffs filed an amended
complaint. The Court has not yet certified a class. On or about September 30, 2004, the parties entered into a
stipulation of settlement with class counsel to settle the litigation. The stipulation of settlement is subject to Court
approval. Pursuant to the stipulation of settlement, we shall pay $2,500 in cash when an order is entered by the
Court preliminarily approving the proposed settlement and an additional $2,500 on or before the second
anniversary of the final Court approval. As of December 31, 2004, we have recorded an adequate reserve to
cover the cost of the settlement.
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On May 29, 2002, the State of Florida Office of the Attorney General Department of Legal Affairs filed a
lawsuit in Leon County, Florida (Case No. 02-CA-1296) naming us, Patriot, and four current or former
Wyndham employees as defendants. In this case, the Attorney General alleged that the imposition of energy
surcharges, resort fees and automatic service fees violates the State’s Deceptive and Unfair Trade Practices Act.
We filed a motion to dismiss this suit, which was granted in part, and two of the individual defendants have been
dismissed. The Attorney General seeks damages, penalties and attorneys’ fees from the remaining defendants.
We intend to vigorously defend this lawsuit. Discovery is on-going. This suit may not be resolved for a number
of years and it is not possible to predict the ultimate cost to us. However, the Court has stated its preliminary
interpretation of the applicable penalty statute. The Attorney General has argued that the statute should be
construed such that the maximum penalty would be $10 each time a consumer was allegedly deceived. Pursuant
to the Court’s construction, if the Attorney General’s Office fully prevails on its claims that Wyndham willfully
engaged in a deceptive trade practice by charging energy fees, the maximum penalty that could be imposed is
$10 (exclusive of actual damages or attorneys’ fees).

On June 20, 2002, plaintiffs in the case entitled Roller-Edelstein, et al. v. Wyndham International, Inc., et
al., filed an amended complaint in Dallas County District Court (case no. 02-04946-A) alleging that supplemental
fees charged to hotel guests constituted common law fraud, breach of contract and violated Texas’ Deceptive
Trade Practices Act. The plaintiffs claim to represent a nationwide class and have estimated damages in excess of
$10 million. We have answered this complaint, but little formal discovery has been taken and the Court has not
yet certified a class. We have tentatively agreed to settle this case, without admitting liability. Under the
proposed settlement, we would (i) provide a coupon for discounts at our properties to affected class members, (ii)
make a $50 charitable donation, (iii) pay attorneys’ fees in an amount up to $240, and (iv) agree to make changes
in our disclosures regarding resort fees. The Court has not yet held a hearing on the joint motion to preliminarily
approved the settlement and certify a settlement class. As of December 31, 2004, we have recorded an adequate
reserve to cover the cost of the settlement.

On or about June &, 2003, the Massachusetts Office of the Attorney General notified Wyndham that a
complaint had been filed with its Fair Labor and Practices Division against Wyndham’s Westborough,
Massachusetts location. According to the Office of the Attorney General, the complaint alleged that Wyndham-
Westborough had violated certain provisions of Massachusetts’ wage payment laws (Massachusetts General
Statutes c. 149, § 152A) by failing to remit to its employees all amounts owed by statute. On or about January 2,
2004, Wyndham received notice of a second Attorney General complaint also alleging a violation of c. 149, §
152A, this time with respect to all of Wyndham’s Massachusetts hotels. Although we intend to vigorously defend
against these complaints, we have nevertheless fully cooperated with the Attorney General’s office by providing
it with documents and other information in hopes of quickly resolving these matters. Because the Office of the
Attorney General does not disclose the names of complainants, it is unclear who the complainants are, and how
many are involved. The focus of the investigation has been distribution of “service charges” to service
employees. Wyndham Westborough’s Massachusetts counsel and counsel for seven Wyndham Westborough
employees have settled all charges involving “service charge” issues and we are in receipt of settlement
agreements signed by all seven potential plaintiffs and their attorney. A number of Wyndham Westborough
employees and ex-employees who are not represented by counsel have also sought payment of “service charges”
collected by the hotel. In each instance in which the subject has been raised, Wyndham Westborough has made
distributions to these individuals in return for their execution of a settlement agreement.

We are a party to a number of other claims and lawsuits arising out of the normal course of business.
However, we do not consider the ultimate liability with respect to these other claims and lawsuits to be material
in relation to our consoelidated financial condition or operations.
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9. Related Party Transactions:
Summerfield Transaction

On December 22, 2004, we sold six Summerfield Suites hotels and a 33.3% interest in the Summerfield
brand to various limited liability companies affiliated with Lehman Brothers Real Estate Partners, L.P. The hotels
sold included the Summerfield Suites Denver Tech Center, Summerfield Suites Miami Airport, Summerfield
Suites Morristown (New Jersey), Summerfield Suites Parsippany-Whippany (New Jersey), Summerfield Suites
Seattle Downtown and Summerfield Suites Waltham (Massachusetts).

The total purchase price was $104,300, with $96,000 of that amount being allocated to the purchase price
for the six hotels and with the $8,300 balance being allocated to the purchase price of the interest in the
Summerfield brand. In connection with the closing, the six limited liability companies that acquired ownership of
the hotels also deposited $4,000 in reserve accounts and agreed to use those funds to perform certain replacement
and capital improvement work at the hotels within two years after the closing date.

Pursuant to the sale of the interest in the brand, Sum Business Holdings, LLC, which is indirectly owned
85% by a Lehman Brothers partnership and 15% by Gencom American Hospitality, Inc., acquired a 33.3%
interest in Summerfield Hotel Holding Company, L.L.C., which indirectly owns all of the partnership interests in
Summerfield Hotel Company, L.P., which in turn owns the Summerfield Suites brand and franchises and
manages Summerfield Suites hotels. Gencom American Hospitality, Inc. is controlled by Karim Alibhai, who is a
director of the Company, and other members of his family. The remaining 66.7% interest in Summerfield Hotel
Holding Company, L.L.C. is held by our wholly-owned subsidiary Patriot American Hospitality Partnership, L.P.
Pursuant to the terms of the limited liability company agreement of Summerfield Hotel Holding Company,
L.L.C., Sum Business Holdings, LLC can increase its interest in Summerfield Hotel Holding Company, L.L.C. to
50% by committing equity capital to develop seven additional Summerfield Suites hotels. However, if Sum
Business Holdings, LL.C does not develop at least seven hotels before December 22, 2009, then, so long as there
has not been a change in control of Patriot American Hospitality Partnership, L.P., Patriot American Hospitality
Partnership, L.P. may buy out Sum Business Holdings, LLC’s interest in the limited liability company.
Summerfield Hotel Holding Company, L.L.C. is to be managed by a management committee consisting of at
least four members, two of whom are appointed by Sum Business Holdings, LLC, and two of whom are
appointed by Patriot American Hospitality Partnership, L.P.

Under the limited liability company agreement, Sum Business Holdings, LLC agreed to provide or to cause
one of its affiliates to provide, by December 22, 2009, mezzanine financing in the aggregate amount of $50,000
for the development of Summerfield Suites hotels. In addition, the parties agreed to buy-sell provisions that may
be exercised under certain circumstances, including without limitation the occurrence of a deadlock with respect
to certain fundamental major decisions, to permit one party to acquire the other party’s interest in Summerfield
Hotel Holding Company, L.L..C. The agreement also permits either party, at any time after June 22, 2006 but
subject to certain right of first offer provisions, to initiate and complete procedures for the sale of the business.
Further, except for certain exempted transactions, the agreement permits Sum Business Holdings, LLC to invoke
the buy-sell procedures in the event of a change in control of Wyndham.

Following the closing, each of the six hotels was leased to six separate limited liability companies, which
also are owned indirectly by the Lehman Brothers partnership and Gencom American Hospitality, Inc., and
continue to be operated by Summerfield Hotel Company, L.P. under the Summerfield Suites brand pursuant to a
hotel management agreement. Each of the hotel management agreements has a ten year term and may be
renewed by the hotel lessee for two additional periods of five years each. Each hotel lessee has the right to
terminate the management agreement for its hotel (1) pursuant to an annual performance test, (2) under certain
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circumstances if the hotel brand name is changed, (3) if there is a deadlock buy-sell event under the limited
liability company agreement for Summerfield Hotel Holding Company, L.L.C. or (4) if the hotel is sold to an
independent third party. Following termination of the hotel management agreement, the hotels may continue to
be operated as Summerfield Suites hotels pursuant to franchise agreements that were executed at closing but
become effective when the management agreements terminate. In addition to the management and franchise
agreements, the parties also entered into service agreements, pursuant to which the responsibility for providing
management services for a temporary period of time was delegated to our wholly-owned subsidiary Wyndham
Management Corporation, and pursuant to which Summerfield Hotel Company, L.P. may obtain certain
centralized services for Summerfield Suites Hotels.

Transactions with Certain Wyndham Directors

During 2004, 2003 and 2002, we received market rate hotel management and service fees in the aggregate
amount of approximately $1,967, $4,000 and $4,242, respectively, from the owners of hotels in which Karim
Alibhai, Rolf Ruhfus, Sherwood Weiser or Milton Fine holds an ownership interest.

In connection with the merger of THC and Patriot, IHC, Patriot, Mr. Fine and certain other parties entered
into a shareholders agreement, dated December 2, 1997. Pursuant to the terms of the shareholders agreement,
Patriot must indemnify Mr. Fine for certain tax liabilities until December 2, 2007 or Mr. Fine’s death, whichever
occurs first. The amounts to be paid, if any, cannot be estimated at this time.

In connection with the sale on August 16, 1996 of certain property to us from an entity affiliated with Mr.
Alibhai, we granted the entity affiliated with Mr. Alibhai a profit participation interest. If we sell, exchange or
enter into a similar transaction with respect to the property and receive the minimum return set forth in the
governing agreement, the entity affiliated with Mr. Alibhai will be entitled to receive 25% of the proceeds in
excess of the minimum return. The amounts to be paid, if any, cannot be estimated at this time.

In September 2003, we entered into a consulting agreement, which has a term of two years, with Lynn
Swann. Pursuant to the terms of the consuliting agreement, Mr. Swann agreed to, among other things, make a
certain number of personal appearances on our behalf as well as make himself available for a certain number of
advertisements in order to promote Wyndham. In return for his services, we must pay Mr. Swann $250 per year.
In addition, on September 1, 2003, we granted Mr. Swann 100,000 restricted shares of our class A common
stock. The restricted shares vest in two equal installments on the first and second anniversaries of the date of
grant.

Leonard Boxer, one of our directors, is a partner with Strook & Strook & Lavan, a law firm that has advised
us on certain matters related to property transactions. During 2004, we paid Strook & Strook & Lavan
approximately $352 in legal fees.

Loans to Certain Wyndham Executive Officers

In 1999, in connection with his employment agreement, we loaned Mr. Kleisner $500 pursnant to a recourse
note for use in purchasing a residence in Dallas, Texas. The note bears no interest. In 1999 and 2001, in
connection with his employment agreement, we also loaned Mr. Kleisner $850 and $665, respectively, pursuant
to non-recourse notes. The notes bear interest at a rate equal to the rate on our senior credit facility. Despite the
fact that the $850 note is non-recourse and has no personal liability to Mr. Kleisner, he repaid the $850 note in
full (principal plus accrued interest) on December 31, 2002 solely from his personal funds. As of December 31,
2004, principal and accrued interest in the amount of $1,219 was outstanding on the remaining notes.
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Apollo Investors

During 2004, 2003 and 2002, we recognized hotel management, service and franchise fees in the aggregate
amount of $2,954, $2,083 and $2,196, respectively, from hotels in which certain entities affiliated with the
Apollo Investors hold an ownership interest.

In 2000, we entered into a timeshare agreement with Tempus Resorts International, Ltd. (“Tempus”), an
entity affiliated with the Apollo Investors. The timeshare operates under the name Wyndham Vacation Club.
During 2004, 2003 and 2002, we recognized fees from Tempus in the aggregate amount of $782, $470 and $32,
respectively.

10. Minority Interest in the Operating Partnerships:

Pursuant to the Operating Partnerships’ respective limited partnership agreements, the common limited
partners of the Operating Partnerships, including certain affiliates of Patriot, received rights (the “Redemption
Rights”) that enable them to cause the Operating Partnerships to redeem each pair of OP units (consisting of one
OP unit of the Patriot Partnership and the one OP unit of the Wyndham Partnership) in exchange for cash equal
to the value of a paired share (or, at our election, we may purchase each pair of OP units offered for redemption
for one share of common stock). In the case of the Wyndham Partnership’s Class A preferred OP units and Class
C preferred OP units described below, each of these preferred OP units may be redeemed for cash equal to the
value of a share (or, at Wyndham’s election, Wyndham may purchase each preferred OP unit offered for
redemption for one share of common stock). The Redemption Rights generally may be exercised at any time
after one year following the issuance of the OP units. The number of shares of common stock issuable upon
exercise of the Redemption Rights will be adjusted for share splits, mergers, consolidations or similar pro rata
transactions which would have the effect of diluting the ownership interests of the limited partners of the
Operating Partnerships or the shareholders of the Company.

During 2004, 2003 and 2002, 622,095, 145,293 and 50,949 OP units, respectively, in the Patriot Partnership
and Wyndham Partnership were redeemed for cash of $730, $79 and $48, respectively. As of December 31,
2004, the Patriot Partnership and Wyndham Partnership had 320,910 OP units that were held by minority
partners, which represent the minority interest in the operating partnerships.

11. Shareholders’ Equity:
Capital Stock

We have the authority to issue 750,000,000 shares of class A common stock, 750,000,000 shares of class B
common stock, par value $0.01 per share and 150,000,000 shares of series A and series B preferred stock, par
value $0.01.

The series B preferred stock has the following terms, among others:

» dividends payable quarterly, on a cumulative basis, at a rate of 9.75% per year;

» for the first six years, the dividends are structured to ensure an aggregate fixed cash dividend payment
of $29,250 per year, so long as there is no redemption or conversion of the investors’ series B preferred
stock; therefore, for that period, dividends are payable partly in cash and partly in additional shares of
series B preferred stock, with the cash component initially equal to 30% for the first dividend and
declining over the period to approximately 19.8% for the final dividend in year six;
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« for the next four years, dividends are payable in cash or additional shares of series B preferred stock as
determined by the Board of Directors; and, after year 10, dividends are payable solely in cash;

« if any dividends are paid on the Wyndham class A common stock, additional dividends will be paid in
the amount that would have been paid on the shares of Wyndham class A common stock into which the
series B preferred stock is then convertible;

¢ if a change in control or a liquidation of Wyndham occurs within six years following the investment,
any dividends remaining for the six years will be accelerated and paid;

» not redeemable by Wyndham for six years, except that up to $300 million of the series B preferred stock
may be redeemed during the 170 day period following the closing of the investment;

¢ voting with the Wyndham common stock on an as-converted basis on matters submitted to the common
stockholders and voting as a separate class on specified matters, with special rules applying to the
-election of directors; and

* convertible, at the holder’s option, into a number of shares of Wyndham class A common stock equal to
$100.00 divided by the conversion price, initially equal to $8.59 but subject to potential downward
adjustments.

The investors will also have preemptive rights for the first five years following their investment as long as
they own more than 15% of the Wyndham common stock.

For a period of 170 days following the completion of the investment, Wyndham was entitled to redeem up
to $300 million of the series B preferred stock at a redemption price of $102.00 per share (102% of the stated
amount) plus all' accrued dividends, with the proceeds from a rights offering. The rights offering was completed
with the issuance by Wyndham of 55,992 shares of series A preferred stock. Wyndham redeemed 55,992 shares
of series B preferred stock. The series A preferred stock generally has the same economic terms as the series B
preferred stock but has no voting rights, except as required by law and except for a limited right to elect two
directors if dividends are in arrears for six quarterly periods.

On January 28, 2005, Mercury Special Situations Fund LP and Equity Resource Dover Fund LP issued a
tender offer to purchase all outstanding shares of our series A preferred stock at a price of $30 per share. The
offer was amended on February 28, 2005 to extend the expiration date to March 14, 2005.

Shareholder Rights Agreement

Wyndham is party to a Shareholder Rights Agreement dated as of June 29, 1999 (the “Rights Agreement”).
Pursuant to the Rights Agreement, the Board of Directors of Wyndham declared (a) for each outstanding share of
common stock of Wyndham outstanding on July 9, 1999 (the “Record Date”), a dividend distribution of one
preferred stock purchase right (a “Right”), and (b) for each outstanding share of Wyndham series A or series B
preferred stock outstanding on the Record Date, a dividend distribution of a number of Rights equal to the
number of shares of common stock into which each such share is convertible. In addition, Rights will
automatically attach to each share of common stock, series A preferred stock and series B preferred stock issued
between the Record Date and the Distribution Date (as defined in the Rights Agreement). Each Right entitles the
registered holder thereof to purchase from Wyndham one one-thousandth of a share of series C participating
preferred stock, par value $0.01 per share, at a cash exercise price of $35.00, subject to adjustment. The Rights
may only become exercisable under certain circumstances involving actual or potential acquisitions of beneficial
ownership of 15% or more of the class A common stock, subject to certain exceptions. The Rights will expire in
June 2009 unless earlier exercised or redeemed.
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Dividends and Stock Splits

We do not anticipate paying a dividend to the common shareholders and are prohibited from paying
dividends on the class A common stock under the terms of our credit facilities. Also, we are prohibited under the
terms of the January 24, 2002 amendments to the senior credit facility and increasing rate loans facility from
paying the cash portion of any dividends on the preferred stock. However, the holders of the preferred stock are
entitled to receive on a quarterly basis a dividend equal to 9.75% per annum on a cumulative basis payable in
cash and additional shares of preferred stock. In addition, according to the terms of the series A and series B
preferred stock, if the cash dividends on the preferred stock are in arrears and unpaid for a period of 60 days or
more, then an additional amount of dividends shall accrue at a rate per annum equal to 2.0% of the stated amount
of each share of preferred stock then outstanding from the last payment date on which cash dividends were to be
paid in full until such time as all cash dividends in arrears have been paid in full. Such additional dividends shall
be cumulative and payable in additional shares of preferred stock.

During the year ended December 31, 2004, we issued stock dividends of approximately 1,090,938 shares of
series A and series B preferred stock with a value of $109,094. We deferred payment of the cash portion of the
dividends of approximately $29,222. In addition, we issued a stock dividend of 298,421 shares of series A and
series B preferred stock with a value of $29,842 in payment of additional dividends at a rate of 2.0% per annum
as cash dividends on the preferred stock were in arrears for at least 60 days as of December 31, 2004.

During the year ended December 31, 2003, we issued stock dividends of approximately 990,964 shares of
series A and series B preferred stock with a value of $99,096. We deferred payment of the cash portion of the
dividends of approximately $29,227. In addition, we issued an additional stock dividend of 272,592 shares of
series A and series B preferred stock with a value of $27,259 in payment of additional dividends at a rate of 2.0%
per annum as cash dividends on the preferred stock were in arrears for at least 60 days as of December 31, 2003.

During the year ended December 31, 2002, we issued stock dividends of approximately 900,529 shares of
series A and series B preferred stock with a value of $90,053. We deferred payment of the cash portion of the
dividends of approximately $17,658. In addition, we issued an additional stock dividend of 365,059 shares of
series A and series B preferred stock with a value of $36,506 in payment of additional dividends at a rate of 2.0%
per annum as cash dividends on the preferred stock were in arrears for at least 60 days as of December 31, 2002.

As of December 31, 2004, the deferred payments of the cash portion of the preferred stock dividend totaled
approximately $102,322 and are included in dividends payable in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.

Stock Incentive Plans

We have adopted certain employee incentive programs for the purpose of (i) attracting and retaining
employees, directors and others, (ii) providing incentives to those deemed important to the success of Wyndham
and (iii) associating the interests of these individuals with the interests of Wyndham and its shareholders through
opportunities for increased stock ownership. Certain of the stock options and restricted stock grants issued under
the incentive stock programs vested and became non-forfeitable with consummation of the $1 billion equity
investment.

The 1997 Incentive Plans. Prior to their amendment in 1999, the 1997 Incentive Plans provided for the
award of stock options, stock awards or performance shares to each eligible employee and director of Patriot and
Old Wyndham. Under each 1997 Incentive Plan, the aggregate number of paired shares available for grants of
awards was the sum of (i) 3,000,000 paired shares plus (ii) 10% of any future net increase in the total number of
shares of paired common stock.
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Under the 1997 Incentive Plans, each independent director could elect to take all or a portion of his/her fees
in the form of deferred paired share units. Prior to the amendment in 1999, the independent directors of Patriot
and Old Wyndham were automatically granted a non-qualified stock option, immediately exercisable in full, to
acquire 10,000 paired shares at an exercise price per paired share equal to the fair market value of a paired share
on the date of grant. Option terms were fixed by the Compensation Committees of Patriot and Old Wyndham and
may not exceed ten years from the date of grant.

On June 29, 1999, the 1997 Incentive Plans were amended, as a result of Patriot’s merger into Wyndham.
As part of the merger, Wyndham assumed Patriot’s obligations under each existing option to purchase shares of
Patriot common stock that was outstanding immediately prior to the merger. The assumed options did not
terminate in connection with the merger and continue to have, and be subject to, the same terms and conditions
set forth in the stock option plans and agreements in effect immediately prior to the merger. All references to
Patriot in the assumed options are now deemed to be references to Wyndham and each option is exercisable for
one share of Wyndham class A common stock.

On May 24, 2001, the stockholders approved the Second Amendment and Restatement of Wyndham
International, Inc. 1997 Incentive Plan (the “Amended Plan”). Among other things, the amendment increases the
number of shares available for grant under the Amended Plan to an amount equal to 10.0% of the outstanding
shares of class A common stock on a fully diluted basis. Under the Amended Plan, “fully diluted basis” means
the assumed conversion of all outstanding shares of series A and B convertible preferred stock, the assumed
exercise of all outstanding stock options and the assumed conversion of all units of partnership interest in the
Patriot Partnership and the Wyndham Partnership that are subject to redemption. The Amended Plan also permits
the Compensation Committee to provide in the agreement governing a restricted unit award that following a
change in control in which the shares of class A common stock are changed into or exchanged for a different
kind of stock or other securities or cash or other property, the unvested portion of a restricted unit award shall
thereafter upon vesting be settled in stock, other securities, cash or other property upon such terms and subject to
such conditions as the Compensation Committee may determine.

The Amended Plan also (i) deleted certain provisions that by their terms are no longer applicable to
Wyndham following the restructuring in June 1999, (ii) added a provision requiring that the Compensation
Committee, which administers the Amended Plan, have at least two members, and (iii) made certain other minor
provisions to the Amended Plan.

Stock Grant Awards

During 2004, 2003 and 2002 pursuant to the Amended Plan, the Board of Directors awarded 235,000,
500,000 and 3,351,250 restricted awards, respectively, to certain officers and employees of Wyndham. We have
recorded $2,753, $2,480 and $3,365 in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, related to the restricted awards and
such amount is included in general and administrative expense in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements. The restricted stock grants do not carry voting or dividend rights until vested. Subject to continued
employment, vesting is 33% per year in years three, four and five and compensation expense is amortized ratably
over five years.

Voluntary Exchange Program

In November 2001, we offered a voluntary exchange program for certain eligible employees of Wyndham.
Eligible employees holding options granted on or after January 1, 2000 under the Amended Plan were able to
exchange those options for restricted unit awards. One restricted unit was granted for each share of class A
common stock underlying the eligible options held by eligible employees. All tendered eligible options were
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cancelled upon the expiration of the offer on December 18, 2001. The restricted units were granted under the
Amended Plan and will vest on the third, fourth and fifth anniversaries of the date of grant. The total number of
eligible options to be tendered was 5,598,326, of which 5,324,976 were tendered. Compensation expense of
$2,343 was calculated as the product of the number of restricted stock grants and the stock price on the date of
grant. This amount is being amortized ratably over 5 years. The remaining 273,350 options that were not
tendered are treated as variable awards following the accounting guidance provided by Emerging Issues Task
Force 00-23 paragraph 167. Variable accounting commences for all existing awards when the offer is made and,
for those awards that are retained by employees because the offer is declined, variable accounting continues until
the award is exercised, is forfeited, or expires unexercised. We have recorded $324, $192 and $519 in 2004, 2003
and 2002, respectively, related to the restricted awards and such amount is included in general and administrative
expense in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. On December 18, 2004, 1,068,053 of the
restricted stock units issued under the voluntary exchange program vested.

SFAS 123 “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation”

Pro forma information regarding net income and earnings per share is required by SFAS 123, which also
requires that the information be determined as if we had accounted for our compensatory employee stock options
under the fair value method. The fair value for these options was estimated at the date of grant using a Black-
Scholes option pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions for 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively: risk-free interest rates of 3.87%, 3.53% and 4.30%; dividend yields of 0%; volatility factors of the
expected market price of our common stock of 63.6%, 123.2% and 124.0%, respectively, and a weighted average
expected life of the options of 4 years.

The Black-Scholes option valuation model was developed for use in estimating the fair market value of
traded options, which have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition, option valuation models
require the input of highly subjective assumptions including the expected stock price volatility.

A summary of our stock option activity and related information for the years ended December 31, 2004,
2003 and 2002 is as follows:

2004

2003 2002

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average

Options  Exercise Options Exercise Options Exercise
(000°s) Price (000°s) Price (000°s) Price
Outstanding, beginning of year . ................. 9,669 $531 10,873 $546 11,592 $5.94
Granted .......... .. 1,249 1.13 475 0.33 1,229 0.33
Exercised ........ ... (37) 0.44 27) 047 — —
Forfeited ........ ... . o i (2,186) 439 (1,652) 499  (1,948) 5.07
Outstanding, endof year .. ..................... 8,695 $4.96 9,669 $531 10,873 $5.46
Exercisable atendof year ...................... 6,920 $6.02 7,766  $6.24 7,909  $6.67

Exercise prices for options outstanding as of December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 ranged from $0.20 to
$30.40. The weighted average remaining contractual life of those options was 4.9, 4.3 and 4.4 years, respectively.
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The following table summarizes information about fixed stock options outstanding at December 31, 2004:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Number Weighted Average Number
Outstanding Remaining Weighted Average Exercisable Weighted Average

Range of exercise prices 000’s) Contractual Life Exercise Price (000’s) Exercise Price
$0.00-%3.04 ................ 3,477 7.5 $ 1.08 1,702 $ 134
$3.04-%608 ................ 2,757 4.2 4.30 2,757 4.30
$6.08-%$9.12 ................ 1,320 2.2 6.36 1,320 6.36
$9.12-812.16 ............... 376 0.8 11.10 376 11.10
$12.16-$15.20 .............. 102 1.5 12.69 102 12.69
$1520-$1824 .............. 426 20 17.58 426 17.58
$18.24-$21.28 .............. 8 33 18.59 8 18.59
$21.28-$2432 .............. 122 34 22.54 122 22.54
$24.32-$27.36 .............. — — — — —
$27.36-$3040 .............. 107 2.8 30.40 107 30.40

8,695 $ 496 6,920 $ 6.02

Weighted average fair values were calculated based on a theoretical pricing model. As our options are not
traded on any exchange, employees receive no value from holding them without an increase in the stock price of
the attached shares.

12. Income Taxes:

The income tax provision for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, consists of
the following:

2004 2003 2002
(Restated)
Current:
Federal ... . i e e $ 165 $ 81) $§ 2935
3 7. 1~ O 5,301 5,611 6,652
Foreign ... 2,037 4,759 3,397
Total CUITENt . . ... i i i e e e 7,503 10,289 12,984
Deferred:
Federal . ...t i i i e e 7,028 (49,801)  (90,577)
K7 = 612 (7,720)  (14,156)
Foreign ... ..o e (15,000) (3,000) —_
Totaldeferred . ... ...ccoviiiin i et e e (7,360)  (60,521) (104,733)
Total income tax provision (benefit) ................ccoiiiiiea... $ 143 $ (50,232) $ (91,749)
2004 2003 2002
(Restated)
Income tax provision (benefit) reconciliation:
Income tax provision (benefit) from continuing operations .......... $ 143 $ (50.232) $ (91,749)
Income tax benefit from discontinued operations .................. — (65,808)  (37,398)
Total income tax provision (benefit) ........... ... .. ceiiiiinann .. $ 143 $(116,040) $(129,147)




WYNDHAM INTERNATIONAL, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
(dolars in thousands, except per share amounts)

The reason for the difference between total tax expense and the amount computed by applying the statutory
Federal income tax rate of 35% to income before income taxes is as follows:

2004 2003 2002
(Restated)
Tax @t StALULOTY TALE . .. vt v vt e v et ettt ettt eiin e eeneeenenas $(41,075) $(48,812) $(82,701)
State INCOME LAXES . . .o\ i vttt et et et e e et e (1,365)  (2,109)  (7,504)
FOreign taxes ... ...ouiiii it e 2,037 4,759 3,397
Valuation allowanCe . .. .. ..ottt i e e e e 74,732 _— 6,935
Release of iINCOME tAX TESEIVE ..ot vttt ittt ettt e i e i e e e (21,966)  (3,000) (2,667)
Minority interestand other .......... ... i i (12,2200  (1,070) (9,209
Total income tax provision (benefit) from continuing operations ............ $ 143 $(50,232) $(91,749)

During 2004, 2003 and 2002, we recorded net benefits to the provision for income taxes totaling $21,966,
$3,000 and $2,667, respectively, related to favorable adjustments and settlements of various tax matters.

On December 31, 2003 and January 1, 2004, certain tax concession agreements related to the operation of
the two hotels in Puerto Rico expired. These concession agreements historically provided for the reduction of
certain taxes, including income, property and volume of business taxes by as much as 90%. We have applied for
extension and renewal of these agreements and believe it is probable that the agreements will be extended
retroactively to the date of expiration. If the agreements are not renewed and extended, we would be liable for
additional taxes of approximately $5,000 for the year ended December 31, 2004. A tax concession related to a
third property in Puerto Rico is set to expire on December 31, 2005. We intend to file for the renewal and
extension of this agreement.

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Significant
components of our deferred tax assets and liabilities for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively, are as follows:

2004 2003
(Restated)
Deferred tax assets:
Net 0perating LoSSES . .. v v vt vttt ittt e $ 407,717 $ 311,352
Hedging InStruments . . .. ...t e 3,830 23,734
Other NON-CUTTENE ASSELS & . v v vt vt et e et e et e e e e e e et e e e e 44 835 31,906
Total deferred tax @SSe1S . ..o vttt it e e e e 456,382 366,992
Valuation allowance ... ..o vt e (343,840) (105,449)
Netdeferred asset .. .ot it ittt et et e e $ 112,542 $ 261,543
Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciation . ...t (80,145) (198,447)
Management contracts and trade names . ... ......c..vt it (26,123)  (32,899)
Other non-current liabilities .. ........ .. .. .. i i i (6,274)  (13,072)
Total deferred tax liabilities ... ...... ... .0t (112,542) (244,418)
Net deferred INCOME taX @SSEL . . . v it ittt e it e it i e e $ — % 17,125




WYNDHAM INTERNATIONAL, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
(dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

As of December 31, 2004, Wyndham and certain affiliated subsidiaries have net operating loss
carryforwards for Federal income tax purposes of approximately $1,020,000 which are available to offset future
taxable income, if any, through 2024 subject to certain limitations. Net operating losses generally have a
carryforward period of 20 years. None of Wyndham’s net operating loss carryforwards expire in 2005 to 2010,
$5,588 expire in 2011 to 2012, $156,684 expire in 2013 to 2019 and $857,469 expire in 2020 to 2024. The
utilization of $100,626 in net operating loss carryforwards are subject to further limitations, including annual and
separate company limitations, under federal income tax law. In addition, the Company has approximately
$41,703 of foreign net operating loss carryforwards subject to relevant country expiration and usage limitations,

SFAS 109 requires that deferred tax assets be reduced by a valuation allowance if it is more likely than not
that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The valuation allowance relates to net
operating losses and other deferred tax assets for which we believe that realization is uncertain. The valuation
allowance increased $238,391 and $81,132 for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

13. Employee Benefit Plans:

We sponsor 401(k) retirement savings plans. Employees who are over 21 years of age and have completed
one year of service are eligible to participate in the plans. The aggregate expense under the plans totaled $455,
$258 and $216 for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

We maintain a self-insured group health plan through a Voluntary Employee Benefit Association. The plan
is funded to the limits provided by the Internal Revenue Service, and liabilities have been recorded for estimated
incurred but unreported claims. Aggregate and stop loss insurance exists at amounts that limit our exposure. We
have recognized expense related to the plan of $5,305, $5,921 and $6,226 for the years ended December 31,
2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

14. Discontinued Operations:

The Company accounts for certain revenues and expenses as originating from discontinued operations
pursuant to SFAS 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”. SFAS 144 requires
that sales of long-lived assets, or the identification of assets as held for sale, be treated as discontinued
operations. Any gain or loss from the disposition, and any income or expenses associated with assets held for
sale, are included in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations as discontinued operations.

The financial results for the assets we classify as held for sale are reflected as discontinued operations in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements. The operating results of discontinued operations were as
follows for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002:

December 31,
2004 2003 2002
(Restated)
HOtel TEVENUES . . oottt et et e e e e e e $ 442,147 $ 681,648 $1,065,678
Hotel €XPenses ... ..ottt e (358,521) (581,656)  (880,227)
Interest eXpense ... .. ... (25,090)  (33,774) (46,541)
Depreciation and amortization (1) ......... ... ....cooiiiiiio.. (58,214) (118,703)  (183,460)
Other BXPeNSES . ..\ v ittt et et e (946) (2,412) 2,017
Loss from discontinued operations . . ...........cuuiiiiiniee. . $ (624) $ (54,897) $ (46,567)




WYNDHAM INTERNATIONAL, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
(dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

(1) Inaccordance with SFAS 144, we cease depreciation on properties after they have been identified as held
for sale. The depreciation expense reflected above was recorded before the assets were identified as held for
sale.

15. Segment Reporting:

We classify our business into proprietary branded hotels and non-proprietary branded hotel divisions, under
which we manage the business.

Wyndham is the brand umbrella under which all of our proprietary products are marketed. It includes three
four-star, upscale hotel brands that offer fuil-service accommodations to business and leisure travelers, as well as
the five-star luxury resort brand.

Description of reportable segments

Our three reportable segments are: Wyndham branded properties, non-proprietary branded hotel properties
and other.

* The Wyndham branded properties are: Wyndham Hotels & Resorts®, Wyndham Luxury Resorts®,
Wyndham Garden Hotels® and Summerfield Suites by Wyndham™. Wyndham Hotels & Resorts® are
upper upscale, full-service hotel properties that contain an average of 300 hotel rooms, generally
between 15,000 and 315,000 square feet of meeting space and a full range of guest services and
amenities for business and leisure travelers, as well as conferences and conventions. The hotels are
located primarily in the central business districts and dominant suburbs of major metropolitan markets
and are targeted to business groups, meetings, and individual business and leisure travelers. These hotels
offer elegantly appointed facilities and high levels of guest service. Wyndham Luxury Resorts® are five-
star hotel properties that are distinguished by their focus on incorporating the local environment into
every aspect of the property, from decor to cuisine to recreation. Wyndham Garden Hotels® are full-
service properties, which serve individual business travelers and are located principally near major
airports and suburban business districts. Amenities and services generally include a three-meal
restaurant, signature Wyndham Garden Hotels® libraries, and laundry and room service. Summerfield
Suites by Wyndham™ offers guests the highest quality lodging in the upper upscale all-suites segment.
Each suite has a fully equipped kitchen, a spacious living room and a private bedroom. Many suites
feature two-bedroom, two-bath units. The hotels also have a swimming pool, exercise room and other
amenities to serve business and leisure travelers.

*  Non-proprietary branded properties include all properties which are not Wyndham branded hotel
properties. The properties consist of non-Wyndham branded assets, such as Doubletree®, Hilton®,
Holiday Inn®, Hyatt®, Marriott®, Radisson® and independents.

¢ Other includes the Golden Door Spa, management fee and service fee income and interest and other
income, general and administrative costs, interest expense and other charges. General and administrative
costs and interest expense are not allocated to each reportable segment; therefore, they are reported in
the aggregate within this segment.
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WYNDHAM INTERNATIONAL, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

(dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Measurement of segment profit or loss

We evaluate performance based on the operating income or loss from each business segment. The
accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant

accounting policies.

Non
Wyndham  proprietary
Year ended December 31, 2004 (Restated) branded branded Other(1) Total
TOtal TEVENUE . .\ e vttt ittt ettt e e et e $ 922446 $ 6,725 $ 36,343 $ 965,514
Depreciation and amortization eXpense . . ..........oeurnnnienn.. 99,112 1,189 533 100,834
Operating income (10SS) .. .. ... i 141,592 2,342 (263,474) (119,540)
SegmENt SSeIS . . ..o\ e 2,212,228 144,974 433,287 2,790,489
Capital additions ...........co i e 70,598 14,304 7,237 92,139
(1) Operating income (loss) for 2004 includes a $953 credit related to derivative instruments.
Non
Wyndham  proprietary
Year ended December 31, 2003 branded branded Other(1) Total
TOtAl TEVENUE + v e« o v et ee ettt ittt ettt et ar e $ 782,198 § 6,395 $ 37,164 $ 825,757
Depreciation and amortization €Xpense . ..................o..u... 102,311 1,277 3,420 107,008
Operatingincome (1088) . ..ot 92,062 1,747 (235,757) (141,948)
Segment aSsets . ... ...t 2,643,692 341,490 815,070 3,800,252
Capital additions ........... oo 52,609 6,717 265 59,591
(1) Operating income (loss) for 2003 includes $15,832 of charges related to derivative instruments.
Non
Wyndham  proprietary
Year ended December 31, 2002 branded branded Other(1) Total
TOtAl TEVEIUE .+« o v v vttt ettt et e te s et ia et e nenans $ 794,227 $ 4492 $ 38,306 $ 837,025
Depreciation and amortization expense . . ........................ 102,960 1,250 480 104,690
Operating income (I0SS) .. ... ovi i 96,561 487  (334,377)  (237,329)
SegMENt aSSELS . . ..ttt 2,615,480 1,054,631 803,347 4,473,458
Capital additions ......... ..t 46,762 28,633 4,521 79916

(1) Operating income (loss) for 2002 includes $68,843 of charges related to derivative instruments.

The following table represents revenue and long-lived asset information by geographic area for the years
ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002. Revenues are attributed to the United States and its territories and

International based on the location of hotel properties.

International Total

$ 44361 $ 965514
117,495 2,790,489

International Total

$ 39279 § 825,757
114,313 3,800,252

International Total

2004 (Restated) United States
REVeIUES .. ittt e e e e $ 921,153
SEGMENt @SSELS . . . o vttt e e e e e 2,672,994
2003 United States
REVEIIES ...ttt e e e $ 786,478
SEEMENE ASSCLS + . o i vttt et e e e e e 3,685,939
m United States
REeVeMUES ...ttt i i e e e e e $ 797,834
SEEMENt ASSELS . . o vttt et e e e e 4,357,442

$ 39,191 $ 837,025
116,016 4,473,458




WYNDHAM INTERNATIONAL, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
(dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

16. Supplemental Cash Flow Disclosure:

During 2004, 2003 and 2002, in connection with the termination of several contracts, we wrote off the
unamortized balance of trade names of $1,666 in 2004, wrote off the unamortized balance of management contract
costs of $306 in 2003 and $6,445 in 2002 and wrote-off leasehold costs of $153,909 in 2003. Also in 2003, we
impaired and wrote-off $22,000 of the remaining book value of the lease on six Summerfield Suites by Wyndham™.

During 2004, 2003 and 2002, we issued stock dividends of 1,090,938, 990,964 and 900,529 shares of series
A and series B preferred stock with a value of $109,094, $99,096 and $90,053, respectively. We deferred
payment of the cash portion of the 2004, 2003 and 2002 dividends and the 2001 third and fourth quarter
dividends totaling $102,322. In addition, during 2004, 2003 and 2002, we issued additional stock dividends of
298,421, 272,592 and 365,059 shares of series A and series B preferred stock with a value of $29,842, $27,259
and $36,506, respectively, in payment of additional dividends at a rate of 2.0% per annum as cash dividends on
the preferred stock were in arrears for at least 60 days as of December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002.

A charge to other comprehensive income of $298 (net of taxes of $198), $1,220 (net of taxes of $1,077) and
$4,797 (net of taxes of $3,197) for years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, were recorded
for the change in the fair market value of the effective derivatives. Also, in 2004, 2003 and 2002, we recorded
amortization of $3,563 (net of taxes of $2,374), $3,817 (net of taxes of $2,544) and $9,601 (net of taxes of
$6,400), respectively, to earnings as a reduction of the transitional adjustment that was recorded in other
comprehensive income in 2001. Additionally, we paid $47,466, $49,163 and $41,662 in settlement payments for
the ineffective hedges during the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

On August 15, 2003, we sold our 50 percent interest in a hotel for $2,000 in a non-cash transaction for the
release of a mortgage debt obligation.

17. Quarterly Financial Information (unaudited):

Three Months Ended

March 31 June 30 September 30  December 31
2004 (Restated)
Total TEVENUE .. oottt et e e $ 274,655 $ 246,493 $204,467 $ 239,899
Loss from continuing operations .................. $ (17,151) $ (17,681) $(50,173) $ (42,084)
(Loss) income from discontinued operations . ........ $ (12,284) $(335,552) $ 34,537 $ (72,528)
Netloss .ot e e e $ (29,435) $(353,233) $(15,636) $(114,612)

Net loss per common share:
Basic .........c $ (042) 3 (233 §$§ (035 §$ (093
Diluted ......... ... i $ ©042) 5 (233 $ (035 $§ (093

Three Months Ended
March 31 June 30 September 30  December 31
2003

Total TEVENUE . ... v vttt $ 232,409 $ 209,329 $181,801  $ 202,218
Loss from continuing operations .................. $ (17,812) $ (21,673) $(29,717) $ (21,498)
Loss from discontinued operations ................ $ (89,600 $ (69,840) $(59,380) $ (80,092)
Netloss . ..o e et $(107,412) $ (91,513)  $(89,097) $(101,590)

Net loss per common share:
Basic........ .o $ (©08NH $ (077 $ 076 $ (0.84)
Diluted ...........00iiiiiiiii i, $ (08H $ (077 $ (076) $ (0.84)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
(dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

18. Subsequent Events:

On December 30, 2004, we entered into an agreement to sell 25 non-strategic hotels to a partnership
comprised of a private investment fund managed by Goldman Sachs and affiliates of Highgate Holdings. The
purchase price of the transaction is $366 million. The net cash proceeds from the sale will be used to pay down
debt. As part of the agreement, the 15 Wyndham-branded assets included in the sale will remain in the brand’s
portfolio pursuant to new franchise agreements. Impairments totaling $333.5 million were recorded on these 25
properties during 2004. Upon the close of the transaction in 2005, a gain of approximately $33.9 million will be
recorded on the remainder of the assets in the portfolio. The sale is expected to close in the first quarter of 2005.
We also entered into an agreement to sell an additional property in a separate transaction. These transactions will
complete our planned disposition program, which began in June 1999.

On January 3, 2005, we completed the sale of the Doubletree Glenview to Lone Star Funds. The property
will be converted to a Wyndham hotel and will continue to be operated by us under a long-term management
agreement.

On January 28, 2005, Mercury Special Situations Fund LP and Equity Resource Dover Fund LP issued a
tender offer to purchase all outstanding shares of our series A preferred stock at a price of $30 per share. The
offer was amended on February 28, 2005 to extend the expiration date to March 14, 2005.

On or about February 28, 2005, we entered into a stipulation of settlement with regard to the legal
proceeding entitled Johnson v. Patriot American Hospitality, Inc., et al., and discussed under “Commitments and
Contingencies” on page F-26. Pursuant to the stipulation of settlement, we shall issue 11 million shares of
Wyndham common stock to the proposed settlement class. We also have agreed to contribute a maximum
amount of $1,000 to the settlement class, only in the event that the trading price of Wyndham common stock falls
below a certain threshold for a defined period of time. Furthermore, we have agreed to allow the settlement class
to participate in a rights offering under certain limited circumstances. The stipulation of settlement is subject to
Court approval. An accrual of $11,220 was recorded as of December 31, 2004 related to the settlement.

On March 10, 2005, we completed the sale of the Wyndham Riverfront in New Orleans. All net proceeds
were used to pay down debt.

On March 11, 2005, we announced we had arranged to refinance our corporate credit facility and the
majority of our outstanding mortgage debt. We will refinance approximately $1.65 billion of our outstanding
debt. The refinancing, which is expected to close early in the second quarter 2005, provides an extension of
corporate debt maturity to 2011. Additionally, the debt pre-funds up to $100 million of capital to invest in our
owned properties.
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WYNDHAM INTERNATIONAL, INC.
SCHEDULE II—VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

As of December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002
(dollars in thousands)

Additions Additions

Balance at Charged to Charged to Balance at
Beginning  Cost, Expenses, Other End of
of Period Revenue Accounts  Deductions Period
Allowance for doubtful accounts:
2004 ... $ 4,489 $ 9777 $v $10,151  $ 4,115
2003 . 5,172 15,625 — 16,308 4,489
2002 L 11,188 11,161 — 17,177 5,172
Allowance for deferred tax assets:
2004 (Restated) ..............ciian.. $105,449 $238,391 $— $ —  $343,840
2003 ... 24,317 81,132 — — 105,449
2002 .. 17,382 6,935 — — 24,317
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WYNDHAM INTERNATIONAL, INC.

NOTES TO SCHEDULE I
(in thousands)

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,

2004 2003 2002
(a) Reconciliation of Real Estate:
Balance at beginning of period . .. ........ ... i $ 3,435,356 $ 3,739,606 $ 4,639,384
Additions during period:
ACQUISILIONS . o\ttt 235,191 16,993 —
IMProvements . ...ttt 40,401 35,591 31,195
Deductions during period:
Sale of properties . ........... i (1,127,275) (356,834) (930,973)
Balance atendof period .............. ... ... .. ... ..., $ 2,583,673 $ 3,435,356 § 3,739,606
(b) Reconciliation of Accumulated Depreciation:
Balance at beginning of period .. ............ ... .. .... $ 532,291 § 474,737 $ 444,322
Additions during period:
Depreciation fortheperiod .. .......... ... .. ... ... 84,712 98,393 107,154
Deductions during period:
Sale of properties ........... ... ... ... .. P (152,287) (40,839) (76,739)
Balanceatendofperiod ........... ... .. i $ 464,716 $ 532291 $ 474,737

(c) Depreciation is computed on buildings and improvements based upon a useful life of 35 years.

Reconciliation to Balance Sheet:
Investment in real estate per schedule III (Building &

IMPIOVEMENTS) L . o vttt et e et et $ 2,583,673 §$ 3,435,356 $ 3,739,606
Furniture, fixture and equipment (A) .......... ... ... ... ....... 516,312 719,071 889,510
Renovations in progress (A) ........ ... i i 29,328 15,711 29,543
Land held for development (A) ......... .. ... .. e, 19,927 28,647 31,127

Fixedassetbalance ........... ..., 3,149,240 4,198,785 4,689,786
Accumulated depreciation per schedule III (Building &

improvements) (B) ... .. (464,716) (532,291) 474,737)
Accumulated depreciation (FF&E)(B) ........... ... ... . .... (290,055) (489,356) (532,742)
Equity investment held forsale (A) ............ ... ... .. .... — — 6,405

Total fixed aSSetS .ottt i i 2,394,469 3,177,138 3,688,712
Less assets held for sale, net - per the balance sheet . ... ........... (361,504) (238,330) (77,256)
Total investment in real estate, net - per the balance sheet ...... $ 2,032,965 $2938,808 $ 3,611,456

A - See schedule in footnote 3 on page F-21
Sum of B - See schedule in footnote 3 on page F-21 .............. $ (754,771) $(1,021,647) $(1,007,479)
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When the Golden Door opened in 1958, it set the standard for luxury fitness spas worldwide. Dedicated to fostering
balance of mind, body and spirit, founder Deborah Szekely was inspired by the ancient Honjin inns of Japan. Great
attention was paid to personal service and therapeutic treatments, such as massage and soothing baths.

Today, the Wyndham International-owned Golden Door continues in that great tradition to help guests restore their
spirit and energy through a complete personal well-being program. Wyndham's mission is to achieve these objectives

throughout the three tiers of the Golden Door brand:

* Golden Door - the original destination spa located in Escondido, California

* Golden Door Resort Spas - located in select luxury resorts
* Sasura - A Spa Experience by Golden Door - Wyndham’s newly launched boutique spa concept located in select

Wyndham hotels

1. e i :
. . . Iy Gl e 7 - T
All three spa tiers offer the exclusive Golden Door Skin Care JNL gkﬂ\lfﬁ&”
. . . 1o g S
product line - a collection of natural, fresh products available only @@- - L Lf ®
at Golden Door spas or via www.goldendoerskincare.com. AN PR S
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PeCiors O T Cers
/
Officers Direciors® Alan M. Leventhal (4)
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Fred J. Kleisner Fred J. Kleisner (2) (4) Beacon Capital Partners, Inc.
Chairman, President Chairman, President
and Chief Executive Officer and Chief Executive Officer William L. Mack (4)
Wyndham International, Inc. Senior Partner
Tim Fielding Apollo Real Estate Advisors, LP
Executive Vice President Karim Alibhai (4)
and Chief Accounting Officer Principal Lee S. Neibart
GENCOM Group Senior Partner
Michael A. Grossman Apollo Real Estate Advisors, LP
Executive Vice President, Marc A. Beilinson (1)
Asset Management/Owned Assets Shareholder Marc }. Rowan (2) (3) (4) (6)
Pachulski, Stang, Ziehl, Young, Jones & Senior Partner
Mark F. Hedley Weintraub PC Apoilo Management, LP
Executive Vice President
and Chief Information Officer Leon D. Black Dr. Rolf E. Ruhfus (5)
Senior Partner Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Apollo Management, LP LodgeWorks Corporation

Judy Hendrick Leonard Boxer (3} (5) Lawrence Ruisi (1)
Executive Vice President Chairman, Real Estate Department Consultant
and Chief Investment Officer Stroock & Stroock & Lavan LLP
Scott A. Schoen (3)
Andrew Jordan Adela Cepeda (1) (3) Co-President
President Thomas H. Lee Partners, L.P.

Executive Vice President of Sales and

i i ; i A.C. Advisory, Inc.
Marketing and Chief Marketing Officer ry Scott M. Sperling (2) (4)
; Milton Fine (4) (5) Co-President
Elizabeth Schroeder Chairman Thomas H. Lee Partners, L.P.

Executive Vice President

e . - FFC Capital/FFC Hotel Development Corp.
and Chief Financial Officer P P P Lynn C. Swann
Lee S. Hillman President
Mark A. Solls President Swann, Inc.

Executive Vice President,

General Counsel and Secretary Liberation Investment Advisory Group, LLC

Sherwood M. Weiser (3) (5)

Thomas H. Lee Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Continental Hospitality Holdings, LLC
Thomas H. Lee Capital, LLC

Serves on the fafloving commiior <k i \udi 1 St 3 Compensation, (4) Executive, (5) Class A Nominating (6) Resigned as
Dirccior cnociive Mav 15 2000, a1 Bress, Bortier vty oollo Management, 1P, has been named Rowan’s replacement.
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Corzorate Headouarters

Wyndham International, Inc. )

-

1950 N. Stemmons Freeway
Suite 6001
Dallas, Texas 75207
214.863.1000 Corporate Counsel
214.863.1527 Fax Akin, Gump, Strauss, Hauer & Feld,
www.wyndham.com L.L.P.

Dallas, Texas
Common Stock Listing )
Wyndham International, Inc. Class A common stock trades on the American Stock APd‘tOFS
Exchange under the ticker symbol WBR. Daily trading activity and the stock price PricewaterhouseCoopers, L.L.P.
may be found in the financial section of major newspapers and on the Internet. Dallas, Texas
Srarenolders of Record Reservations
As of March 20, 2005, there were approximately 2,361 record holders of our Class 1.800.WYNDHAM
A common stock, including shares held in “street name” by nominees who are www.wyndham.com

record holders, and approximately 23,500 stockholders, .
Development inquiries

Registrar and Transfer Agen: 214.863.1522
Shareholder inquiries regarding stock transfers, dividend payments, address . .
changes, lost stock certificates or other stock account matters should be directed to: Investor Relations Inquiries

214.863.1265
40 Wall Street Media and Other Inquiries
‘New York, New York 10005 214.863.1000
800.937.5449

American Stock Transfer & Trust Company

o
I
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PER SHARE
- " HIGH  LOW  pwoieo
2004 First Quarter $1.32 $0.70 -
: Second Quarter $1.24 $0.85 -
i Third Quarter $1.03 $0.74 -
Fourth Quarter $1.19 $0.65 -
2003 First Quarter $0.30 $0.15 -
Second Quarter $0.76 $0.17 -
Third Quarter $0.75 $0.35 -

Fourth Quarter $0.87 $0.54 -







